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stYour Directors present their  and Audited Accounts for the period ended 31  March, 2020.

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

Period ended Period ended

March 2020 March 2019

Rupees Rupees

Profit/(Loss) before Tax (159.40) 33.84

Less : Provision for Taxation          - -

Profit/(Loss) after Taxation (159.40) 33.84

Add: Other Comprehensive income (10.33) (1.78)

Total Comprehensive Income (169.73) 32.06

OPERATIONS & FUTURE OUTLOOK
The Company achieved a turnover of Rs. 2,860.01 lakhs for the year under review as against Rs. 3,281.87 lakhs in the previous year.

Engineering and project management capabilities of the company will be utilized to execute larger orders of parent company and we 
are confident of overall improvement of performance in the coming years.

AUDITORS
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder, M/s. B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants 
(Reg. No. 101248W/W-100022), to be re-appointed as statutory auditors of the Company for a period of four years from the 
conclusion of this annual general meeting (AGM) of the Company till the conclusion of the Thirteenth AGM to be held in the year 
2024. 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in form MGT 9 is annexed herewith as "Annexure A".

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS & OUTGO
As manufacturing activity is not undertaken by the Company, the information under the Section 134 (3) (m) of Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 8 (3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption is not 
applicable.

DIRECTORS
Mr. Aankur Patni, Director, retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
The Company has following persons as Key Managerial Personnel (KMP).

Sr. No. Name of the Person Designation

1. Mr. M. P. Patni Whole Time Director

2. Mr. Hemant Jog Chief Financial Officer

3. Ms. Nikisha Solanki Deputy Company Secretary 

Ninth Annual Report

Directors' Report
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MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
The Company held five Board Meetings on 29.05.2019, 07.08.2019, 25.10.2019, 23.01.2020 and 17.03.2020.  

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Composition of Audit Committee

Sr. No. Name of the Person Designation

1. Mr. Ramendra Gupta Chairman 

2. Mr. M. P. Patni              Member

3. Mr. Abhiram Seth Member

4. Dr. V. N. Gupchup Member

NOMINATION AND REMUNEATION COMMITTEE
Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Sr. No. Name of the Person Designation

1.  Dr. V. N. Gupchup Chairman

2.  Mr. Abhiram Seth Member

3.  Mr. Rajesh Sharma Member

REMUNERATION POLICY
The Board has on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection and appointment of 
Director. The salient features of the policy are as under:

(I) Criteria for Determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes & Independence of Independent Director:

1. Qualifications of Independent Director:

An Independent director shall possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more fields of finance, law, 
management, sales, marketing, administration, research, corporate governance, operations or other disciplines related 
to the company's business. 

2. Positive attributes of Independent Directors:

An independent director shall be a person of integrity, who possesses relevant expertise and experience and who shall 
uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity; act objectively and constructively; exercise his responsibilities in a bona-
fide manner in the interest of the company; devote sufficient time and attention to his professional obligations for informed 
and balanced decision making; and assist the company in implementing the best corporate governance practices. 

3. Independence of Independent Directors:

An Independent director should meet the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 concerning independence of 
directors. 

(II) Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees

A. NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (NEDs)

NEDs shall be paid a sitting fee of Rs. 25,000/- for every meeting of the board, Rs. 10,000/- for other committees there of 
attended by them as member.

NEDs may be paid commission upto an aggregate amount not exceeding 1% of the net profits of the company for the year 
subject to availability of profits. The payment of commission shall be based on their attendance at the board and the 
committee meetings as member. 

Additional commission, apart from commission referred to above, may be paid to non-executive directors as may be 
decided by the board of directors of the company from time to time, depending on the extra time and effort as may be 
devoted and contribution as may be made by the non-executive directors.

The company has no stock options plans and no payment by way of bonus, pension, incentives etc. shall be paid.
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 B. MANAGING DIRECTOR (MD) & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL & OTHER EMPLOYEES 

The objective of the policy is directed towards having a compensation philosophy and structure that will reward and retain 
talent. 

The Remuneration to Managing Director shall take into account the Company's overall performance, MD's contribution 
for the same & trends in the industry in general, in a manner which will ensure and support a high performance culture. 

The Remuneration to others will be such as to ensure that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and 
meets appropriate performance benchmarks.

Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management will involve a balance between fixed and 
incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its 
goals.

The above criteria and policy are subject to review by the Nomination & Remuneration committee & the Board of Directors 
of the Company.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY AND VIGIL MECHANISM FOR DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES 
Pursuant to section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 a Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanism have been established for 
directors and employees of the Company to report their genuine concerns. The vigil mechanism provides adequate safeguards 
against victimization of persons who use such mechanism and have direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in 
appropriate and exceptional case.

LOANS, GUARNATEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186
The details of loans, guarantees or investment covered under section 186 of Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to financial 
statement.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES
The details of contracts or arrangement with related parties are given in the notes to financial statement.

All transactions entered with related parties for the year under review were on arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of 
business and that the provisions of section 188 of the companies Act 2013, are not attracted.

Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 your Company does 
not have any subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures. Accordingly, AOC-1 does not form part of the report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company, will be provided upon request. In terms of Section 136 
of the Act, the Report and Accounts are being sent to the Members and others entitled thereto, excluding the information on 
employees’ particulars which is available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during business 
hours on working days of the Company up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any Member is interested in 
obtaining a copy thereof, such Member may write to the Company in this regard.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS.
There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the going concern status of the 
Company and its future operations.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to Directors' Responsibility 
Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

st(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31  March, 2020, the applicable accounting standards have been 
followed along with proper explanation given relating to material departures;

(ii) appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates were made that 
were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial 
year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

(iii) proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities have been taken to the best of their knowledge;

st(iv) the annual accounts have been prepared for the financial year ended 31  March, 2020 on a going concern basis.

(v) proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and were operating effectively.

(vi) systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were adequate and operating 
effectively.

RISKS, THREATS, CONCERNS AND RISK MITIGATION
Risk mitigation has been a priority of the management's agenda. A structured method of evaluating risk, its impact, evolving a 
mitigation plan and continuous monitoring of performance against the plan is operational.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Your Board conveys its deep appreciation of the co-operation extended by customers, suppliers, banks, financial institutions, 
contribution made by employees for the company's growth and shareholders.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

M. P. Patni

Chairman

Place:  Mumbai
thDated: 24  June, 2020
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Annexure I

Form No.MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
stAs on the financial year ended on 31  March 2020

[Pursuant to section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12 (1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

 

I.  REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN : U74200MH2011PLC216024

thii) Registration Date : 11  April 2011

iii) Name of the Company : Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

iv) Category/ Sub-Category of the Company : Public Company / Company Limited by Shares    

v) Address of the Registered office and : Ion House, Dr. E.Moses Road, 

 contact details Mahalaxmi, Mumbai -  400 011

Tel: 022 - 62312042 Fax: 022 - 24938737,  

Email: ieil@ionexchange.co.in, Website: www.ionindia.com 

vi) Whether listed company : No

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of 

Registrar and Transfer  Agent, if any : TSR Darashaw Consltants Pvt ltd.

6-10 Haji Moosa Patrawala Industrial Estate, 

20, Dr. E. Moses Road, Mahalaxmi, Mumbai 400 011

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sr. No. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the Product/service % to total turnover of the 
products/services company

1 Project Management Services 43299 85%

III.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

Sr. Name and Address of CIN/GLN Holding / Subsidiary % of Shares Held Applicable 
No.  the Company / Associate  Section

1 Ion Exchange  (India) L74999MH1964PLC014258 Holding 91.81 2 (46)

 Limited Ion House  

 Dr. E. Moses Road,  

 Mahalaxmi, 

Mumbai 400 011
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IV. SHAREHOLDINGPATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year (01.04.2019) No. of Shares held at the end of the year (31.03.2020) %
Change 

during the 
year

Demat Physical Total % of Total

Shares

% of 

Total

Shares

Demat Physical Total

A. Promoters (including Promoter Group) 

(1) Indian          

a) Individual/HUF 0 59,790 59,790 0.39 59,784 6 59,790 0.39

b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) State Govt (s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d) Bodies Corp. 0 13,968,634 13,968,634 91.81 13,968,634 0 13,968,634 91.81 0

e) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f)  Any Other…. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total(A)(1):- 0 14,028,424 14,028,424 92.20 14,028,418 6 14,028,424 92.20 0

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs-Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Other- Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) Any Other…. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total(A)(2):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total share holding of 0 14,028,424 14,028,424 92.20 14,028,418 6 14,028,424 92.20 0
Promoter 
(A) = (A) (1) + (A) (2)

B.    Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) Central  Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

g) FIIs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

h) Foreign Venture Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Funds

i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total(B)(1):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp. 0 891,799 891,799 5.86 0 891,799 891,799 5.86 0

b) Individuals 0 294,977 294,977 1.94 0 294,977 294,977 1.94 0

c) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total(B)(2):- 0 1,186,776 1,186,776 7.8 0 1,186,776 1,186,776 7.8 0

Total Public Share holding 0 1,186,776 1,186,776 7.8 0 1,186,776 1,186,776 7.8 0
(B) = (B) (1) + (B) (2)

C. Shares held by Custodian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
 for GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C) 0 15,215,200 15,215,200 100 0 15,215,200 15,215,200 100 0
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters (including Promoter Group)

Sr. 
No.

Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year (01.04.2019)

Shareholding at the end of the year 
(31.03.2020)

No. of 
Shares

% of Total 
Shares 
of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 

Encumbered 
to Total 
Shares

No. of 
Shares

% of 
Total 

Shares 
of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 

Encumbered 
to Total 
Shares

% 
change 
in share
holding 
during 

the year

1 Rajesh Sharma 29,893 0.20 0 29,893 0.20 0 0

2 Dinesh Sharma 29,893 0.19 0 29,893 0.19 0 0

3 Milind Puranik 1 0.00 0 1 0.00 0 0

4 L V Keshav 1 0.00 0 1 0.00 0 0

5 Ajay Popat 1 0.00 0 1 0.00 0 0

6 N M Ranadive 1 0.00 0 1 0.00 0 0

7 Ion Exchange (India) Ltd. 13,968,634 91.81 0 13,968,634 91.81 0 0

 Total 14,028,424 92.20 0 14,028,424 92.20 0 0.00

(iii) Change in Promoters Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change): Nil

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

Sr. 
No.

Name

No of 
shares as 

on 
31.03.2019

No of 
shares as

on 
31.03.2020

Net 
Changes

% to 
Capital

1 M/s. Rockmen Merchants Limited 828,199 828,199 –

2 M/s. Neer Infrastructure Projects Pvt. Ltd.  63,600 63,600 – –

3 Mrs. Ahalya Ranganathan 29,892 29,892 – –

4 Ms. Devi Menon & Ms. Radha Menon 29,892 29,892 – –

5 Mr. P. Sampathkumar Mrs. Rama Sampathkumar 29,892 29,892 – –

6 Mrs. Rajkumari Nambiar 17,935 17,935 – –

7 Ms. Anita Agarwal 15,900 15,900 – –

8 Mr. Ajay Agarwal 15,900 15,900 – –

9 Mrs. Poonam Sharma 11,957 11,957 – –

10 Mrs. Aruna Sharma 11,957 11,957 – –

–
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(v) Share holding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Sr. 
No.

 1 Rajesh Sharma 29,893 0.20 29,893 0.20

 2 Mahabir Prasad Patni 29,893 0.20 29,893 0.20

 3 Dinesh Sharma 29,893 0.19 29,893 0.19

 4 Aankur Patni 29,892 0.20 29,892 0.20

 5 Thekkekara Meloth Mohan 11,957 0.08 11,957 0.08
Nambiar

 6 Vijay Narhar Gupchup 29,892 0.20 29,892 0.20

For Each of the Directors and KMP Share holding at the beginning of 
the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of Shares % of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

No. of Shares % of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/ accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans 
Excluding Deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 
financial year
i) Principal Amount 7,007,071 248,345,851 255,352,886
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total(i+ii+iii) 7,007,071 248,345,851 - 255,352,886

Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year
• Addition - 422,608,083 - 422,608,038
• Reduction 7,007,071 556,289,465 - 563,296,536

Net Change (7,007,071) (133,681,427) - (140,688,388)

Indebtedness at the
End of the financial year
I) Principal Amount - 114,664,388 - 114,664,388
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total(i+ii+iii) - 114,664,388 - 114,664,388

Amount in Rupees
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B. Remuneration to other directors:

1. Independent Directors

Sr. 
No.

Particulars of 

Remuneration

Name of Directors Total Amount
(Rs.)Dr. V. N.

 Gupchup

T M M Nambiar Abhiram Seth Ramendra 

Gupta

• Fee for attending board/ 
Committee metings

• Commission - - - - -

• Others, please specify - - - - -

Total (1) 145,000 135,000 145,000 145,000 570,000

145,000 135,000 145,000 570,000145,000

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sr.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Total Amount
(Rs.)

Name of MD/WTD/
Manager

M. P. PATNI

1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17 (1) 9,321,845 9,321,845

of the Income -taxAct,1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s17(2) Income-taxAct,1961 235,683 235,683

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-taxAct,1961 - -

Total 9,557,528 9,557,528

2. Stock Option - -

3. Sweat Equity - -

4. Commission

- As % of profit

- others, specify… - -

5. Others, please specify - -

Retirals

Total(A) 9,557,528 9,557,528
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2. Other Non-Executive Directors

Sr. 
No.

Particulars of 

Remuneration

Name of Directors Total Amount
(Rs.)Rajesh Sharma Dinesh Sharma Aankur Patni

• Fee for attending board/ 
Committee metings

• Commission - - - -

• Others, please specify - - - -

Total (2) 125,000 100,000 100,000 325,000

Total (B) = (1+2) 895,000

Total Managerial Remuneration 895,000

125,000 100,000 325,000100,000

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD / MANAGER / WTD

Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

CFO Total (Rs.)

Mr. Hemant Jog

1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 441,108 2,572,180
     

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-taxAct,1961 58,899 38,400

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17 (3) - -
     Income-tax Act,1961  

2. Stock Option NIL NIL

3. Sweat Equity NIL NIL

4. Commission

- As % of profit NIL NIL

- others, specify…

5. Others, please specify: - 220,062

Retirals

Total 500,007 2,830,642

section17(1) of the Income-taxAct,1961

VII. PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: Not Applicable

       

On behalf of Board of Directors

M. P. Patni
Chairman

Mumbai
th Date: 24 June, 2020

Deputy Company Secretary

Ms. Nikisha Solanki
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To the Members of 

Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 
balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give 
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and loss and 
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Company’s Director report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. The Directors Report is not made available to us at the date of auditor’s report. We 
have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect 
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Independent Auditors' Report
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company 
has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by Management and Board of Directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear 
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government in terms of 

Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order., to 
the extent applicable.

2. (A) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes 
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 
of the Act.

Independent Auditors' Report (Continued)

Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2020 taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to  financial statements of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31st March 2020 on its financial position in its 
financial statements – Refer Note 36 to the financial statements.

2. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses as at 31st March 2020.

3. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company.

4. The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes during the 
period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made in these financial statements since they do 
not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2020.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its 
directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any 
director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed 
other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For B S R & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

 

Bhavesh Dhupelia

Partner

Membership No: 042070

UDIN : 20042070AAAACJ2736

Mumbai

24 June 2020
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(Referred to in our report of even date)

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed 
assets (Property, plant and equipment).

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed assets (Property, plant 
and equipment) are verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is 
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed 
on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company does not have immovable properties.

(ii) The inventory has been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion, the 
frequency of such verification is reasonable. According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the 
book records were not material.

(iii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured 
or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under 
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, paragraphs (iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any loan, made any 
investment, given any guarantee, or provided any security under Section 185 and 186 of the Act.  Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iv) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted deposits as per 
the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India under the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of 
the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost 
records under Section 148 (1) of the Act for any of the activities carried out by the Company.

 (vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the 
Company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state 
insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, goods and services tax, cess, professional tax and other material statutory dues, 
as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, 
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, goods and services tax, cess, professional tax and other 
material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they 
became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of 
custom, duty of excise, value added tax and goods and service tax which have not been deposited with the appropriate 
authorities on account of dispute other than those mentioned in the below:

Name of Nature of dues Amount   Period which the Forum where dispute 
(in Rs.) amount relates is pending

Central Sales tax Act, 1956,  Central Sales tax & 621,019 2013-2014 Joint Commissioner of  
West Bengal Interest/Penalty Commercial Taxes

Central Sales Tax, 1956,  Central Sales tax &  9,877 2014-15 Deputy Commissioner of  
West Bengal Interest/Penalty Commercial Taxes

Central Sales Tax, 1956,  Central Sales tax &  4,569,794 2011-12 Deputy Commissioner of  
Jharkhand Interest/Penalty Commercial Taxes

Central Sales Tax, 1956, Central Sales tax &  2,682,208 2012-13 Deputy Commissioner of  
Jharkhand Interest/Penalty Commercial Taxes

Central Sales Tax, 1956, Central Sales tax &  953,759 2015-16 Deputy Commissioner of  
West Bengal Interest/Penalty Commercial Taxes

Statute  

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2020
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(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any loans or 
borrowings from a financial institution, bank, Government or dues to debenture holders. 

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records, the Company has not 
raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(x) During the course of the examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally 
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come 
across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported 
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the management.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records, the Company has paid 
or provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 
read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act, where applicable. The details of such related 
party transactions have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 
(Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 
2016. Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee under section 177 of the Act and accordingly, to 
this extent, the paragraph 3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records, the Company has not 
made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records, the Company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered 
under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

For B S R & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

 

Bhavesh Dhupelia

Partner

Membership No: 042070

UDIN : 20042070AAAACJ2736

Mumbai

24 June 2020

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2020 (Continued)
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid financial 
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (A) (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report of even date)

Opinion
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering 
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established 
and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2020



Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statement
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

 

Bhavesh Dhupelia

Partner

Membership No: 042070

UDIN : 20042070AAAACJ2736

Mumbai

24 June 2020
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 Balance sheet as at 31st March 2020

Notes  As at  As at 

 31st Mar 2020  31st Mar 2019  

 INR in lakhs  INR in lakhs 

ASSETS

Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 2 46.30  46.97 

(b) Right of use assets 2A  86.13  -   

(c) Financial assets

(i) Investments 7 9.85  9.85 

(ii) Trade receivables 3 330.46  1,062.06 

(iii) Loans 4 0.95  1.20 

(d) Other non-current assets 5  28.29  28.29 

(e) Non-current tax assets 6  1.64  4.37  

Total non-current assets  503.62  1,152.74  

Current assets

(a) Inventories 8  11.40  11.51 

(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 3  1,527.97  2,599.94 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 9  135.23  36.73 

(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 10  111.39  165.35 

(iv) Loans 4  30.73  31.72 

(v) Others 11 0.11  1.59 

(c) Other current assets 5 130.71  175.53 

(d) Current tax assets 6 106.90  115.44  

Total current assets  2,054.44  3,137.81 

Total assets  2,558.06  4,290.55  

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 12  1,521.52  1,521.52   

(b) Other equity 13  (2,939.38)  (2,793.67) 

Total equity (1,417.86)  (1,272.15)

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 14  1,141.92  1,146.64 

(ii) Lease liabilities 15  24.81  -   

(b) Provisions 16 93.87  91.96 

Total non-current liabilities 1,260.60  1,238.60  

Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

 (i) Borrowings 14 -    1,406.88 

(ii) Lease liabilities 15 69.00  -   

(iii) Trade payables 17

- Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises  6.05  18.46 

- Total outstanding dues to creditors other than small enterprises and micro enterprises  2,077.43  2,349.52 

(iv) Other financial liabilities 18 233.80  199.80 

(b) Other current liabilities 19  275.18  318.34 

(c) Provisions 16 53.86  31.10

Total current liabilities 2,715.32  4,324.10   

Total liabilities 3,975.92  5,562.70  

Total equity and liabilities 2,558.06  4,290.55   

Significant accounting policies 1

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For B S R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of 
Chartered Accountants Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022 CIN No. : U74200MH2011PLC216024

Bhavesh Dhupelia Hemant Jog Nikisha Solanki Rajesh Sharma M. P. Patni

Partner                             Chief financial officer Company Secretary Director Whole Time Director

Membership No: 042070 DIN : 00515486 DIN : 00515553

Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai
24 June 2020 24 June 2020 24 June 2020 24 June 2020 24 June 2020
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Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March 2020

Notes Year ended  Year ended 
31st Mar 2020  31st Mar 2019 
 INR in lakhs  INR in lakhs

(a) Income

Revenue from operations 20  2,860.01  3,281.87 

Other income 21  17.96  66.76 

Total Income (I) 2,877.97  3,348.63 

(b) Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 22  88.77  258.19 

Employee benefits expense 23  1,955.98  1,595.58 

Finance costs 24  388.32  473.70 

Depreciation and amortization 25  80.39  22.21 

Other expenses 26  523.91  965.11 

Total expenses (II) 3,037.37  3,314.79 

(Loss) / profit before tax (III) ( a - b )  (159.40)  33.84 

(c) Tax expense 39 

Total tax expenses -    -   

(Loss) / profit after tax (159.40)  33.84 

(d) Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(i) Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans 27  (10.33)  (1.78)

Total Other Comprehensive Income (IV) (10.33)  (1.78)

Total Comprehensive Income  (III + IV) (169.73)  32.06 

Earnings per equity share: [Nominal value of shares INR 10 
(previous year : INR 10)] (basic and diluted)
Computed on the basis of (loss) / profit for the year 28  (1.05) 0.22 

Significant accounting policies 1

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For B S R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of 
Chartered Accountants Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022 CIN No. : U74200MH2011PLC216024

Bhavesh Dhupelia Hemant Jog Nikisha Solanki Rajesh Sharma M. P. Patni

Partner                             Chief financial officer Company Secretary Director Whole Time Director

Membership No: 042070 DIN : 00515486 DIN : 00515553

Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai
24 June 2020 24 June 2020 24 June 2020 24 June 2020 24 June 2020
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Statement of changes in Equity as on 31st March 2020

A. Equity share capital

31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019

Number of shares INR in Lakhs Number of shares INR in Lakhs

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity  15,215,200 1,521.52 15,215,200 1,521.52
shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity  15,215,200  1,521.52  15,215,200  1,521.52
shares outstanding at the end of the year  

B. Other equity

Reserve and Surplus Total other equity

Capital reserve General reserve Retained earnings

INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs

Balance as at 1st April 2018 76.64  88.48  (3,019.43)  (2,854.31)

Profit for the year (a)  33.84  33.84 

Corporate guarantee commission 28.58  28.58 

Other Comprehensive Income (b) (1.78)  (1.78)

Total comprehensive income for the year (a+b) 28.58  -    32.06  60.64 

Balance as at 31st March 2019 105.22  88.48  (2,987.37)  (2,793.67)

Loss for the year (c) (159.40)  (159.40)

Corporate guarantee commission 27.84  27.84 

IND AS 116 Lease transition impact (3.82)  (3.82)

Other Comprehensive Income (d) (10.33)  (10.33)

Total comprehensive income for the year (c+d) 27.84  -    (173.55)  (145.71)

Balance as at 31st March 2020 133.06  88.48  (3,160.92)  (2,939.38)

As per our report of even date

For B S R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of 
Chartered Accountants Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022 CIN No. : U74200MH2011PLC216024

Bhavesh Dhupelia Hemant Jog Nikisha Solanki Rajesh Sharma M. P. Patni

Partner                             Chief financial officer Company Secretary Director Whole Time Director

Membership No: 042070 DIN : 00515486 DIN : 00515553

Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai
24 June 2020 24 June 2020 24 June 2020 24 June 2020 24 June 2020
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 Cash flow statement for the year ended 31stMarch 2020

Year ended  Year ended 

31st Mar 2020  31st Mar 2019 
 INR in Lakhs  INR in Lakhs

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net (loss) / profit before tax as per statement of profit and loss   (159.40)  33.84

Adjustment for :

Depreciation and amortization expense 80.39  22.21 

(Profit) / loss on assets sold / discarded (0.20)  10.69 

Corporate Guarantee Charges 27.84  28.58 

Finance cost 388.32  473.70 

Provision for doubtful debts / Bad debts written off -    398.91 

Interest income (17.50)  (62.43)   

Operating profit before working capital changes   319.45  905.50 

Adjustment for :

Decrease in trade receivables 1,812.17  1,155.15 

Decrease in inventories 0.11  9.50 

Decrease in loans and advances 46.07  2.04 

(Decrease) in trade payables (284.51)  (380.49)

(Decrease) in other liabilities (9.16)  (62.97)

Increase in provisions 14.35  21.42 

Cash generated from operations 1,898.48  1,650.16 

Taxes refund / (paid) 11.27  (43.71)

Net cash generated from operating activities         (A)  1,909.75  1,606.45 

B. Cash flow from investing activities:

Purchase of fixed assets  (14.98)  (20.95)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 0.20  7.29 

Investments made in fellow subsidiaries -    0.01

Bank deposit during the year (1.68)  (6.34)

Bank deposit matured during the year  55.65  23.17 

Interest received 10.36  8.67 

Net cash generated from investing activities          (B)  49.55  11.85  

C. Cash flow from financing activities:

(Repayment) of loan from Holding company (1,341.54)  (1,086.16)

(Repayment) of borrowings (70.07)  (64.13)

Payment toawards lease liabilities (73.97)  -   

Finance cost (375.22)  (473.70)

Net cash (used) in financing activities        (C)  (1,860.80)  (1,623.99)

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A)+(B)+(C)  98.50  (5.69)

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year  36.73  42.42 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  135.23  36.73
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Notes: 

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard 
(Ind AS-7) - Statement of Cash Flow

2. Cash and cash equivalents excludes the following balances with bank:

   (a)  On margin money account INR 111.39 (previous year : INR 165.35 Lakhs)

 Year ended  Year ended 

31st Mar 2020  31st Mar 2019 
 INR in Lakhs  INR in Lakhs

Bank balances disclosed under current assets [Note 9]   133.31  33.87 

Cash and cash equivalents disclosed under non-current assets [Note 9]  1.92  2.86

Total cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet   135.23  36.73

 

As per our report of even date

For B S R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of 
Chartered Accountants Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022 CIN No. : U74200MH2011PLC216024

Bhavesh Dhupelia Hemant Jog Nikisha Solanki Rajesh Sharma M. P. Patni

Partner                             Chief financial officer Company Secretary Director Whole Time Director

Membership No: 042070 DIN : 00515486 DIN : 00515553

Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai
24 June 2020 24 June 2020 24 June 2020 24 June 2020 24 June 2020

 Cash flow statement for the year ended 31stMarch 2020 (contd....)
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Overview of the Company

Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited is a closely held public company, registered under the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company is into business of execution of large EPC projects related to water treatments and provide design, supply, erection 
and commissioning of projects in industries related to power, steel, petrochemical and other sectors.

1. Significant accounting policies

1.1 Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified 
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, the relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’’).

1.2. Basis of preparation 

These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis of 
accounting except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each 
reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been applied consistently 
over all the periods presented in these financial statements.

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 24th June 2020.

The operating cycle is determined for each project separately based on the expected execution period of the contract. 

1.3 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts 
have been rounded off to two decimal places to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

1.4 Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following:

• certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value; and

• net defined benefit (asset)/ liability that are measured at fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit 
obligations.

1.5 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires use of judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The 
actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively. Assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a 
significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ended 31st  March 2020 are as follows:

a) Evaluation of percentage completion

Determination of revenues under the percentage of completion method necessarily involves making estimates, some of 
which are technical in nature, concerning, where relevant, the percentage of completion, costs to completion, expected 
revenues from the project or activity and the foreseeable losses to completion. Estimates of project income, as well as 
project costs, are reviewed periodically. The effect of changes, if any, to estimates is recognized in the financial 
statements for the period in which such changes are determined.

 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2020
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1. Significant accounting policies (contd....)

1.5 Use of estimates (contd....)

b) Property, plant and equipment

Determination of the estimated useful lives of tangible assets and the assessment as to which components of the cost 
may be capitalised. Useful lives of tangible assets are based on the life prescribed in Schedule II of the Act. In cases, 
where the useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule II, they are based on technical advice, taking into 
account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of 
replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and maintenance support.

c) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial 
assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation, actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount rate is 
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The period to maturity 
of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations.

1.6 Going  Concern Basis

As at 31st March 2020, the Company’s paid up capital was INR 1,521.52 Lakhs and correspondingly, the Company’s 
accumulated losses as at that date aggregated to INR 3,160.92 Lakhs and the loss during the year is of INR 159.40 Lakhs. 
The company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by INR 660.88 Lakhs. 

However, management believes that the Company will be able to continue operations on a going concern basis and meet all 
its liabilities as they fall due for payment in the foreseeable future based on the following: 

- business strategies and operating plans which will enable the Company to expand its operations and achieve higher 
income and generate positive cash flows;

- continued support, as required from holding company Ion Exchange (India) Limited.

Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and do not include any adjustments 
relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded assets, or to amounts and classification of liabilities that might 
result if the Company is unable to continue as a going concern. 

1.7 Measurement of fair values

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values, which includes 
overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values by the management. The management 
regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes 
or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence obtained from the third 
parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value 
hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as 
possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation 
techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly            
(i.e. as prices) or  indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)."

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the 
fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is 
significant to the entire measurement. The company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end 
of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.
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1. Significant accounting policies (contd....)

1.8 Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes taxes, duties, freight and other 
incidental expenses directly related to acquisition/construction and installation of the assets.  Any trade discounts and 
rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Depreciation is provided on straight line basis based on life assigned to each asset in accordance with Schedule II of the 
Act or as per life estimated by the Management, whichever is lower, as stated below.

Assets Useful lives

Plant and machinery 10-15 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 4-8 years

Office equipments 3-5 years

Site equipments are depreciated over 3 years.

Leasehold assets are depreciated over the period of lease.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if 
appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further 
benefit is expected from its use and disposal. Gains / losses arising from disposal are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

b) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost and are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and impairment.

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The amortization period 
and the amortization method are reviewed at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is 
significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly.

Computer software is amortised on a straight line basis over the period of 5 years.

An intangible asset is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is expected from its 
use and disposal. Gains / losses arising from disposal are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

c) Impairment

Impairment loss, if any, is provided to the extent the carrying amount of assets exceeds their recoverable amount. 
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's net selling price and its value in use. Carrying amounts of assets are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date for any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. Value in use is 
the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its 
disposal at end of its useful life. In assessing value in use, the present value is discounted using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. Net selling price is 
the amount obtainable from sale of an asset in an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less 
the costs of disposal.
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1. Significant accounting policies (contd....)

1.8 Summary of significant accounting policies (contd....)

d) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Exchange 
differences arising on the settlement of monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded 
during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the year in 
which they arise. Foreign currency monetary items are reported at the year-end rates. Exchange differences arising on 
reinstatement of foreign currency monetary items are recognized as income or expense in the statement of profit and 
loss. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported 
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

e) Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Contract cost that has been incurred and relates to the future activity of the contract are recognized as contract work-in-
progress as it is probable that it will be recovered from the customer.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion 
and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

f) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet when the company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. The company determines the classification of its financial assets and financial 
liabilities at initial recognition based on its nature and characteristics.

A. Financial assets

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

The financial assets include equity and debt securities, trade and other receivables, loans and advances, cash and bank 
balances and derivative financial instruments.

(ii) Classification and Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in the following categories:

a.  At amortised cost,

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in 
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash 
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

b.  At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), and

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

c.  At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

All financial assets are reviewed for impairment at least at each reporting date to identify whether there is any objective 
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

(iv) De-recognition

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires 
or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.
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1. Significant accounting policies (contd....)

1.8 Summary of significant accounting policies (contd....)

f) Financial instruments  (contd....)

B.

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities classified at amortised 
cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, derivative 
financial instruments, etc.

(ii) Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

•  Financial liabilities at amortised cost, and

•  Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

- Financial liabilities excluding financial instruments at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains 
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as well as through the EIR amortisation 
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

- Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts. Such derivative financial 
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are 
subsequently re-measured at fair value at each reporting period. Any changes therein are generally recognised in the 
profit and loss account.

(iii) De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

g) Retirement and other employee benefits

i) Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund managed by Government Authorities and Superannuation Fund are 
defined contribution scheme and the contribution is charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when the 
contribution to the respective fund is due. There is no other obligation other than the contribution payable.

ii) Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on Projected Unit 
Credit method made at the end of each financial year. Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which 
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling              
(if any, excluding interest), are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

iii) Short term employee benefits are charged off at the undiscounted amount in the year in which the related service is 
rendered.  

iv) Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is done as per 
Projected Unit Credit method made at the end of each financial year. The company presents the leave liability as non-
current in the balance sheet, to the extent it has an unconditional right to defer its settlement for a period beyond 12 
months, and balance amount is presented as current.  

v) The Company’s approved provident fund scheme is a defined contribution plan. The contribution paid/ payable under 
the schemes is recognized as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss during the year in which the employee 
renders the related service. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund. 
There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective fund.

Financial liabilities
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1. Significant accounting policies (contd....)

1.8 Summary of significant accounting policies (contd....)

h) Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the assets is transferred to the customer, 
generally on delivery of the goods.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers for an amount that 
reflects the consideration which the company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

• Revenue related to fixed price maintenance and support services contracts where the company is standing ready to 
provide services is recognised based on time elapsed mode and revenue is straight lined over the period of 
performance.

• In respect of other fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised using percentage-of-completion method (‘POC 
method’) of accounting with contract costs incurred determining the degree of completion of the performance 
obligation. The contract costs used in computing the revenues include cost of fulfilling warranty obligations.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts and 
incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer.

Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Revenue from holding company is recognised based on transaction price which is at arm’s length.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets are 
classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and 
only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability”) is recognised when there are billings in excess of revenues.

The billing schedules agreed with customers include periodic performance based payments and / or milestone based 
progress payments. Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period.

In accordance with Ind AS 37, the company recognises an onerous contract provision when the unavoidable costs of 
meeting the obligations under a contract exceed the economic benefits to be received.

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and requirements. The company 
reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract, basis which the transaction price could be 
allocated to a new performance obligation, or transaction price of an existing obligation could undergo a change. In the 
event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted for.

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers into categories that depict the nature of services 
and geography.

Use of significant judgments in revenue recognition

• The company’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple products and services to a 
customer. The company assesses the products / services promised in a contract and identify distinct performance 
obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgment to determine the 
deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such deliverables.

• Judgment is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could be either 
a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as volume discounts and 
incentives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the contract includes a 
significant financing component. Any consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to the transaction price, 
unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the customer. The estimated amount of variable 
consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant 
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each 
reporting period. The company allocates the elements of variable considerations to all the performance obligations 
of the contract unless there is observable evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct performance 
obligations.

• The company uses judgment to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance obligation. 
The company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis of the relative standalone 
selling price of each distinct product or service promised in the contract. Where standalone selling price is not 
observable, the company uses the expected cost plus margin approach to allocate the transaction price to each 
distinct performance obligation.
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1. Significant accounting policies (contd....)

1.8 Summary of significant accounting policies (contd....)

h) Revenue recognition  (contd....)

• The company exercises judgment in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time 
or over a period of time. The company considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as services 
are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to payment for 
performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the 
customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

• Revenue for fixed-price contract is recognised using percentage-of-completion method. The company uses 
judgment to estimate the future cost-to-completion of the contracts which is used to determine the degree of 
completion of the performance obligation.

Dividend income is recorded when the right to receive payment is established. Interest income is recognised using the 
effective interest method.

I)  Taxation

i) Provision for current taxation has been made in accordance with the Indian Income tax laws prevailing for the relevant 
assessment years.

ii) Deferred tax is recognized, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing differences being the difference between 
taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more 
subsequent periods. Deferred tax is measured on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the 
balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of 
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.  Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there is 
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be 
realized.    

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Un-
recognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has 
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other 
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either 
in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) or directly in equity.  

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation.  Deferred 
tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available 
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of 
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, future tax 
planning strategies.

j) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that 
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. 
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised 
as finance cost.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but will 
probably not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation of a present obligation in respect of 
which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision disclosure is made.

1.9 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential equity shares.
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1. Significant accounting policies (contd....)

1.10 Segment reporting policies

Identification of segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision 
maker (CODM). The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance 
of the operating segments, has been identified as the Managing Director who makes strategic decisions.

Inter-segment Transfers

The Company accounts for inter-segment sales and transfers at cost plus appropriate margin.

Allocation of common costs

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the turnover of the respective segments.

Unallocated costs

The unallocated segment includes general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any business 
segment.

Segment policies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and 
presenting the financial statements of the company as a whole.

1.11 Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an 
original maturity of three months or less.

1.12 Leases:

Leases are accounted as per Ind AS 116 which has become mandatory from April 1, 2019.

Where the company is the lessor

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified 
as operating leases. Assets given on operating lease by the company are included in property, plant and equipment. Lease 
income is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs, including 
depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, 
brokerage costs, etc. are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Where the company is the lessee

Assets taken on lease are accounted as right-of-use assets and the corresponding lease liability is accounted at the lease 
commencement date.

Initially the right-of-use asset is measured at cost which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any 
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, discounted using the Company’s 
incremental borrowing rate. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an 
index or a rate, or a change in the estimate of the guaranteed residual value, or a change in the assessment of purchase, 
extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the 
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss if the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The right-of-use asset is measured by applying cost model i.e. right-of-use asset at cost less accumulated amortisation and 
cumulative impairment, if any. The right-of-use asset is amortised, using the straight-line method over the period of lease, 
from the commencement date to the end of the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset whichever is earlier. Carrying 
amount of lease liability is increased by interest on lease liability and reduced by lease payments made.

Lease payments associated with following leases are recognised as expense on straight-line basis:

(i) Low value leases; and                 
(ii) Leases which are short-term.

1.13 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset till 
such time that it is required to complete and prepare the assets to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are 
expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with 
the borrowing of funds.
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2. Property, plant and equipment
(INR in Lakhs)   

Plant and Furniture and Vehicles Office Total
machinery fixtures equipments

Gross block

As at 1st April 2019 30.07  22.28  1.92  48.67  102.94 

Addition during the year  -    0.63  -    14.36  14.99  

Disposal during the year  -    -    -    1.20  1.20  

As at 31st March 2020 30.07  22.91  1.92  61.83  116.73 

Depreciation and amortisation

As at 1st April 2019 10.15  16.87  1.79  27.16  55.97 

Depreciation during the year 2.46  2.50  0.06  10.64  15.66 

Deduction during the year -    -    -    1.20  1.20 

As at 31st March 2020 12.61  19.37  1.85  36.60  70.43 

Net carrying value  17.46  3.54  0.07  25.23  46.30

as at 31st March 2020  

Gross block

As at 1st April 2018 53.75  21.77  1.92  30.72  108.16 

Addition during the year  -    0.51  -    20.44  20.95 

Disposal during the year 23.68  -    -    2.49  26.17 

As at 31st March 2019  30.07  22.28  1.92  48.67  102.94 

Depreciation and amortisation

As at 1st April 2018 11.71  12.09  1.66  16.49  41.95 

Depreciation during the year  4.93  4.78  0.13  12.37  22.21 

Deduction during the year 6.49  -    -    1.70  8.19 

As at 31st March 2019 10.15  16.87  1.79  27.16  55.97 

Net carrying value 19.92  5.41  0.13  21.51  46.97 

as at 31st March 2019

2.A Right-of-use assets
(INR in Lakhs)   

Building

Gross block

As at 1st April 2019  -   

On account of transition provisions of Ind AS 116 (Refer note 34)  150.86 

Addition during the year  -   

Disposal during the year  -   

As at 31st March 2020  150.86 

Depreciation and amortisation

As at 1st April 2019  -   

Depreciation and amortisation during the year  64.73 

Deduction during the year  -   

As at 31st March 2020  64.73 

Net carrying value as at 31st March 2020  86.13 
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3. Trade receivables

Non-current Current

As at As at As at As at

31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019

INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs

Trade receivables

Unsecured

Considered good  330.46  1,062.06  1,527.97  2,599.94 

Which have significant increase in credit risk  -    -    -    -   

Credit impaired  -    -    -    -   

 330.46  1,062.06  1,527.97  2,599.94 

Less :  Allowance for trade receivables credit impaired  -    -    -    -   

 330.46  1,062.06  1,527.97  2,599.94 

4. Loans

Non-current Current

 As at As at As at As at

31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019

INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs

Tender, security and other deposits 0.95  1.20  2.14  1.23 

Claims receivables   -    -    0.10  6.12

Loans and advance to employees   -    -    28.49  24.37

0.95  1.20  30.73  31.72

5. Other non current assets

Non-current Current

As at As at As at As at

31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019

INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs

Balance with statutory authorities  28.29  28.29  111.33  122.35 

Advance to suppliers  -    -    1.52  31.93 

Prepaid expenses  -    -    17.86  21.25 

 28.29  28.29  130.71  175.53 

6.  Tax assets

Non-current Current

As at As at As at As at

31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019

INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs

Income tax paid 1.64  4.37  106.90  115.44  

 1.64  4.37  106.90  115.44 
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 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2020 (contd....)
(Currency: Indian Rupees)

7. Non-current investments

As at 31st Mar 2020 As at 31st Mar 2019

Units INR in Lakhs Units INR in Lakhs

Measured at cost in equity shares

Unquoted, fully paid-up

Astha Technical Services Private Limited**   -

Measured at fair value through profit and loss in equity 
shares of others

Unquoted, fully paid-up

Total Water Management Services (India) Limited of 
INR 10 each**  11779  9.84 11779  9.84

Ion Exchange Environment Management Ltd. of INR 10 each 
(Formerly Known as Ion Exchange Waterleau Limited) 50  0.01 50  0.01

 (A)  9.85  9.85 

Total non current investments (A) 9.85  9.85 

Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments   9.85  9.85 

** Astha Technical Services Limited, an associate of Ion Exchange (India) Limited was amalgamated with Total Water 
Management Services (India) Limited, a subsidiary of Ion Exchange (India) Limited w.e.f. 1st April 2017 as per order dated 24th 
August 2017 received from The National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench. As per the scheme, 11,779 shares were issued 
by Total Water Management Services (India) Limited on 24th January 2018 in lieu of shares held in Astha Technical Services 
Limited.

8. Inventories

(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

As at As at

31st Mar 2020  31st Mar 2019

INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs

Raw materials   11.40  11.51 

 11.40  11.51

9. Cash and cash equivalents

 As at As at

31st Mar 2020  31st Mar 2019

INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs

Balances with banks

On current accounts   133.31  33.87 

Cash on hand  1.92  2.86 

 135.23  36.73 
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(Currency: Indian Rupees)

10. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

 As at  As at 

 31st Mar 2020  31st Mar 2019  

 INR in Lakhs  INR in Lakhs  

On margin money account *  111.39  165.35  

 111.39  165.35  

*Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of INR 111.39 Lakhs (previous year : INR 165.35 Lakhs) are subject to first 
charge to secure bank guarantees issued by a bank on behalf of the Company. 

11. Others financial assets

 As at  As at 

 31st Mar 2020  31st Mar 2019  

 INR in Lakhs  INR in Lakhs   

Interest accrued on margin money  0.11  1.59  

 0.11  1.59

 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2020 (contd....)
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(Currency: Indian Rupees)

12. Equity share capital

As at 31st Mar 2020 As at 31st Mar 2019

No of shares INR in Lakhs No of shares INR in Lakhs

Authorised capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each.  2,00,00,000  2,000.00  2,00,00,000  2,000.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each.  1,52,15,200  1,521.52  1,52,15,200  1,521.52

  1,521.52  1,521.52

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at 31st Mar 2020 As at 31st Mar 2019

No of shares INR in Lakhs No of shares INR in Lakhs

At the end of the year  1,52,15,200  1,521.52  1,52,15,200  1,521.52 

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share.  Each holder of equity shares is entitled 
to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of 
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company 
after distribution of preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders.

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company *

As at 31st Mar 2020 As at 31st Mar 2019

No of shares % holding No of shares % holding

-Ion Exchange (India) Limited, the holding Company 
and its nominees  1,39,68,640 91.81%  1,39,68,640 91.81%

 -Rockmen Merchants Limited  8,28,199 5.44%  8,28,199 5.44%

* As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from 
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

(d) Aggregate number of share issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately 
preceding the reporting date.

The aggregate number of equity shares issued pursuant to scheme of amalgamation, without payment being received in cash in 
immediately preceding last five years ended on 31st March 2020 : 5,215,200 share (Previous period of five years ended               
31st March 2019 : 5,215,200 shares)
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(Currency: Indian upees)

13. Other equity

   As at  As at 

  31st Mar 2020  31st Mar 2019

   INR in Lakhs  INR in Lakhs 

 

General reserve

Balance as at Beginning and at the end of the year  88.48  88.48 

 88.48  88.48 

Capital Reserve

Balance as at Beginning of the year  105.22  76.64 

Addition during the year  27.84  28.58 

Balance as at the end of the year  133.06  105.22 

Retained earnings

Balance as at April 1  (2,987.37)  (3,019.43)

(Loss) / Profit for the year  (159.40)  33.84 

IND AS 116 Lease transition impact  (3.82)

Other Comprehensive Income  (10.33)  (1.78)

 (3,160.92)  (2,987.37)

 (2,939.38)  (2,793.67)

Notes

a) Description of nature and purpose of each reserve

General reserve: The balance represents General reserve of amalgamated company transferred on amalgamation.

Capital Reserve: Guarantee Commission payable to holding Company. 



(Crrency: Indian Rupees)

14. Borrowings

Non-current Current

As at As at As at As at

31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019

INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs

Working capital loan from banks (secured) - 
[Refer note (a) below] -    -    -    70.07 

Loan from holding company (unsecured) [Refer note 
(b) below] & Refer Notes to Account note No. 33)  1,141.92  1,146.64  -    1,336.81 

  1,141.92  1,146.64  -    1,406.88

 

The above amount includes 

Secured borrowings -    -    -    70.07

Unsecured borrowings    1,141.92  1,146.64  -    1,336.81 

 1,141.92  1,146.64  -    1,406.88 

(a) Working capital loan from bank is secured by hypothecation of book debts and stocks by way of first charge and corporate 
guarantee of Holding Company - Ion Exchange (India) Limited. The working capital loan is repayable on demand and currently 
carries an interest @ 14.30% p.a., computed on monthly basis on the actual amount utilised.

(b) Working capital loan @ 14 % p.a. INR 1.05 Lakhs is secured by hypothecation of book debts and stocks by way of first charge and 
corporate guarantee of Holding Company - Ion Exchange (India) Limited.

(c) Loan taken from Holding Company - Ion Exchange (India) Limited carries interest @ 12% p.a. is payable half yearly.  INR 
1,141.92 Lakhs is Payable on demand.

15. Lease liabilities

Non-current Current

As at As at As at As at

31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019

INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs

Lease liabilities  24.81  -    69.00  - 

 24.81  -    69.00  -

16. Provisions

Non-current Current

As at As at As at As at

31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019

INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs

Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 29)  93.87  91.96  53.86  31.10 

 93.87  91.96  53.86  31.10

 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2020 (contd....)
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 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2020 (contd....)

17. Trade payables

 As at  As at 

31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019

 INR in Lakhs  INR in Lakhs  

Trade payables (including acceptances)

- Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 37)  6.05  18.46    

- Total outstanding dues to creditors other than small enterprises and micro enterprises  2,077.43  2,349.52  

 2,083.48  2,367.98

 18. Other financial liabilities

 As at  As at 

31st Mar 2020  31st Mar 2019 

 INR in Lakhs  INR in Lakhs 

Employee benefits payable   233.80  199.80

 233.80  199.80   

19. Other current liabilities

 As at  As at  

31st Mar 2020  31st Mar 2019  

 INR in Lakhs  INR in Lakhs 

Advance from customers (contract liability)  27.59  57.28  

Statutory dues (including GST, TDS etc.)  247.59  261.06

 275.18  318.34

20. Revenue from operations

Year ended  Year ended

31st Mar 2020  31st Mar 2019  

 INR in Lakhs  INR in Lakhs 

Revenue from operations

Sale of products

Water Treatment Plants & Accessories  18.28  190.84 

Sale of services

Erection & Commissioning  47.51  154.24 

Design and Engineering  -    1,100.00  

Others operating revenue

Project Management fees  2,794.22  1,836.79 

Revenue from operations  2,860.01  3,281.87 
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23. Employee benefits expense

Year ended  Year ended

31st Mar 2020  31st Mar 2019  

 INR in Lakhs  INR in Lakhs 

Salaries, wages and bonus  1,798.20  1,467.54 

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 29)  86.03  64.40 

Staff welfare expense  71.75  63.64 

 1,955.98  1,595.58 

24. Finance costs 

Year ended  Year ended

31st Mar 2020  31st Mar 2019  

 INR in Lakhs  INR in Lakhs 

Interest on working capital loan  0.82  10.09 

Interest on loan from holding company (refer note 33)  374.40  463.61

Interst on finance lease  13.10  -

 388.32  473.70

25. Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Year ended  Year ended

31st Mar 2020  31st Mar 2019  

 INR in Lakhs  INR in Lakhs 

Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment  15.66  22.21

Depreciation  and amortisation on right of use assets  64.73  - 

 80.39  22.21

21. Other income

Year ended  Year ended 

31st Mar 2020  31st Mar 2018  

 INR in Lakhs  INR in Lakhs 

Interest income on financial instruments measured at amortised cost

- From banks  6.97  7.86 

- From others 10.53  54.57 

Profit on fixed assets sold/discarded (Net)  0.20  - 

Other non operating Income  0.26  4.33 

 17.96  66.76

22. Cost of materials consumed

Year ended  Year ended 

31st Mar 2020  31st Mar 2019  

 INR in Lakhs  INR in Lakhs 

Inventory at the beginning of the year  11.51  21.01 

Add: Purchases*  88.66  248.69 

Less: Inventory at the end of the year  11.40  11.51 

Cost of material consumed *  88.77  258.19 

* Includes direct expenses incurred on contracts INR 19.28 Lakhs (2018-2019 : INR 39.50 Lakhs)

 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2020 (contd....)
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 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2020 (contd....)

26. Other expenses

Year ended  Year ended

31st Mar 2020  31st Mar 2019  

 INR in Lakhs  INR in Lakhs 

Power and fuel  1.78  3.76 

Repairs and Maintenance  - Others  6.21  5.59 

Rent (Refer note 34)  5.88  77.91 

Rates and taxes  1.84  1.42 

Travelling and conveyance  308.47  295.20 

Freight  1.11  8.41 

Packing (Net of recoveries)  -    0.03 

Advertisement and publicity  0.65  0.08 

Legal and professional charges  98.37  69.76 

Telephone and communication  7.54  6.97 

Bad debts written off  -    398.91 

Auditors' remuneration (Refer below note no. 26.1)  3.29  3.34 

Directors' fees (Refer note 33)  8.95  9.25 

Bank charges  7.70  6.50 

Corporate Guarantee Charges  27.84  28.58 

Exchange loss (Net)  0.02  0.68 

Loss on fixed assets sold/discarded (Net)  -    10.69 

Establishment and other miscellaneous expenses  44.26  38.04 

 523.91  965.11 

26.1 Auditors' remuneration (excluding taxes)

Year ended Year ended 

31st Mar 2020  31st Mar 2019  

 INR in Lakhs  INR in Lakhs 

As auditor:

- Audit fees  3.29  3.00 

Reimbursement of expenses  -    0.34  

 3.29  3.34

27. Other comprehensive income

Year ended  Year ended 

31st Mar 2020  31st Mar 2019  

 INR in Lakhs  INR in Lakhs 

Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss

Re-measurements of defined benefit plans  10.33  1.78 

 10.33  1.78
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28. Earnings per share (EPS)

Particulars 31st Mar 2019 31st Mar 2018

I (Loss) / profit computation for both basic and diluted earnings 
per share of INR 10 each

 Net (loss) / profit as per the statement of profit and loss available (159.40) 33.84
for equity shareholders (INR in Lakhs)

II Weighted average number of equity shares for earnings per share 
computation

A) For basic earnings per share

B) For diluted earnings per share 

No. of shares for basic EPS as per IIA 15,215,200 15,215,200

Add: Weighted average outstanding employee stock options - -
deemed to be issued for no consideration

No. of shares for diluted earnings per share 15,215,200 15,215,200

III Earnings per share in Rupees (Weighted average)

Basic (INR) and Diluted (INR) (1.05) 0.22

29. Employee benefits

A. The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a 
gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn basic salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded to a 
separate trust duly recognized by Income tax authorities.

The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the 
funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the gratuity and provident fund plan.

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2019

(Gratuity) (Gratuity)

I Changes in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation are as follows: 

1. Defined Benefit Obligation, Beginning of Period 128.56 111.37

2. Interest cost 9.11 8.45

3. Service cost 13.35 9.64

4. Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions - 8.23

5. Actual Plan Participants' Contributions - -

6. Total Actuarial (Gains)/Losses - -

a) Effect of change in Financial Assumptions 4.16 2.31

b) Effect of Change in Demographic Assumptions - 0.67

c) Experience (Gains)/Losses 6.51 (0.06)

7. Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates - -

8. Acquisition/Business Combination /Divestiture - -

9. Benefits paid (17.82) (12.04)

10. Past Service Cost - -

11. Losses / (Gains) on Curtailments / Settlements - -

12. Defined benefit Obligation, End of Period 143.89 128.56

 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2020 (contd....)
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29.  Employee benefits (contd....)

Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2019

(Gratuity) (Gratuity)

II Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

1. Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period 132.98 126.10

2. Interest Income 9.43 9.57

3. Contributions by the employer - -

4. Expected contribution by the employees - -

5. Assets Transferred In/Acquisitions - 8.23

6.(Assets Transferred Out/Divestments) - -

7.(Benefits paid from the Fund) (17.82) (12.04)

8. (Assets Distributed on Settlements) - -

9. Effects of Asset Ceiling - -

10. The effect of Changes In foreign Exchange Rates - -

11. Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 0.34 1.13

12. Fair value of plan assets at the end of the Period 144.94 132.98

III Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Current Period

1. Current Service Cost 13.35 9.64

2. Net Interest Cost (0.31) (1.12)

3. Past Service Cost - -

4. (Expected Contributions by the Employees) - -

5. (Gains)/Losses on Curtailments And Settlements - -

6. Net Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - -

7. Expenses Recognized 13.04 8.53

IV Expenses Recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income 
(OCI) for Current Period

1. Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period 10.67 2.92

2. Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (0.34) (1.13)

3. Change in Asset Ceiling - -

4. Net (Income)/Expense For the Period Recognized in OCI 10.33 1.78

V Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments: From the Fund

1. Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting

1st Following Year 24.62 31.07

2nd Following Year 18.73 14.40

3rd Following Year 34.87 18.54

4th Following Year 14.41 27.60

5th Following Year 10.27 10.74

Sum of Years 6 To 10 48.18 38.07

Sum of Years 11 and above 48.20 38.23

VI Sensitivity Analysis

Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 143.89 128.56

Delta Effect of +0.5% Change in Rate of Discounting (2.92) (2.31)

Delta Effect of -0.5% Change in Rate of Discounting 3.07 2.42

Delta Effect of +0.5% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 3.01 2.39

Delta Effect of -0.5% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (2.89) (2.30)

Delta Effect of +0.5% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.43) (0.24)

Delta Effect of -0.5% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 0.44 0.25

(INR in Lakhs)
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 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2020 (contd....)

29.  Employee benefits (contd....)

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2019

(Gratuity) (Gratuity)

VII Actuarial assumptions:

1. Discount rate 6.37% 7.09%

2. Expected rate of salary increase 8.00% 8.00%

        [Refer note (b) below]

3. Mortality IALM (2006-08) IALM (2006-08)

4. Attrition rate 14.00% 14.00%

5. Rate of return on plan assets 6.37% 7.09%

The Company expects to contribute INR NIL (2018-2019: INR NIL) to gratuity in 2019-2020.

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Sr. No. Categories of Assets % of holding

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

1 HDFC Standard Life Insurance Company Limited 100% 100%

The expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period 
over which the obligation is to be settled.

Details of Defined Benefit Obligation Planned Assets and Experience Adjustments:

(INR in Lakhs)

Gratuity 19-20 18-19 17-18 16-17 15-16

Defined benefit obligation 143.89 128.56 111.37 107.78 101.41

Plan assets 144.94 132.98 126.10 115.51 112.64

Surplus / (deficit) 1.05 4.42 14.73 7.72 11.23

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 6.51 (0.06) 9.25 (6.03) (0.24)

Experience adjustments on plan assets 0.34 1.13 2.61 0.06 1.15

Notes: 

a) Amounts recognized as an expense and included in note 23:

Gratuity in “Contribution to provident and other funds” INR 13.04 Lakhs (2018-2019: INR 8.53 Lakhs).

b) The estimates of future salary increases considered in the actuarial valuation take account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

A. Defined contribution plan:

Amount recognized as an expense and included in the note 23 – “Contribution to provident and other funds” of the statement of 
profit and loss INR 59.84 Lakhs (2018-19 : INR 44.00 Lakhs).

B. Other employee benefits:
Amounts recognized as an expense and included in note 23:
Leave encashment in “Salaries, wages and bonus” INR 38.95 Lakhs (2018-19: INR 29.29 Lakhs)

C. The net provision for leave encashment liability up to 31st March 2020 is INR 147.73 Lakhs (31st March 2019 : INR 123.05 
Lakhs)



 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2020 (contd....)

30. Financial instruments

Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management

A.  Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels 
are presented below. It does not include the fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair 
value if their carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value

As at 31st March 2020 (INR in Lakhs)         

Financial assets 

Non-current investments 7 9.85 - - 9.85 - 9.85 - 9.85

Loans – Non Current 4 - - 0.95 0.95 - 0.95 - 0.95

Trade receivables: Non-current *** 3 - - 330.46 330.46 - 330.46 - 330.46

Trade receivables : Current *** 3 - - - - - 1,527.97 - 1,527.97

Cash and cash equivalents*** 9 - - 135.23 135.23 - - - -

Other bank balances*** 10 - - 111.39 111.39 - - - -

Loans – Current*** 4 - - 30.73 30.73 - - - -

Other financial assets – Current*** 11 - - 0.11 0.11 - - - -

Total 9.85 - 608.87 618.72 - 1,869.23 - 1,869.23

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings : Non-Current *** 14 - - 1,141.92 1,141.92 - 1,141.92 - 1,141.92

Borrowings : Current*** 14 - - - - - - - -

Trade payables*** 17 - - 2,083.48 2,083.48 - - - -

Other Current financial liabilities 18 - - 233.80 233.80 - - - -
– Current***

Lease liabilities : Non-Current *** 15 - - 24.81 24.81 - - - -

Lease liabilities : Current– *** 15 - - 69.00 69.00 - - - -

Total - - 3,553.01 3,553.01 - 1,141.92 - 1,141.92

As at 31st March 2019  (INR in Lakhs)

Financial assets 

Non-current investments 7 9.85 - - 9.85 - 9.85 - 9.85

Loans – Non Current 4 - - 1.20 1.20 - 1.20 - 1.20

Trade receivables: Non-current *** 3 - - 1,062.06 1,062.06 - 1,062.06 - 1,062.06

Trade receivables : Current *** 3 - - - - - 2,599.94 - 2,599.94

Cash and cash equivalents*** 9 - - 36.73 36.73 - - - -

Other bank balances*** 10 - - 165.35 165.35 - - - -

Loans – Current*** 4 - - 31.72 31.72 - - - -

Other financial assets – Current*** 11 - - 1.59 1.59 - - - -

Total 9.85 - 1,298.65 1,308.50 - 3,673.05 - 3,673.05

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings : Non-Current *** 14 - - 1,146.64 1,146.64 - 1,146.64 - 1,146.64

Borrowings : Current*** 14 - - - - - 1,406.88 - 1,406.88

Trade payables*** 17 - - 2,367.98 2,367.98 - - - -

Other Current financial liabilities 18 - - 199.80 199.80 - - - -
– Current***

Total - - 3,714.42 3,714.42 - 2,553.52 - 2,553.52

***The Company has not disclosed the fair value of financial instruments such as trade receivables, cash and cash equivalent, bank balances - others, 
loans, others, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.46
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30.  Financial instruments (contd....)

B. Measurement of fair values

Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the significant 
unobservable inputs used.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Type Valuation technique

Non-current financial assets  Discounted cash flow technique: The valuation model considers present value of  
measured at amortised cost expected payments discounted using an appropriate discounting rate.

C. Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

 Credit risk; 

 Liquidity risk; and

 Market risk

(i) Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk 
management framework. The board of directors has established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for 
developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the board of directors 
on its activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Company, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are 
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and 
management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all 
employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Board of Directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the company’s risk management policies and 
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The 
Board of Directors are assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of 
risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and investment securities. 

Trade receivables

Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of 
customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. In respect of trade receivables, the 
company is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counter party or any group of counterparties having 
similar characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers in various geographical areas. The company 
assesses the credit quality of the trade receivables based on market intelligence, customers’ payment history and defaults.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of INR 135.23 Lakhs as at 31st March 2020 (as at 31st March 2019: 36.73 
Lakhs). The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and financial institution counterparties with good credit ratings.

Other bank balances

The Company held other bank balances equivalents of INR 111.39 Lakhs as at 31st March 2020 (as at 31st March 2019: INR 
165.35 Lakhs). The other bank balances are mainly surplus fund invested in bank fixed deposits and margin money against 
bank guarantees issued by bank on our behalf. 

 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2020 (contd....)
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 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2020 (contd....)

30.  Financial instruments (contd....)

Investments

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by generally investing in liquid securities and only with counterparties that have a 
good credit rating. The Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties, and does not 
have any significant concentration of exposures to specific industry sectors or specific country risks.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets mainly comprises of tender deposits and security deposits which are given to customers or other 
governmental agencies in relation to contracts executed and are assessed by the Company for credit risk on a continuous basis.

(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities 
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far 
as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from holding company and various banks. The 
Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and 
undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.
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 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2020 (contd....)

30. Financial instruments (contd....)

As at 31st March 2020
              (INR in Lakhs)

Contractual cash flows

Carrying Total Up to 1-3 3-5 More than 

amount   1 year years years 5 years

Non-derivative financial liabilities  

(i) Borrowing : Non-Current* 1,141.92 1,141.92 - - - 1,141.92*

(ii) Lease liabilities : Non-Current 24.81 24.81 24.81 - - -

Total (a) 1,166.73 1,166.73 24.81 - - 1,141.92

Current Financial liabilities - - -

(i) Borrowings : Current - - - - - -

(ii) Trade payables 2,083.48 2,083.48 2,083.48 - - -

(iii) Other financial liabilities 233.80 233.80 233.80 - - -

(iv) Lease liabilities : Current 69.00 69.00 69.00 - - -

Total (b) 2,386.28 2,386.28 2,386.28 - - -

Total (a)+(b) 3,553.01 3,553.01 2,411.09 - - 1,141.92

As at 31st March 2019
              (INR in Lakhs)

Contractual cash flows

Carrying Total Up to 1-3 3-5 More than 

amount   1 year years years 5 years

Non-derivative financial liabilities  

(i) Borrowing : Non-Current* 1,146.64 1,146.64 - - - 1,146.64*

Total (a) 1,146.64 1,146.64 - - - 1,146.64

Current Financial liabilities - - -

(i) Borrowings : Current 1,406.88 1,406.88 1,406.88 - - -

(ii) Trade payables 2,367.98 2,367.98 2,367.98 - - -

(iii) Other financial liabilities 199.80 199.80 199.80 - - -

Total (b) 3,974.66 3,974.66 3,974.66 - - -

Total (a)+(b) 5,121.30 5,121.30 3,974.66 - - 1,146.64

*It’s exclusive of interest. Refer Note. 14

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of 
changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates, in cases where the 
borrowings are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating 
interest bearing investments will fluctuate because of fluctuations in the interest rates.
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 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2020 (contd....)

30. Financial instruments (contd....)

Exposure to interest rate risk

Company’s interest rate risk arises primarily from borrowings. The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing 
financial instruments is as follows.

  As at  As at 

31st Mar 2020  31st Mar 2019  

 INR in Lakhs  INR in Lakhs  

Fixed rate loan

Financial liabilities - measured at amortised cost

Long term Borrowing 1,141.92 1,146.64

Short term borrowings - 1,336.81

Total (a) 1,141.92 2,483.45

 

Variable rate loan

Financial liabilities - measured at amortised cost

Short term borrowings - 70.07

 Total (b) - 70.07

Total (a + b) 1,141.92 2,553.52

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed-rate borrowings at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest 
rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) 
equity and profit or loss by the amount shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency 
exchange rates, remain constant.

(INR in Lakhs)

 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019

 Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

 (-) + (-) +

INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs

1% Movement - - (0.700) 0.700

(iv) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices – such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices – will affect 
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.  Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive 
financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and long term debt. The objective of market risk 
management is to avoid excessive exposure in our foreign currency revenues and costs.

 (INR in Lakhs)
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 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2020 (contd....)

31. Disclosure as per IND AS 115

a) The Company undertakes Engineering, Procurement and Construction business. The type of work in the contracts with the 
customers involve construction, engineering, designing, supply of materials, development of system, installation, project 
management, operations and maintenance etc. The effect of initially applying Ind AS 115 on the Company’s revenue from 
contracts with customers is described in Note 1.8H.

b) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers - Refer Note 20.

c) Contract balances

The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with 
customers:

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2020 30 March 2019*

Receivables which are included in Trade and other receivables  

Contract assets  

- Amount due from customers on construction contract  

- Accrued value of work done net off provision - -

Contract liabilities  

- Amount due to customers under construction contracts  -                           -   

- Advance from customers ( contract liability)            27.59            57.28 

As on 31st March 2020, revenue recognised in the current year from performance obligations satisfied/ partially satisfied in 
the previous year is INR NIL

d) Performance obligation

The Company undertakes Engineering, Procurement and Construction business. The type of work in the contracts with the 
customers involve selling of construction, engineering, designing, supply of materials, development of system, installation, 
project management, operations and maintenance etc.

The Company evaluates whether each contract consists of a single performance obligation or multiple performance 
obligations. Contracts where the Company provides a significant integration service to the customer by combining all the 
goods and services are concluded to have a single performance obligations. Contracts with no significant integration 
service, and where the customer can benefit from each unit on its own, are concluded to have multiple performance 
obligations. In such cases consideration is allocated to each performance obligation, based on standalone selling prices. 
Where the Company enters into multiple contracts with the same customer, the Company evaluates whether the contract is 
to be combined or not by evaluating factors such as commercial objective of the contract, consideration negotiated with the 
customer and whether the individual contracts have single performance obligations or not.

The Company recognises contract revenue over time as the performance creates or enhances an asset controlled by the 
customer. For such arrangements revenue is recognised using cost based input methods. Revenue is recognised with 
respect to the stage of completion, which is assessed with reference to the proportion of contract costs incurred for the work 
performed at the balance sheet date relative to the estimated total contract costs.

Any costs incurred that do not contribute to satisfying performance obligations are excluded from the Company's input 
methods of revenue recognition as the amounts are not reflective of our transferring control of the system to the customer. 
Significant judgment is required to evaluate assumptions related to the amount of net contract revenues, including the 
impact of any performance incentives, liquidated damages, and other forms of variable consideration.

If estimated incremental costs on any contract, are greater than the net contract revenues, the Company recognises the 
entire estimated loss in the period the loss becomes known. Variations in contract work, claims, incentive payments are 
included in contract revenue to the extent that may have been agreed with the customer and are capable of being reliably 
measured.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognizes at the point in time when control of the assets is transferred to the customer, 
generally on delivery of the goods.

Revenue related to fixed price maintenance and support services contracts where the company is standing ready to provide 
services is recognised based on time elapsed mode and revenue is straight lined over the period of performance.

The Company applies practical expedient in paragraph 121 of Ind AS 115 and does not disclose information about remaining 
performance obligations that have original expected duration of one year or less.
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 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2020 (contd....)

31.  (contd.…)

e) Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

The following table discloses the reconciliation of amount of revenue recognised as at 31 March 2019:

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019

Contract price of the revenue recognised              2,860.01              3,281.87 

Add: Performance bonus                             -                           -   

Add: Incentives                             -                           -   

Less: Liquidated damages                             -                           -   

Revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss             2,860.01              3,281.87 

 32. Segment Information:

The Company’s only business being engineering of water treatment plants, disclosure of segment-wise information is not 
applicable under Ind AS-108 - ‘Operating Segments’. There is no geographical segment to be reported since all the operations 
are undertaken in India.

33. Related party disclosures (As identified by the management):

Where Control Exists

a) Holding Company Ion Exchange (India) Limited

Others:

b) Associates Astha Technical Services Limited**

c) Fellow subsidiaries Global Composites And Structurals Limited

Ion Exchange Enviro Farms Limited
Ion Exchange Environment Management Ltd.
(Formerly Known as Ion Exchange Waterleau Limited)

d) Key management personnel Mr. Rajesh Sharma – Director

Mr. Mahabir Patni– Chairman

e) Relatives of key management Personnel Mr. Ankur Patni – Son of Mr. Mahabir Patni

Mr. Dinesh Sharma -  Brother of Mr. Rajesh Sharma

**Astha Technical Services Limited merged with Total Water Management Services (India) Limited, w.e.f. 1st April 2017.            
(Refer Note 7)

Disclosure as per IND AS 115
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TotalNature of 

transactions
Party referred to in (a)

Party referred 

to in (b) & (c)

 Party referred 

to in (d) & (e)

 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2020 (contd....)

33. Related party disclosures (As identified by the management (contd…):

Transactions during the year with related parties except entity having significant influence with outstanding balances as at year-end: 

(INR in Lakhs) 

2019-2020 2018-2019 2019-2020 2018-2019 2019-2020 2018-2019 2019-2020 2018-2019

Sale of goods

Ion Exchange - - - - - - - -
(India) Limited

TOTAL - - - - - - - -

Project management 
services rendered  

Ion Exchange 2,794.22 2,936.79 - - - - 2,794.22 2,936.79
(India) Limited

TOTAL 2,794.22 2,936.79 - - - - 2,794.22 2,936.79

Purchase of goods 
and services

Ion Exchange 0.14 6.55 - - - - 0.14 6.55
(India) Limited

Global Composites - - - 6.54 - - - 6.54
and Structurals Limited

Ion Exchange Enviro - - - - - - - -
Farms Limited

Astha Technical  - - - - - - - -
Services  Ltd**

TOTAL 0.14 6.55 - 6.54 - - 0.14 13.09

Service charges  

Ion Exchange 61.47 60.98 - - - - 61.47 60.98
(India) Limited

TOTAL 61.47 60.98 - - - - 61.47 60.98

Interest on loan

Ion Exchange 374.40 463.60 - - 374.40 463.60
(India) Limited

TOTAL 374.40 463.60 - - 374.40 463.60

Other expenses   

Rental expenses

Ion Exchange 73.97 67.34 - - 73.97 67.34
(India) Limited

TOTAL 73.97 67.34 - - 73.97 67.34

Guarantee Commission

Ion Exchange 27.84 28.58 - - 27.84 28.58
(India) Limited

TOTAL 27.84 28.58 - - 27.84 28.58

Remuneration  

Mr. Mahabir - - 95.58 90.72 95.58 90.72
Prasad Patni

TOTAL - - 95.58 90.72 95.58 90.72
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TotalNature of 

transactions
Party referred to in (a)

Party referred 

to in (b) & (c)

 Party referred 

to in (d) & (e)

 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2020 (contd....)
(Currency: Indian Rupees)

33. Related party disclosures (As identified by the management (contd….):

Director sitting fees  

Mr. Rajesh Sharma - - - - 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25

Mr. Ankur Patni - - - - 1.00 1.25 1.00 1.25

Mr. Dinesh Sharma - - - - 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Mr. T. M. M. Nambiar - - - - 1.35 1.45 1.35 1.45

Dr. V N Gupchup - - - - 1.45 1.55 1.45 1.55

Mr. Abhiram Seth - - - - 1.45 1.20 1.45 1.20

Mr. Ramendra Gupta - - - - 1.45 1.55 1.45 1.55

TOTAL - - - - 8.95 9.25 8.95 9.25

Loans received

Ion Exchange 4,164.75 2,799.39 - - - - 4,164.75 2,799.39
(India) Limited

TOTAL 4,164.75 2,799.39 - - - - 4,164.75 2,799.39

Loans repaid

Ion Exchange 4,699.98 3,885.55 - - - - 4,699.98 3,885.55
(India) Limited

TOTAL 4,699.98 3,885.55 - - - - 4,699.98 3,885.55

Advances given   

Global Composites and - - - - - - - -
Structurals Limited

Ion Exchange - - - - - - - -
(India) Limited

TOTAL - - - - - - - -

Advances settled

Global Composites and - - - - - - - -
Structurals Limited

Ion Exchange - - - - - - - -
(India) Limited

TOTAL - - - - - - - -

Outstanding Receivable 
(net of Payable)

Ion Exchange Environment 25.95 25.95 - - - - 25.95 25.95
Management Ltd.

TOTAL 25.95 25.95 - - - - 25.95 25.95

Outstanding payables 
(net of receivables)

Ion Exchange 1,175.08 1,127.16 - - - 1,175.08 1,127.16
(India) Limited

Global Composites and - 60.14 60.14 - - 60.14 60.14
Structurals Limited

Ion Exchange Environment - - 3.34 3.34 - - 3.34 3.34
Management Ltd.

TOTAL 1,175.08 1,127.16 63.48 63.48 - - 1,238.56 1,190.65

(INR in Lakhs)

2019-2020 2018-2019 2019-2020 2018-2019 2019-2020 2018-2019 2019-2020 2018-2019
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TotalNature of 

transactions
Party referred to in (a)

Party referred 

to in (b) & (c)

 Party referred 

to in (d) & (e)

 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2020 (contd....)

33. Related party disclosures (As identified by the management (contd….):

 

Outstanding loans and 
advances payable

Ion Exchange 1,141.92 2,483.46 - - - - 1,141.92 2,483.46
(India) Limited

TOTAL 1,141.92 2,483.46 - - - - 1,141.92 2,483.46

Corporate Guarantee 
Taken

Ion Exchange 2,784.00 2,784.00 - - - - 2,784.00 2,784.00
(India) Limited

TOTAL 2,784.00 2,784.00 - - - - 2,784.00 2,784.00

34. Right-of-use assets

Effective 1st April 2019 the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" and applied to lease contracts existing on 1st April 2019 
by electing "modified retrospective approach".  Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended 31st March 2019 have not been 
retrospectively adjusted and the Company has taken the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings on the date of initial 
application. On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of Right-of-use assets of INR 150.86 Lakhs 
and a lease liability of INR. 154.68 Lakhs. The cumulative effective of applying the standard resulted in adjusting the retained 
earnings as at 1st April 2019 with INR 3.82 Lakhs. Further WDV of Building of INR 150.86 Lakhs has been reclassified from 
Property, plant and equipment to Right-of-use Assets.

In the Statement of Profit and Loss for the current year, the nature of expenses in respect of operating leases has changed from 
lease rent to depreciation on right of use assets and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability using the effective interest 
method.

The break-up of lease expenses during the year ended 31st March 2020 is as follows

INR in Lakhs

Particulars Amount

Short-term lease expense 5.88

Low value lease expense -

Total lease expenses 5.88

The break-up of Cash outflow on leases during the year ended 31st March 2020 is as follows

INR in Lakhs

Particulars Amount

Repayment of lease liabilities 73.97

Interest on lease liabilities 13.10

Short-term lease expense 5.88

Low value lease expense -

Total cash outflow on leases 92.95

The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at 31st March 2020 is as follows

INR in Lakhs

Particulars Amount

Current lease liabilities 69.00

Non-current lease liabilities 24.81

Total 93.81

(INR in Lakhs)

2019-2020 2018-2019 2019-2020 2018-2019 2019-2020 2018-2019 2019-2020 2018-2019



 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2020 (contd....)

34. Right-of-use assets (contd..)

The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31st March 2020

INR in Lakhs

Particulars Amount

Balance at the beginning -

Additions 150.86

Finance cost accrued during the period 13.10

Transition impact 3.82

Deletions -

Payment of lease liabilities -73.97

Balance at the end 93.81

The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31st March 2020 on an undiscounted basis are as 
follows

INR in Lakhs

Particulars Amount

Less than one year 73.97

One to five year 101.57

More than five year -

Total 175.54

35. Capital and other commitments

Estimated amount of contracts (net of advances) remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for is INR 0.45 Lakhs 
(2018-2019 : INR 4.36 Lakhs).

36. Contingent liabilities

(INR in Lakhs)

31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019

Demand raised by West Bengal sales tax authorities in respect of sales tax 2012-13 
against which company has filed an appeal - -

Demand Raised by West Bengal sales tax authorities in respect of 2013-2014  
against which the company has filed an appeal 6.21 6.21

Demand Raised by West Bengal sales tax authorities in respect of 2014-2015  
against which the company has filed an appeal 0.10 6.42

Demand Raised by West Bengal sales tax authorities in respect of 2015-2016  
against which the company has filed an appeal  9.54 9.57 

Demand Raised by Jharkhand sales tax authorities in respect of 2011-2012 
against which the company has filed an appeal 45.70 50.70

Demand Raised by Jharkhand sales tax authorities in respect of 2012-2013 
against which the company has filed an appeal 26.82 30.82
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 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2020 (contd....)
(Currency: Indian Rupees)

36. Contingent liabilities 

Note : 

1) The proposed Social Security Code, 2019, when promulgated, would subsume labour laws including Employees' Provident 
Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act and amend the definition of wages on which the organisation and its employees are to 
contribute towards Provident Fund. The Company believes that there will be no significant impact on its contributions to 
Provident Fund due to the proposed amendments. Additionally, there is uncertainty and ambiguity in interpreting and giving 
effect to the guidelines of Hon. Supreme Court vide its ruling in February 2019, in relation to the scope of compensation on which 
the organisation and its employees are to contribute towards Provident Fund. The Company will evaluate its position and act, as 
clarity emerges.

37. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 (on the basis of the information 
and records available with Management)

INR in Lakhs

 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any 
supplier as at the end of each accounting year 

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 6.05 18.47

Interest due on above 0.12 0.28

6.17 18.75

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, - -
2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the  
appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment - -
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without  
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006. 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each  1.69 1.57
accounting year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding   - -
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small  
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under  
section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.

38. Going concern basis

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern. The 
management believes that it is appropriate to prepare these financial statements on going concern basis, for following reasons:

(a) The Company has confirmed sales/services orders in hand as at 31st March 2020 which will result in the profit from 
operations in the subsequent financial years.

(b) The Holding company has confirmed to provide and maintain sufficient financial support and assistance as may be needed 
to enable the business activities of the Company to continue to be conducted as going concern. It has been decided that Ion 
Exchange (India) Limited will take orders for Effluent treatment plant and sewage treatment plant and the orders will be 
executed by the Company on project management charges (PMC).

(contd..)
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39. Tax Disclosures: 

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) presented in the balance sheet: 

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars  31st  Mar 2020 31st  Mar 2019

Deferred tax assets - -

Deferred tax liability - -

Net Deferred tax liability - -

Note:

a. The Company has restricted the recognition of deferred tax asset to the extent of deferred tax liability and not recorded deferred 
tax asset of INR Nil on carry forward losses in the absence of convincing evidence of taxable profits in the foreseeable years.

b. The company has not shown tax reconciliations as they have no tax profits due to carried forward losses on account of specified 
business and unabsorbed depreciation 

c. Unrecognized deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credit 

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st  Mar 2020 31st  Mar 2019

Deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits for 
which no deferred tax assets have been recognized are attributable to the followings

- Tax losses 
Unabsorbed depreciation and Business loss under Income-tax Act, 1961 1,017.46 959.85

- Deductible temporary differences 

Employee benefits 8.76 8.87

Difference between books depreciation and depreciation as Income -tax Act, 1961 9.90 9.26

Expenses allowed under section 35DD of Income-tax Act, 1961 0.33 1.81

Deferred tax Assets 1,036.45 979.79
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 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2020 (contd....)
(Currency: Indian Rupees)

40. Subsequent events 

No significant adjusting event occurred between the balance sheet date and date of the approval of these financial statements 
by the Board of Directors of the Company requiring adjustment or disclosure.

41. Consequent to the government of India declaring a national lockdown on 24th March 2020, the business operations of the 
company were affected by way of interruption in  supply chain disruption, unavailability of personnel etc.

However, pursuant to the permissions/directions received from the respective local government administration, the supply 
chain operations partially resumed during the lockdown period. Currently with the phase wise lifting of the lockdown our offices 
at most of the locations are functional and are following enhanced internal safety guidelines.

The company has assessed the potential impact of Covid-19 on its capital and financial resources, profitability, liquidity position, 
ability to service debt and other financing arrangements. The company's liquidity position is adequate to meet its commitments.

The company has also assessed the potential impact of Covid-19 on the carrying value of property, plant and equipment, right of 
use assets, intangible assets, investments, trade receivables, inventories, and other current assets appearing in the financials 
of the company. In developing the assumptions and estimates relating to the future uncertainties in the economic conditions 
because of this pandemic, the company as at the date of approval of these financials has used internal and external sources of 
information and based on current estimates, expects to recover the carrying amounts of these assets. The impact of the global 
health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financials and the company will 
continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

42. Other matters 

Information with regard to other matters specified in Schedule III to Companies Act, 2013, is either nil or not applicable to the 
Company for the year.

As per our report of even date attached

For B S R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of 

Chartered Accountants Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022 CIN No. : U74200MH2011PLC216024

Bhavesh Dhupelia Hemant Jog Nikisha Solanki Rajesh Sharma M. P. Patni

Partner                             Chief financial officer Company Secretary Director Whole Time Director

Membership No: 042070 DIN : 00515486 DIN : 00515553

Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai
24 June 2020 24 June 2020 24 June 2020 24 June 2020 24 June 2020
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Your directors present their Tenth Annual Report and Audited Accounts for the period ended  31st March, 2021.

FINANCIAL RESULTS   

 Year ended 
March 2021

INR in Lakhs

Year ended 
March 2020

INR in Lakhs
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 348.58 (159.40)

Less : Provision for Taxation 37.04 -

Profit/(Loss) after Taxation 311.54 (159.40)

Add: Other Comprehensive income 6.58 (10.33)

Total Comprehensive Income 318.12 (169.73)

OPERATIONS & FUTURE OUTLOOK
The Company achieved a turnover of Rs. 3,606.12 lakhs for the year under review as against  Rs. 2,860.01 lakhs in the previous 
year. 

Engineering and project management capabilities of the company will be utilized to execute larger orders of parent company and 
we are confident of overall improvement of performance in the coming years.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in form MGT 9 is annexed herewith as “Annexure A”.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS & OUTGO
As manufacturing activity is not undertaken by the Company, the information under the Section 134 (3) (m) of Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption is 
not applicable.

DIRECTORS 
Mr. Dinesh Sharma, Director, retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) 
of the Companies Act, 2013.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
The Company has following persons as Key Managerial Personnel (KMP).

Sr. No. Name of the Person Designation

1. Mr. M.P. Patni Whole Time Director

2. Mr. Hemant Jog Chief Financial Officer

3. Ms. Nikisha Solanki Deputy Company Secretary 
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MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
The Company held five Board Meetings on 24.06.2020, 11.08.2020, 09.11.2020, 01.02.2021 and 19.03.2021.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Composition of Audit Committee

Mr. Ramendra Gupta Chairman 

Mr. M. P. Patni Member

Mr. Abhiram Seth Member

Dr. V.N. Gupchup Member

NOMINATION AND REMUNEATION COMMITTEE
Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

1. Dr V. N. Gupchup Chairman

2. Mr. Abhiram Seth Member

3. Mr. Rajesh Sharma Member

REMUNERATION POLICY
The Board has on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection and appointment 
of Director. The salient features of the policy are as under:

(I)  Criteria for Determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes & Independence of Independent Director:

1.  Qualifications of Independent Director:

  An Independent director shall possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more fields of finance, 
law, management, sales, marketing, administration, research, corporate governance, operations or other disciplines 
related to the company’s business. 

2.  Positive attributes of Independent Directors:

 An independent director shall be a person of integrity, who possesses relevant expertise and experience and who 
shall uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity; act objectively and constructively; exercise his responsibilities 
in a bona-fide manner in the interest of the company; devote sufficient time and attention to his professional 
obligations for informed and balanced decision making; and assist the company in implementing the best corporate 
governance practices.

3.  Independence of Independent Directors:

 An Independent director should meet the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 concerning independence of 
directors. 

(II)  Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees

A.  NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (NEDs)

 NEDs shall be paid a sitting fee of Rs. 25,000/- for every meeting of the board, Rs. 10,000 for other committees 
thereof attended by them as member.

 NEDs may be paid commission upto an aggregate amount not exceeding 1% of the net profits of the company for 
the year subject to availability of profits. The payment of commission shall be based on their attendance at the board 
and the committee meetings as member. 
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 Additional commission, apart from commission referred to above, may be paid to non-executive directors as may be 
decided by the board of directors of the company from time to time, depending on the extra time and effort as may 
be devoted and contribution as may be made by the non-executive directors.

 The company has no stock options plans and no payment by way of bonus, pension, incentives etc. shall be paid.

B.  MANAGING DIRECTOR (MD) & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL & OTHER EMPLOYEES 

 The objective of the policy is directed towards having a compensation philosophy and structure that will reward and retain 
talent. 

 The Remuneration to Managing Director shall take into account the Company’s overall performance, MD’s contribution for 
the same & trends in the industry in general, in a manner which will ensure and support a high performance culture. 

 The Remuneration to others will be such as to ensure that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and 
meets appropriate performance benchmarks.

 Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management will involve a balance between fixed and 
incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its 
goals.

 The above criteria and policy are subject to review by the Nomination & Remuneration committee & the Board of Directors 
of the Company.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY AND VIGIL MECHANISM FOR DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES 
Pursuant to section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 a Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanism have been established for 
directors and employees of the Company to report their genuine concerns. The vigil mechanism provides adequate safeguards 
against victimization of persons who use such mechanism and have direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in 
appropriate and exceptional case.

LOANS, GUARNATEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186
The details of loans, guarantees or investment covered under section 186 of Companies Act 2013 are given in the notes to 
financial statement.

PARTICULRS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES
The details of contracts or arrangement with related parties are given in the notes to financial statement.

All transactions entered with related parties for the year under review were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of 
business and that the provisions of section 188 of the companies Act 2013 are not attracted.

Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) your Company 
does not have any subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures. Accordingly, AOC-1 does not form part of the report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule, 5 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company, will be provided upon request. In terms of Section 
136 of the Act, the Report and Accounts are being sent to the Members and others entitled thereto, excluding the information on 
employees’ particulars which is available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during business 
hours on working days of the Company up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any Member is interested in 
obtaining a copy thereof, such Member may write to the Company in this regard.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS.
There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the going concern status of the 
Company and its future operations.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to Directors’ Responsibility 
Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

(i)  in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2021, the applicable accounting standards have 
been followed along with proper explanation given relating to material departures;

(ii)  appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates were made that 
were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the 
financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

(iii)  proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities have been taken to the best of their knowledge;

(iv)  the annual accounts have been prepared for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 on a going concern basis.

(v)  proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and were operating effectively.

(vi)  systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were adequate and operating 
effectively.

RISKS, THREATS, CONCERNS AND RISK MITIGATION
Risk mitigation has been a priority of the management’s agenda. A structured method of evaluating risk, its impact, evolving a 
mitigation plan and continuous monitoring of performance against the plan is operational. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
Your Board conveys its deep appreciation of the co-operation extended by customers, suppliers, banks, financial institutions, 
contribution made by employees for the company’s growth and shareholders.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

M. P. Patni 
Chairman

Place: Mumbai  
Dated: 7th June, 2021
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Annexure I
Form No.MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
As on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 

[Pursuant to section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12 (1) of the Companies  
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I  REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i.  CIN : U74200MH2011PLC216024
ii.  Registration Date : 11th April, 2011
iii.  Name of the Company : Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
iv.  Category/ Sub-Category of the Company : Public Company / Company Limited by Shares
v.   Addressof the Registered office  and contact 

details
: Ion House, Dr. E. Moses Road,

Mahalaxmi, Mumbai - 400 011
Tel: 022 – 30472042
Fax: 022 – 24938737
Email: ieil@ionexchange.co.in

vi.  Whether listed company : No
vii.   Name, Address and Contact Details of Registrar 

and Transfer Agent, if any
: TSR Darashaw Consltants Pvt Ltd.

C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park
Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg Vikhroli (West), 
Mumbai – 400 083.

II PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sr. 
No.

Name and Description of main products/
services

NIC Code of the Product/service % to total turnover of the 
company

1  Project Management Services 99546990 84%

2  Project Management Services 99542699 14%

III PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES-

Sr. 
No.

Name and Address of the 
Company

CIN/GLN Holding/ Subsidiary 
/ Associate

% of shares 
held

Applicable 
Section

1
 
 
 

Ion Exchange (India) Limited
Ion House
Dr. E. Moses Road,
Mahalaxmi, 
Mumbai 400 011

L74999MH1964PLC014258
 
 

Holding 91.81 2(46)
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IV SHAREHOLDINGPATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year 
(01.04.2020)

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 
(31.03.2021)

% 
Change 
during 

the 
year 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares
A. Promoters (including Promoter Group)
(1) Indian         
a) Individual/HUF 59,784 6 59,790 0.39 59,784 6 59,790 0.39
b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) State Govt (s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Bodies Corp. 13,968,634 0 13,968,634 91.81 13,968,634 0 13,968,634 91.81 0
e) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Any Other…. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total(A)(1):- 14,028,418 6 14,028,424 92.20 14,028,418 6 14,028,424 92.20 0

(2)Foreign
a) NRIs-Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Other– Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Any Other…. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total(A)(2):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total share holding 
of Promoter (A) = 
(A) (1) + (A) (2)

14,028,418 6 14,028,424 92.20 14,028,418 6 14,028,424 92.20 0

B. Public 
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Venture Capital 
Funds

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f) Insurance 
Companies

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

g) FIIs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
h) Foreign Venture 
Capital Funds

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total(B)(1):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2.Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp. 0 891,799 891,799 5.86 828,199 63,600 891,799 5.86 0
b) Individuals 53,806 241,171 294,977 1.94 263,177 31,800 294,977 1.94 0
c)Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total(B)(2):- 53,806 1,132,970 1,186,776 7.80 1,091,376 95,400 1,186,776 7.80 0
Total Public Share 
holding (B) = (B) (1) 
+ (B) (2)

53,806 1,132,970 1,186,776 7.80 1,091,376 95,400 1,186,776 7.80 0

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs 
& ADRs

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Grand Total 
(A+B+C)

14,082,224 1,132,976 15,215,200 100.00 15,119,794 95,406 15,215,200 100.00 0
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ii) Shareholding of Promoters (including Promoter Group)

Sr. 
No. 

Shareholder’s Name 
 

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year (01.04.2020)

Shareholding at the end of the year 
(31.03.2021)

% change 
in share-
holding 

during the 
yearNo. of 

Shares
% of total 

Shares 
of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged/ en-
cumbered to 
total shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged/ en-
cumbered to 
total shares

1 Rajesh Sharma 29,893 0.20 0 29,893 0.20 0 0

2 Dinesh Sharma 29,893 0.19 0 29,893 0.19 0 0

3 Milind Puranik 1 0.00 0 1 0.00 0 0

4 L V Keshav 1 0.00 0 1 0.00 0 0

5 Ajay Popat 1 0.00 0 1 0.00 0 0

6 N M Ranadive 1 0.00 0 1 0.00 0 0

7 Ion Exchange (India) Ltd. 13,968,634 91.81 0 13,968,634 91.81 0 0

 Total 14,028,424 92.20 0 14,028,424 92.20 0 0

iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding : Nil

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

Sr. 
No

Name No of shares 
as on 

31.03.2020

No of shares as 
on 31.03.2021

Net Changes % to Capital

1 M/S. Rockmen Merchants Limited 828,199 828,199 - -

2 M/S. Neer Infrastructure Projects Pvt. Ltd. 63,600 63,600 - -

3 Mrs. Ahalya Ranganathan 29,892 29,892 - -

4 Ms. Devi Menon & Ms. Radha Menon 29,892 29,892 - -

5 Mr. P.Sampathkumar Mrs. Rama Sampathkumar 29,892 29,892 - -

6 Mrs. Rajkumari Nambiar 17,935 17,935 - -

7 Ms. Anita Agarwal 15,900 15,900 - -

8 Mr. Ajay Agarwal 15,900 15,900 - -

9 Mrs. Poonam Sharma 11,957 11,957 - -

10 Mrs. Aruna Sharma 11,957 11,957 - -
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v) Share holding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. 
No.

For Each of the Directors and KMP Share holding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 

company
 1 Rajesh Sharma 29,893 0.20 29,893 0.20

 2 Mahabir Prasad Patni 29,893 0.20 29,893 0.20

 3 Dinesh Sharma 29,893 0.19 29,893 0.19

 4 Aankur Patni 29,892 0.20 29,892 0.20

 5 Thekkekara Meloth Mohan Nambiar 11,957 0.08 11,957 0.08

 6 Vijay Narhar Gupchup 29,892 0.20 29,892 0.20

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/ accrued but not due for payment

Amount in Rupees

Secured Loans 
excluding 
deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i)  Principal Amount Nil 11,41,91,993 Nil 11,41,91,993

ii)  Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil

iii)  Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total (i+ii+iii) Nil 11,41,91,993 Nil 11,41,91,993

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

- Addition Nil 43,16,29,543 Nil 43,16,29,543

- Reduction Nil 43,11,57,148 Nil 43,11,57,148

Net Change Nil 4,72,395 Nil 4,72,395

Indebtedness at the End of the financial year

i)  Principal Amount Nil 11,46,64,388 Nil 11,46,64,388

ii)  Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil

iii)  Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total (i+ii+iii) Nil 11,46,64,388 Nil 11,46,64,388
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Amount in Rupees

Sr. 
no.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/
WTD/Manager

Total Amount
(Rs.)

M. P. PATNI

1. Gross salary

(a)   Salary as per provisions contained in section 17 (1) of the Income -tax-
Act,1961

93,14,653 93,14,653

(b)  Value of perquisites u/s17(2) Income-taxAct,1961 68,400 68,400

(c)  Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-taxAct,1961 - -

Total 93,83,053 93,83,053

2. Stock Option - -

3. Sweat Equity - -

4. Commission

- As % of profit - -

- others, specify… - -

5. Others, please specify Retirals - -

Total 93,83,053 93,83,053

B. Remuneration to other directors:

1. Independent Directors

Amount in Rupees

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
Dr. V. N. 

Gupchup
T M M Nambiar Abhiram Seth Ramendra 

Gupta
(Rs.)

-   Fee for attending board/ 
committee meetings

155,000 135,000 130,000 145,000 565,000

-  Commission - - - - -

-  Others, please specify - - - - -

Total (1) 155,000 135,000 130,000 145,000 565,000
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2. Other Non-Executive Directors

Amount in Rupees

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
Rajesh Sharma Dinesh Sharma Aankur Patni (Rs.)

-   Fee for attending board/ 
committee meetings

135,000 125,000 125,000 385,000

-  Commission - - - -

-  Others, please specify - - - -

Total (2) 135,000 125,000 125,000 385,000
Total(B)=(1+2) 950,000

Total Managerial Remuneration 950,000

A. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD / MANAGER / WTD

Amount in Rupees

Sr. 
no.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total  (RS.)
Deputy Company 

Secretary
CFO

Ms. Nikisha Solanki Mr. Hemant Jog
1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17 
(1) of the Income -taxAct,1961

441,108 25,96,360 30,37,468

(b) Value of perquisites u/s17(2) Income-taxAct,1961 58,899 32,400 91,299

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 
Income-taxAct,1961

Total

2. Stock Option - - -

3. Sweat Equity - - -

4. Commission

- As % of profit - - -
- others, specify… - - -

5. Others, please specify Retirals - 2,20,062 2,20,062

Total 500,007 28,48,822 33,48,829

VII PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: Not Applicable

On behalf of Board of Directors

M P Patni 
Chairman

Mumbai 
Date: 07th June, 2021
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of 
Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Financial 

Statements Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited (“the Company”), which comprise 
the balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement 
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as Financial statement).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements 
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, 
and profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for  Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Company’s Director report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit and other 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in  accordance with  the provisions  of the  Act  for safeguarding of the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are  reasonable  and  prudent;  and  design,  implementation  and  
maintenance  of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:

l Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

l  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls.

l  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by Management and Board of Directors.

l Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date 
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

l Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of 
section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. (A)  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of 
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books 
of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the 
Act.

e) On  the  basis  of  the  written  representations  received  from  the  directors  as  on  31 March 2021 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2021 on its financial position in 
its financial statements - Refer Note 36 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2021;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company;

iv. The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes 
during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made in these financial 
statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2021.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company 
to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration 
paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon 
by us.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

Rajiv Shah
Partner

Mumbai
08 June 2021

Membership No: 112878
    UDIN: 21112878AAAAAY9892

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements of Ion 
Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Referred to in our report of even date)

(i) (a)       The Company has maintained proper records showing full, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. 

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets) by which all fixed assets are 
verified by management during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company does not have immovable properties.

(ii) The inventory has been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion, the 
frequency of such verification is reasonable. According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and 
the book records were not material.

(iii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, 
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained 
under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, paragraphs 3 (iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any loan, made 
any investment, given any guarantee, or provided any security under section 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted deposits as 
per the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India under the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions 
of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of 
cost records under Section 148 (1) of the Act for any of the activities carried out by the Company.

(vii) (a)   According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the Company examined by us, in our 
opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, 
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, goods and service tax, cess, professional tax and other 
material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

   According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident 
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, goods and service tax, cess, professional tax and 
other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income- tax, sales tax, service tax, 
duty of customs, value added tax and goods and service tax which have not been deposited with the appropriate 
authorities on account of any dispute other than those mentioned in the below:

Nature of Statute Nature of Dues Amount in Rs
Period which 
the amount 
relates

Forum where dispute is 
pending

Central Sales tax Act, 
1956 West Bengal

Central sales tax 
and Interest/Penalty

9,877 2014-15 Deputy Commissioner of 
Commercial Taxes

Central Sales tax Act, 
1956 West Bengal

Central sales tax 
and Interest/Penalty

2,766,196 2015-16 Deputy Commissioner of 
Commercial Taxes

Central Sales Tax, 1956 
Jharkhand

Central sales tax 
and Interest/Penalty

4,570,000 2011-12 Deputy Commissioner of 
Commercial Taxes

Central Sales Tax, 1956 
Jharkhand

Central sales tax 
and Interest/Penalty

2,682,208 2012-13 Deputy Commissioner of 
Commercial Taxes
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(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any loans or 
borrowings from a financial institution, bank, Government or dues to debenture holders.

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records, the Company has 
not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. 
Accordingly, Para 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the 
generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have 
neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, 
noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the management.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records, the Company has 
paid or provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of 
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act, where applicable. The details of such 
related party transactions have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements as required under Ind AS 24, 
Related Party Disclosures notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016. 
Section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records, the Company has 
not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records, the Company has 
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered 
under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

Rajiv Shah
Partner

Mumbai
08 June 2021

Membership No: 112878
    UDIN: 21112878AAAAAY9892

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements of Ion 
Exchange Projects  and  Engineering  Limited  for  the  year  ended  31 March 2021(continued)
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report of Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering 
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements 
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(Referred to in paragraph 2 (A) (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of 
even date)

Opinion
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering 
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to  financial statements criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
were established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements
A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

Rajiv Shah
Partner

Mumbai
08 June 2021

Membership No: 112878
    UDIN: 21112878AAAAAY9892

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements of Ion Exchange 
Projects  and  Engineering  Limited  for  the  year  ended  31 March 2021 (Continued)
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Balance sheet as at 31st March 2021
Notes  As at  As at 

 31st Mar 2021  31st Mar 2020 
 INR in lakhs  INR in lakhs 

ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2  41.79  46.30 
(b) Right of use assets 2A  21.58  86.13 
(c) Financial assets

(i) Investments 7  9.84  9.85 
(ii) Trade receivables 3  330.46  330.46 
(iii) Loans 4  0.95  0.95 

(d) Other non-current assets 5  28.29  28.29 
(e) Non-current tax assets 6  80.61  108.54 
Total non-current assets  513.52  610.52 
Current assets
(a) Inventories 8  4.85  11.40 
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 3  883.08  1,527.97 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 9  256.06  135.23 
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii)  above 10  111.97  111.39 
(iv) Loans 4  18.09  30.73 
(v) Others 11  0.10  0.11 

(c) Other current assets 5  142.64  130.71 
Total current assets  1,416.79  1,947.54 
Total assets  1,930.31  2,558.06 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 
(a) Equity share capital 12  1,521.52  1,521.52 
(b) Other equity 13  (2,606.10)  (2,939.38)
Total equity  (1,084.58)  (1,417.86)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Lease liabilities 15  -  24.81 
(b) Provisions 16  133.46  93.87 
Total non-current liabilities  133.46  118.68 
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 14  1,146.64  1,141.92 
(ii) Lease liabilities 15  24.81  69.00 
(iii) Trade payables 17

-  Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises  -  6.05 
-   Total outstanding dues to creditors other than small enterprises and micro enterprises  1,026.57  2,077.43 

(iv) Other financial liabilities 18  237.48  233.80 
(b) Other current liabilities 19  404.52  275.18 
(c) Provisions 16  41.41  53.86 
Total current liabilities  2,881.43  3,857.24 
Total liabilities  3,014.89  3,975.92 
Total equity and liabilities  1,930.31  2,558.06 
Significant accounting policies 1   
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For B S R & Co. LLP  
Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

For and on behalf of the board of directors of 
Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited 
CIN No. : U74200MH2011PLC216024

Rajiv Shah 
Partner          
Membership No: 112878

Hemant Jog 
Chief Financial Officer

 Nikisha Solanki 
Company Secretary

Rajesh Sharma 
Director 
DIN : 00515486

M. P. Patni 
Whole Time Director 
DIN : 00515553

Mumbai 
08 June 2021

Mumbai 
07 June 2021

Mumbai 
07 June 2021

Mumbai 
07 June 2021

Mumbai 
07 June 2021
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As per our report of even date
For B S R & Co. LLP  
Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

For and on behalf of the board of directors of 
Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited 
CIN No. : U74200MH2011PLC216024

Rajiv Shah 
Partner          
Membership No: 112878

Hemant Jog 
Chief Financial Officer

 Nikisha Solanki 
Company Secretary

Rajesh Sharma 
Director 
DIN : 00515486

M. P. Patni 
Whole Time Director 
DIN : 00515553

Mumbai 
08 June 2021

Mumbai 
07 June 2021

Mumbai 
07 June 2021

Mumbai 
07 June 2021

Mumbai 
07 June 2021

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March 2021

Notes Year ended 
31st Mar 2021 
INR in lakhs

Year ended 
31st Mar 2020 
INR in lakhs

(a) Income
Revenue from operations 20  3,606.12  2,860.01 
Other income 21  23.57  17.96 
Total income (I)  3,629.69  2,877.97 

(b) Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 22  807.53  88.77 
Employee benefits expense 23  1,882.42  1,955.98 
Finance costs 24  163.28  388.32 
Depreciation and amortization 25  80.77  80.39 
Other expenses 26  347.11  523.91 
Total expenses (II)  3,281.11  3,037.37 

Profit / (loss) before tax (III) ( a - b )  348.58  (159.40)

(c) Tax expense - current Tax 40  37.04 - 
Total tax expenses  37.04  - 

Profit / (loss) after tax  311.54  (159.40)

(d) Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans 27  6.58  (10.33)
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  -  - 
Total other comprehensive income (IV)  6.58  (10.33)

Total Comprehensive Income (III-IV)  318.12  (169.73)

Earnings per equity share: [Nominal value of shares INR. 10 (previous 
year : INR. 10)] (basic and diluted)

28  2.05  (1.05)

Significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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Statement of changes in Equity as on 31st March 2021
A. Equity share capital

31st Mar 2021 31st Mar 2020 

Number of 
shares

INR in Lakhs Number of 
shares

INR in Lakhs

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity 
shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

15,215,200          1,521.52 15,215,200           1,521.52 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity 
shares outstanding at the end of the year

15,215,200          1,521.52 15,215,200        1,521.52 

B. Other equity

Reserve and Surplus Total other equity

Capital
reserve

General 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs

Balance as at 1st April 2019  105.22  88.48  (2,987.37)  (2,793.67)

Loss for the year (a)  -  -  (159.40)  (159.40)

Corporate guarantee commission  27.84  -  -  27.84 

IND AS 116 lease transition impact  -  -  (3.82)  (3.82)

Other comprehensive income (b)  -  -  (10.33)  (10.33)

Total comprehensive income for the year (a+b)  27.84  -  (173.55)  (145.71)

Balance as at 31st Mar 2020  133.06  88.48  (3,160.92)  (2,939.38)

Profit for the year (c)  -  -  311.54  311.54 

Corporate guarantee commission  15.16  -  -  15.16 

Other comprehensive income (d)  -  -  6.58  6.58 

Total comprehensive income for the year (c+d)  15.16  -  318.12  333.28 

Balance as at 31st Mar 2021  148.22  88.48  (2,842.80)  (2,606.10)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For B S R & Co. LLP  
Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

For and on behalf of the board of directors of 
Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited 
CIN No. : U74200MH2011PLC216024

Rajiv Shah 
Partner          
Membership No: 112878

Hemant Jog 
Chief Financial Officer

 Nikisha Solanki 
Company Secretary

Rajesh Sharma 
Director 
DIN : 00515486

M. P. Patni 
Whole Time Director 
DIN : 00515553

Mumbai 
08 June 2021

Mumbai 
07 June 2021

Mumbai 
07 June 2021

Mumbai 
07 June 2021

Mumbai 
07 June 2021
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Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2021

Year ended 
31st Mar 2021 
INR in Lakhs

Year ended 
31st Mar 2020 
INR in Lakhs

A. Cash flow from operating activities:
Net profit / (loss) before tax as per statement of profit and loss  348.58  (159.40)
Adjustment for :
Depreciation and amortization expense  80.77  80.39 
(Profit) on assets sold / discarded  -  (0.20)
Corporate guarantee charges  15.16  27.84 
Finance cost  163.28  388.32 
Interest income  (23.57)  (17.50)
Operating profit before working capital changes  584.22  319.45 
Adjustment for :
Decrease in trade receivables  633.03  1,812.17 
Decrease in inventories  6.56  0.11 
Decrease in loans and advances  0.71  46.07 
(Decrease) in trade payables  (1,056.91)  (284.51)
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities  133.02  (9.16)
Increase in provisions  33.72  14.35 
Cash generated from operations  334.35  1,898.48 
Taxes (paid) /refund  (9.11)  11.27 
Net cash generated from operating activities             (A)  325.24  1,909.75 

B. Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of fixed assets  (11.71)  (14.98)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  -  0.20 
Proceeds from investments sold in fellow subsidiary  0.01  - 
Bank deposit placed  (0.58)  (1.68)
Proceeds from bank deposit  -  55.65 
Interest received  35.44  10.36 
Net cash generated from investing activities             (B)  23.16  49.55 

C. Cash flow from financing activities:
Loan from holding company / (repayment of loan to holding company)  4.72  (1,341.54)
Bank borrowings repayment  -  (70.07)
Payment towards lease liabilities  (76.18)  (73.97)
Finance cost paid  (156.11)  (375.22)
Net cash used in financing activities              (C)  (227.57)  (1,860.80)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents       (A)+(B)+(C)  120.83  98.50 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year  135.23  36.73 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  256.06  135.23 
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Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2021 (contd...)
Notes:     

1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting 
Standard (Ind AS-7) - Statement of Cash Flow    

2 Cash and cash equivalents excludes the following balances with bank:    

(a)  On margin money account Rs.111.97 Lakhs (previous year : Rs. 111.39 Lakhs) 

 Year ended  
31st Mar 2021 
INR in Lakhs

 Year ended  
31st Mar 2020 
INR in Lakhs

Other bank balances disclosed under current assets [note 9]                     254.26               133.31 

Cash and cash equivalents disclosed under non-current assets [note 9]                         1.80 1.92 

Total cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet                     256.06 135.23 

   

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For B S R & Co. LLP  
Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

For and on behalf of the board of directors of 
Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited 
CIN No. : U74200MH2011PLC216024

Rajiv Shah 
Partner          
Membership No: 112878

Hemant Jog 
Chief Financial Officer

 Nikisha Solanki 
Company Secretary

Rajesh Sharma 
Director 
DIN : 00515486

M. P. Patni 
Whole Time Director 
DIN : 00515553

Mumbai 
08 June 2021

Mumbai 
07 June 2021

Mumbai 
07 June 2021

Mumbai 
07 June 2021

Mumbai 
07 June 2021
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021     

Overview of the Company
Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited is a closely held public company, registered under the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company is into business of execution of large EPC projects related to water treatments and provide design, supply, erection 
and commissioning of projects in industries related to power, steel, petrochemical and other sectors.

1. Significant accounting policies
1.1 Statement of compliance

 These financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, the relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’’).

1.2 Basis of preparation

 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis 
of accounting except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each 
reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been applied consistently 
over all the periods presented in these financial statements.

 These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 07th June 
2021.

 The operating cycle is determined for each project separately based on the expected execution period of the contract. 

1.3 Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts 
have been rounded off to two decimal places to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

1.4 Basis of measurement

 The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following:

• certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value; and

• net defined benefit (asset)/ liability that are measured at fair value of plan assets less present value of defined 
benefit obligations.

1.5 Use of estimates 

 The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires use of judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses. The actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively. Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 
that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ended 31st March 2021 are as follows:

a) Evaluation of percentage completion

 Determination of revenues under the percentage of completion method necessarily involves making estimates, 
some of which are technical in nature, concerning, where relevant, the percentage of completion, costs to completion, 
expected revenues from the project or activity and the foreseeable losses to completion. Estimates of project 
income, as well as project costs, are reviewed periodically. The effect of changes, if any, to estimates is recognized 
in the financial statements for the period in which such changes are determined.
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1.5  Use of estimates (contd…)

b) Property, plant and equipment 

 Determination of the estimated useful lives of tangible assets and the assessment as to which components of the 
cost may be capitalised. Useful lives of tangible assets are based on the life prescribed in Schedule II of the Act. In 
cases, where the useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule II, they are based on technical advice, 
taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, 
past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and maintenance support.

c) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

 The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial 
assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation, actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount rate 
is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The period to 
maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations.

1.6 Going concern basis

 As at 31st March 2021, the Company’s paid up capital was INR 1,521.52 Lakhs and correspondingly, the Company’s 
accumulated losses as at that date aggregated to INR 2,842.80 Lakhs and the profit during the year is of INR 311.54 
Lakhs. The company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by INR 1464.64 Lakhs. 

 However, management believes that the Company will be able to continue operations on a going concern basis and meet 
all its liabilities as they fall due for payment in the foreseeable future based on the following: 

-  business strategies and operating plans which will enable the Company to expand its operations and achieve higher 
income and generate positive cash flows; 

-  continued support, as required from holding company Ion Exchange (India) Limited.

 Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and do not include any adjustments 
relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded assets, or to amounts and classification of liabilities that might 
result if the Company is unable to continue as a going concern.

1.7 Measurement of fair values

 The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities.

 The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values, which includes 
overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values by the management. The management 
regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker 
quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence obtained from the 
third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair 
value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

 When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses observable market data as far 
as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the 
valuation techniques as follows.

-  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

-  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

-  Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).”

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021 (contd....)

1. Significant accounting policies (contd....)
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1.7 Measurement of fair values (contd....)

 If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then 
the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level 
input that is significant to the entire measurement. The company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value 
hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred. 

1.8  Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

 Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes taxes, duties, freight and other 
incidental expenses directly related to acquisition/construction and installation of the assets. Any trade discounts 
and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

 Depreciation is provided on straight line basis based on life assigned to each asset in accordance with Schedule II 
of the Act or as per life estimated by the Management, whichever is lower, as stated below.

Assets Useful lives
Plant and machinery 10 – 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 4 – 8 years
Office equipments 3 – 5 years

 Site equipments are depreciated over 3 years.

 Leasehold assets are depreciated over the period of lease.

 Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if 
appropriate.

 An item of property, plant and equipment is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further 
benefit is expected from its use and disposal. Gains / losses arising from disposal are recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss.

b) Intangible assets

 Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost and are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortization and impairment.

 Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The amortization 
period and the amortization method are reviewed at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset 
is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly.

 Computer software is amortized on a straight line basis over the period of 5 years.

 An intangible asset is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is expected 
from its use and disposal. Gains / losses arising from disposal are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

c) Impairment

 Impairment loss, if any, is provided to the extent the carrying amount of assets exceeds their recoverable amount. 
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use. Carrying amounts of assets are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date for any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. Value in 
use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and 
from its disposal at end of its useful life. In assessing value in use, the present value is discounted using a pre-tax 
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discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. Net 
selling price is the amount obtainable from sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, 
willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

d) Foreign currency transactions

 Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Exchange 
differences arising on the settlement of monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially 
recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in 
the year in which they arise. Foreign currency monetary items are reported at the year-end rates. Exchange 
differences arising on reinstatement of foreign currency monetary items are recognized as income or expense in the 
statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a 
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

e) Inventories

 Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

 Contract cost that has been incurred and relates to the future activity of the contract are recognized as contract work-
in-progress as it is probable that it will be recovered from the customer.

 Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

f) Financial instruments

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet when the company becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. The company determines the classification of its financial assets and 
financial liabilities at initial recognition based on its nature and characteristics.

A. Financial assets

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

 All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded 
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the 
financial asset.

 The financial assets include equity and debt securities, trade and other receivables, loans and 
advances, cash and bank balances and derivative financial instruments.

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

 For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in the following categories:

a. At amortised cost,

 A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is 
to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial 
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 
the principal amount outstanding

b. At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), and

 A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is 
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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c. At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

 A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL

(iii)  Impairment of financial assets

 All financial assets are reviewed for impairment at least at each reporting date to identify whether 
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

(iv)  De-recognition

 The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the asset expires or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset.

B. Financial liabilities

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

 All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities classified 
at amortised cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

 The financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
overdrafts, derivative financial instruments, etc.

(ii) Subsequent measurement

 For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

• Financial liabilities at amortised cost, and

• Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

-  Financial liabilities excluding financial instruments at amortised cost

 After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are de-
recognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

 Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance 
costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

- Derivative financial instruments

 The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts. Such 
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a 
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value at each 
reporting period. Any changes therein are generally recognised in the profit and loss account.

 (iii) De-recognition

 A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled 
or expires.
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g) Retirement and other employee benefits

i) Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund managed by Government Authorities and Superannuation 
Fund are defined contribution scheme and the contribution is charged to the statement of profit and loss of 
the year when the contribution to the respective fund is due. There is no other obligation other than the 
contribution payable.

ii) Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on 
Projected Unit Credit method made at the end of each financial year. Re-measurements of the net defined 
benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and 
the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 
(OCI)

iii) Short term employee benefits are charged off at the undiscounted amount in the year in which the related 
service is rendered. 

iv) Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is 
done as per Projected Unit Credit method made at the end of each financial year. The company presents the 
leave liability as non-current in the balance sheet, to the extent it has an unconditional right to defer its 
settlement for a period beyond 12 months, and balance amount is presented as current. 

v) The Company’s approved provident fund scheme is a defined contribution plan. The contribution paid/ 
payable under the schemes is recognized as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss during the year 
in which the employee renders the related service. The Company makes specified monthly contributions 
towards employee provident fund. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the 
respective fund.

h) Revenue recognition

 Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the assets is transferred to the 
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

• Revenue related to fixed price maintenance and support services contracts where the company is standing 
ready to provide services is recognised based on time elapsed mode and revenue is straight lined over the 
period of performance.

• In respect of other fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised using percentage-of-completion method 
(‘POC method’) of accounting with contract costs incurred determining the degree of completion of the 
performance obligation. The contract costs used in computing the revenues include cost of fulfilling warranty 
obligations.

 Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts and 
incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer.

 Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

 Revenue from holding company is recognised based on transaction price which is at arm’s length.

 Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets 
are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive 
cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

 Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability”) is recognised when there are billings in excess of revenues.

 The billing schedules agreed with customers include periodic performance based payments and / or milestone 
based progress payments. Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period.
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 In accordance with Ind AS 37, the company recognises an onerous contract provision when the unavoidable costs 
of meeting the obligations under a contract exceed the economic benefits to be received.

 Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and requirements. The company 
reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract, basis which the transaction price could be 
allocated to a new performance obligation, or transaction price of an existing obligation could undergo a change. In 
the event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted for.

 The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers into categories that depict the nature of services 
and geography.

 Use of significant judgments in revenue recognition

• The company’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple products and services to 
a customer. The company assesses the products / services promised in a contract and identify distinct 
performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgment to 
determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such deliverables.

• Judgment is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could be 
either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as volume 
discounts and incentives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if 
the contract includes a significant financing component. Any consideration payable to the customer is 
adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the customer. 
The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it 
is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur 
and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period. The company allocates the elements of variable 
considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract unless there is observable evidence that they 
pertain to one or more distinct performance obligations.

• The company uses judgment to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance 
obligation. The company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis of the 
relative standalone selling price of each distinct product or service promised in the contract. Where standalone 
selling price is not observable, the company uses the expected cost plus margin approach to allocate the 
transaction price to each distinct performance obligation.

• The company exercises judgment in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in 
time or over a period of time. The company considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits 
as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to 
payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and 
rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

• Revenue for fixed-price contract is recognised using percentage-of-completion method. The company uses 
judgment to estimate the future cost-to-completion of the contracts which is used to determine the degree of 
completion of the performance obligation.

 Dividend income is recorded when the right to receive payment is established. Interest income is recognised using 
the effective interest method.

i) Taxation

(i) Provision for current taxation has been made in accordance with the Indian Income tax laws prevailing for the 
relevant assessment years.
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i) Taxation (contd…)

(ii) Deferred tax is recognized, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing differences being the difference 
between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in 
one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax is measured on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or 
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax 
assets are recognized only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income 
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. 

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that 
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax 
asset to be utilised. Un-recognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are 
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax 
asset to be recovered.

 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in 
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) or directly in equity. 

 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same 
taxation. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgment is 
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing 
and the level of future taxable profits, future tax planning strategies. 

j) Provisions and contingent liabilities

 A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation 
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the 
discount is recognised as finance cost.

 A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but 
will probably not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation of a present obligation in 
respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision disclosure is made.

1.9 Earnings per share

 Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential equity shares.

1.10 Segment reporting policies

 Identification of segments

 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision 
maker (CODM). The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance 
of the operating segments, has been identified as the Managing Director who makes strategic decisions.
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1.11 Cash and cash equivalents:

 Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with 
an original maturity of three months or less.

1.12 Leases:

 Leases are accounted as per Ind AS 116 which has become mandatory from April 1, 2019.

 Where the company is the lessor

 Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are 
classified as operating leases. Assets given on operating lease by the company are included in property, plant and 
equipment. Lease income is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs such as 
legal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

 Where the company is the lessee

 Assets taken on lease are accounted as right-of-use assets and the corresponding lease liability is accounted at the lease 
commencement date.

 Initially the right-of-use asset is measured at cost which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any 
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred.

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, discounted using the Company’s 
incremental borrowing rate. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an 
index or a rate, or a change in the estimate of the guaranteed residual value, or a change in the assessment of purchase, 
extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to 
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss if the carrying amount of 
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

 The right-of-use asset is measured by applying cost model i.e. right-of-use asset at cost less accumulated amortisation 
and cumulative impairment, if any. The right-of-use asset is amortised, using the straight-line method over the period of 
lease, from the commencement date to the end of the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset whichever is earlier. 
Carrying amount of lease liability is increased by interest on lease liability and reduced by lease payments made.

 Lease payments associated with following leases are recognised as expense on straight-line basis:

(i)  Low value leases; and

(ii)  Leases which are short-term.

1.13 Borrowing costs

 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset 
till such time that it is required to complete and prepare the assets to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing 
costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in 
connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021  (contd...) 

2. Property, plant and equipment

INR in Lakhs
Plant and
machinery

Furniture 
and fixtures

Vehicles Office
equipments

Total

Gross block
As at 1st April 2020  30.07  22.91  1.92  61.83  116.73 
Addition during the year  -  -  3.50  8.21  11.71 
Disposal during the year  -  -  -  -  - 
As at 31st Mar 2021  30.07  22.91  5.42  70.04  128.44 

Depreciation 
As at 1st April 2020  12.61  19.37  1.85  36.60  70.43 
Depreciation during the year  2.45  1.15  0.15  12.47  16.22 
Deduction during the year  -  -  -  -  - 
As at 31st Mar 2021  15.06  20.52  2.00  49.07  86.65 

Net carrying value as at 31st Mar 2021  15.01  2.39  3.42  20.97  41.79 

Gross block
As at 1st April 2019  30.07  22.28  1.92  48.67  102.94 
Addition during the year  -  0.63  -  14.36  14.99 
Disposal during the year  -  -  -  1.20  1.20 
As at 31st Mar 2020  30.07  22.91  1.92  61.83  116.73 

Depreciation 
As at 1st April 2019  10.15  16.87  1.79  27.16  55.97 
Depreciation during the year  2.46  2.50  0.06  10.64  15.66 
Deduction during the year  -  -  -  1.20  1.20 
As at 31st Mar 2020  12.61  19.37  1.85  36.60  70.43 

Net carrying value as at 31st Mar 2020  17.46  3.54  0.07  25.23  46.30 
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INR in Lakhs
Building

Gross block
As at 1st April 2020  150.86 
Addition during the year  - 
Disposal during the year  - 
As at 31st Mar 2021  150.86 

Amortisation
As at 1st April 2020  64.73 
Amortisation during the year  64.55 
Deduction during the year  - 
As at 31st Mar 2021  129.28 
Net carrying value as at 31st Mar 2021  21.58 

Gross block
As at 1st April 2019  - 
On account of transition provisions of Ind AS 116 (Refer note 34)  150.86 
Addition during the year  - 
Disposal during the year  - 
As at 31st March 2020  150.86 

Amortisation
As at 1st April 2019  - 
Amortisation during the year  64.73 
Deduction during the year  - 
As at 31st March 2020  64.73 
Net carrying value as at 31st March 2020  86.13 

3. Trade receivables

Non-current Current
As at 

31st Mar 2021 
INR in Lakhs

As at 
31st Mar 2020 
INR in Lakhs

As at 
31st Mar 2021 
INR in Lakhs

As at 
31st Mar 2020 
INR in Lakhs

Trade receivables
Unsecured
Considered good  330.46  330.46  883.08  1,527.97 
Which have significant increase in credit risk  -  -  -  - 
Credit impaired  -  -  -  - 

 330.46  330.46  883.08  1,527.97 
Less : Allowance for trade receivables credit 
impaired

 -  -  -  - 

 330.46  330.46  883.08  1,527.97 

 Note : Receivable incluedes M/s. Ion Exchange Environment Management Ltd. INR 25.95 Lakhs (last year INR 25.95 
Lakhs) (refer note 33)    

2.A Right-of-use assets (contd...)
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4. Loans

Non-current Current
As at 

31st Mar 2021 
INR in Lakhs

As at 
31st Mar 2020 
INR in Lakhs

As at 
31st Mar 2021 
INR in Lakhs

As at 
31st Mar 2020 
INR in Lakhs

Tender, security and other deposits  0.95  0.95  1.04  2.14 
Claims receivables  -    -    0.10  0.10 
Loans and advance to employees  -    -    16.95  28.49 

 0.95  0.95  18.09  30.73 

5. Other non current assets

Non-current Current
As at 

31st Mar 2021 
INR in Lakhs

As at 
31st Mar 2020 
INR in Lakhs

As at 
31st Mar 2021 
INR in Lakhs

As at 
31st Mar 2020 
INR in Lakhs

Balance with statutory authorities  28.29  28.29  125.61  111.33 
Advance to suppliers  -    -    2.70  1.52 
Prepaid expenses  -    -    14.33  17.86 

 28.29  28.29  142.64  130.71 

6.  Tax assets

As at 
31st Mar 2021 
INR in Lakhs

As at 
31st Mar 2020 
INR in Lakhs

Income tax paid (net)  80.61  108.54 
 80.61  108.54 

7. Non-current investments    

As at 31st Mar 2021 As at 31st Mar 2020
Units INR in Lakhs Units INR in Lakhs

Measured at fair value through profit and 
loss in equity shares of others
Unquoted, fully paid-up
Total Water Management Services (India) 
Limited of INR 10 each**

11779  9.84 11779  9.84 

Ion Exchange Environment Management Ltd. 
of INR 10 each (Formerly Known as Ion 
Exchange Waterleau Limited)

 -    -   50  0.01 

(A)  9.84  9.85 

Total non current investments                (A)  9.84  9.85 
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments  9.84  9.85 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021  (contd...) 
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021  (contd...) 

8. Inventories  
 (Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)  

As at 
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

 As at 
 31st Mar 2020 
 INR in Lakhs 

Raw materials  4.85  11.40 
 4.85  11.40 

9. Cash and cash equivalents  

 As at 
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

 As at 
 31st Mar 2020 
 INR in Lakhs 

Balances with banks
On current accounts  254.26  133.31 

Cash on hand  1.80  1.92 
 256.06  135.23

 

10. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents  

  As at 
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

As at
 31st Mar 2020 
 INR in Lakhs 

On margin money account *  111.97  111.39 
 111.97  111.39 

 *Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of INR 111.97 Lakhs (previous year : INR 111.39 Lakhs) are subject to first 
charge to secure bank guarantees issued by a bank on behalf of the Company.

11. Others financial assets  

 As at 
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

 As at 
 31st Mar 2020 
 INR in Lakhs 

Interest accrued on margin money  0.10  0.11 
 0.10  0.11 
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12. Equity share capital       

As at 31st Mar 2021 As at 31st Mar 2020
No of shares INR in Lakhs No of shares INR in Lakhs

Authorised capital

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each.  2,00,00,000  2,000.00  2,00,00,000  2,000.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up 
capital

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each.  1,52,15,200  1,521.52  1,52,15,200  1,521.52 

 1,521.52  1,521.52 

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at 31st Mar 2021 As at 31st Mar 2020

No of shares INR in Lakhs No of shares INR in Lakhs

At the end of the year  1,52,15,200  1,521.52  1,52,15,200  1,521.52 

 (b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares      

 The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share.  Each holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the 
Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

 In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 
company after distribution of preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held 
by the shareholders.      

 (c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company *      
As at 31st Mar 2021 As at 31st Mar 2020

No of shares % holding No of shares % holding
- Ion Exchange (India) Limited, the holding 

Company and its nominees
 1,39,68,640 91.81%  1,39,68,640 91.81%

- Rockmen Merchants Limited  8,28,199 5.44%  8,28,199 5.44%

 * As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from 
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of 
shares.      

 (d) Aggregate number of share issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately 
preceding the reporting date.      

 The aggregate number of equity shares issued pursuant to scheme of amalgamation, without payment being received in 
cash in immediately preceding last five years ended on 31st March 2021 : 5,215,200 share (Previous period of five years 
ended 31st March 2020 : 5,215,200 shares)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021 (contd...) 
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021 (contd...)  

13. Other equity   

As at
31st Mar 2021
INR in Lakhs

As at
31st Mar 2020
INR in Lakhs

General reserve
Balance as at beginning and at the end of the year  88.48  88.48 

 88.48  88.48 
Capital reserve
Balance as at beginning of the year  133.06  105.22 
Addition during the year  15.16  27.84 

Balance as at the end of the year  148.22  133.06 

Retained earnings
Balance as at April 1  (3,160.92)  (2,987.37)
Profit / (loss) for the year  311.54  (159.40)
IND AS 116 Lease transition impact  -    (3.82)
Other comprehensive Income  6.58  (10.33)

 (2,842.80)  (3,160.92)
 (2,606.10)  (2,939.38)

 
 Notes    

 Description of nature and purpose of each reserve    

 General reserve: The balance represents general reserve of amalgamated company transferred on amalgamation. 

 Capital Reserve: Guarantee commission payable to holding Company.

14. Borrowings    

As at
31st Mar 2021
INR in Lakhs

As at
31st Mar 2020
INR in Lakhs

Loan from holding company (unsecured) [refer note below] & refer note 33)  1,146.64  1,141.92 
 1,146.64  1,141.92 

The above amount includes
Unsecured borrowings  1,146.64  1,141.92 

 1,146.64  1,141.92 

 Loan taken from Holding Company - Ion Exchange (India) Limited carries interest @ 11% p.a. is payable half yearly.  INR 
1,146.64 Lakhs is payable on demand.

15 Lease liabilities    

Non-current Current
As at

31st Mar 2021
INR in Lakhs

As at
31st Mar 2020
INR in Lakhs

As at
31st Mar 2021
INR in Lakhs

As at
31st Mar 2020
INR in Lakhs

Lease liabilities IND AS 116  -    24.81  24.81  69.00 
 -    24.81  24.81  69.00
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16. Provisions    

 Non-current Current
 As at 

31st Mar 2021
 INR in Lakhs 

 As at 
31st Mar 2020
 INR in Lakhs 

 As at 
31st Mar 2021
 INR in Lakhs 

 As at 
31st Mar 2020
 INR in Lakhs 

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 29)  133.46  93.87  41.41  53.86 
 133.46  93.87  41.41  53.86 

17. Trade payables  

 As at 
31st Mar 2021
 INR in Lakhs 

 As at 
31st Mar 2020
 INR in Lakhs 

Trade payables (including acceptances)
- Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 38)  -    6.05 
- Total outstanding dues to creditors other than small enterprises and micro enterprises  1,026.57  2,077.43 

 1,026.57  2,083.48 

18. Other financial liabilities  

 As at 
31st Mar 2021
 INR in Lakhs 

 As at 
31st Mar 2020
 INR in Lakhs 

Employee benefits payable  237.48  233.80 
 237.48  233.80 

19. Other current liabilities

 As at 
31st Mar 2021
 INR in Lakhs 

 As at 
31st Mar 2020
 INR in Lakhs 

Advance from customers (contract liability) (refer note 31)  30.99  27.59 
Statutory dues (including GST, TDS etc.)  373.53  247.59 

 404.52  275.18

20. Revenue from operations  

Year ended
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

Year ended
 31st Mar 2020 
 INR in Lakhs 

Revenue from operations (refer note 31)
Sale of products
Water treatment plants & accessories  87.30  18.28 

Sale of services
Erection and commissioning  14.98  47.51 
Design and engineering  490.00  -   

Others operating revenue
Project management fees  2,713.84  2,794.22 
Other support service  300.00  -   

Revenue from operations  3,606.12  2,860.01

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021 (contd...) 
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021  (contd...) 

21. Other income  

Year ended
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

Year ended
 31st Mar 2020 
 INR in Lakhs 

Interest income on financial instruments measured at amortised cost
- From banks  5.35  6.97 
- From others  18.22  10.53 
Profit on fixed assets sold/discarded (Net)  -    0.20 
Other non operating Income  -    0.26 

 23.57  17.96

22. Cost of raw material   

Year ended
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

Year ended
 31st Mar 2020 
 INR in Lakhs 

Inventory at the beginning of the year  11.41  11.51 
Add: Purchases*  800.97  88.66 
Less: Inventory at the end of the year  4.85  11.40 
Cost of raw material consumed *  807.53  88.77 

 * Includes direct expenses incurred on contracts INR 32.55 Lakhs,  (2019-2020 : INR 19.28 Lakhs)

23. Employee benefits expense  

Year ended
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

Year ended
 31st Mar 2020 
 INR in Lakhs 

Salaries, wages and bonus  1,754.37  1,798.20 
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 29)  91.99  86.03 
Staff welfare expense  36.06  71.75 

 1,882.42  1,955.98 

24. Finance costs   

Year ended
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

Year ended
 31st Mar 2020 
 INR in Lakhs 

Interest on others  3.35  0.82 
Interest on loan from holding company (refer note 33)  152.76  374.40 
Interest on finance lease  7.17  13.10 

 163.28  388.32 

25. Depreciation and amortisation expense  

Year ended
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

Year ended
 31st Mar 2020 
 INR in Lakhs 

Depreciation  of property, plant and equipment  16.22  15.66 
Amortisation on right of use assets  64.55  64.73 

 80.77  80.39
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021 (contd...) 

26. Other expenses  

Year ended
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

Year ended
 31st Mar 2020 
 INR in Lakhs 

Power and fuel  0.63  1.78 
Repairs and maintenance  - others  2.59  6.21 
Rent  4.20  5.88 
Rates and taxes  0.82  1.84 
Travelling and conveyance  148.93  308.47 
Freight  0.65  1.11 
Advertisement and publicity  0.22  0.65 
Legal and professional charges  117.50  98.37 
Telephone and communication  8.64  7.54 
Auditors’ remuneration (refer below note no. 26.1)  4.13  3.29 
Directors’ fees (refer note 33)  9.50  8.95 
Bank charges  2.95  7.70 
Corporate guarantee charges  15.16  27.84 
Exchange loss (net)  -    0.02 
Establishment and other miscellaneous expenses  31.19  44.26 

 347.11  523.91

26.1 Auditors’ remuneration (excluding taxes)  

Year ended
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

Year ended
 31st Mar 2020 
 INR in Lakhs 

As auditor:
- Audit fees  4.13  3.29 

 4.13  3.29 

27. Other comprehensive income  

Year ended
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

Year ended
 31st Mar 2020 
 INR in Lakhs 

Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
Re-measurements of defined benefit plans (refer note 29)  (6.58)  10.33 

 (6.58)  10.33 
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021 (contd...)  

28. Earnings per share (EPS)

Particulars 31st March 
2021

31st March 
2020

I Profit / (loss) computation for both basic and diluted earnings per share of 
INR 10 each
Net profit / (loss) as per the statement of profit and loss available for equity 
shareholders (INR in Lakhs)

311.54 (159.40)

II Weighted average number of equity shares for earnings per share 
computation
A)  For basic earnings per share
B)  For diluted earnings per share  
 No. of shares for basic EPS as per IIA 15,215,200 15,215,200
  Add: Weighted average outstanding employee stock options deemed to 

be issued for no consideration
- -

 No. of shares for diluted earnings per share 15,215,200 15,215,200
III Earnings per share in Rupees (Weighted average)

Basic (INR) and Diluted (INR) 2.05 (1.05)

29. Employee benefits

A. The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets 
a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn basic salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is 
funded to a separate trust duly recognized by Income tax authorities.

 The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and 
the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the gratuity and provident fund plan.

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars 2020-2021
(Gratuity)

2019-2020
(Gratuity)

I Change in the present value of projected benefit obligation
present value of benefit obligation at the beginning of the period 143.89 128.56
Interest cost 9.17 9.12
Current service cost 16.24 13.35
Liability transferred in/ acquisitions 0.82 -
(Liability transferred out/ divestments) (1.05) -
(Benefit paid from the fund) (3.19) (17.82)
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations - due to change in financial assumptions 2.00 4.16
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations - due to experience (8.67) 6.51
Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the period 159.20 143.89

II Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period 144.94 132.98
Interest income 9.23 9.43
Contributions by the employer 7.43 20.00
(Benefits paid from the fund) (3.19) (17.82)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income (0.08) 0.34
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period 158.33 144.94
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021  (contd...)
   

29.   Employee benefits (contd...)

(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars 2020-2021

(Gratuity)
2019-2020
(Gratuity)

III Amount recognized in the balance sheet
(Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the period)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period
Funded status (surplus/(deficit))
Net (liability)/asset recognized in the balance sheet

(159.20)
158.32
(0.88)
(0.88)

(143.89)
144.94
105.20
105.20

IV Net interest cost for current period
Present value of benefit obligation at the beginning of the period
(Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period)
Net liability/(asset) at the beginning
Interest cost
(Interest income)
Net interest cost for current period

143.89
(144.94)

(1.05)
9.17

(9.23)
(0.07)

128.56
(132.98)

(4.42)
9.12

(9.43)
(0.31)

V Expenses recognized in the  statement of profit or loss for current 
period
Current service cost
Net interest cost
Expenses recognized

 
16.24
(0.07)
16.17

 
13.35
(0.31)
13.04

VI Expenses recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI) for 
current period
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation for the period
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income
Net (income)/expense for the period recognized in OCI

(6.67)
0.08

(6.58)

10.67
(0.34)
10.33

VII Net interest cost for next year 
Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the period 159.20 143.89
(Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period) (158.32) (144.94)
Net liability/(asset) at the end of the period 0.88 (1.05)
Interest cost 9.65 9.16
(Interest income) (9.60) (9.23)
Net interest cost for next year 0.05 (0.07)

VIII Expenses recognized in the statement of profit or loss for next year 
Current service cost 16.16 16.24
Net interest cost 0.05 (0.07)
Expenses recognized 16.21 16.17

IX Maturity analysis of the benefit payments: from the fund 
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting
1st Following year 28.65 24.62
2nd Following year 38.67 18.73
3rd Following year 17.09 34.87
4th Following year 12.25 14.41
5th Following year 14.04 10.27
Sum of years 6 To 10 53.27 48.18
Sum of years 11 and above 52.20 48.20
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021 (contd...) 

29.   Employee benefits (contd...) 

(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars 2020-2021

(Gratuity)
2019-2020
(Gratuity)

X Sensitivity analysis
Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions 159.20 143.89
Delta effect of +0.5% change in rate of discounting (3.20) (2.92)
Delta effect of -0.5% change in rate of discounting 3.36 3.07
Delta effect of +0.5% change in rate of salary increase 3.28 3.01
Delta effect of -0.5% change in rate of salary increase (3.15) (2.89)
Delta effect of +0.5% change in rate of employee turnover (0.53) (0.43)
Delta effect of -0.5% change in rate of employee turnover 0.55 0.44

XI Actuarial assumptions:
1. Discount rate
2. Expected rate of salary increase 
    [Refer note (b) below]
3. Mortality
4. Attrition rate
5. Rate of return on plan assets

 
6.06%
8.00%

IALM (2006-08)
14.00%

6.06%

6.37%
8.00%

IALM (2006-08)
14.00%

6.37%
 
The Company expects to contribute INR 0.88 Lakhs (2019-2020: INR NIL) to gratuity in 2020-2021.

 The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Sr. 
No. Categories of assets

% of holding
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

1 HDFC Standard Life Insurance Company Limited 100% 100%

 The expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the 
period over which the obligation is to be settled.

 Details of Defined Benefit Obligation Planned Assets and Experience Adjustments:
(INR in Lakhs)

Gratuity 20-21 19-20 18-19 17-18 16-17 15-16
Defined benefit obligation 159.20 143.89 128.56 111.37 107.78 101.41
Plan assets 158.33 144.94 132.98 126.10 115.51 112.64
Surplus / (deficit) (0.88) 1.05 4.42 14.73 7.72 11.23
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (8.67) 6.51 (0.06) 9.25 (6.03) (0.24)
Experience adjustments on plan assets (0.08) 0.34 1.13 2.61 0.06 1.15

 
Notes: 

a) Amounts recognized as an expense and included in note 23:

 Gratuity in “Contribution to provident and other funds” INR 16.17 Lakhs (2019-2020: INR 13.04).

b) The estimates of future salary increases considered in the actuarial valuation take account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021  (contd...) 

29.   Employee benefits (contd...)

B. Defined contribution plan:

 Amount recognized as an expense and included in the note 23 – “Contribution to provident and other funds” of the 
statement of profit and loss INR 59.44 Lakhs (2019-20 : INR 59.84 Lakhs). 

C. Other employee benefits:

 Amounts recognized as an expense and included in note 23:

 Leave encashment in “Salaries, wages and bonus” INR 34.46 Lakhs (2019-20: INR 38.95 Lakhs)

D. The net provision for leave encashment liability up to 31st March 2021 is INR 173.99 Lakhs (31st March 2020 : INR 147.73 
Lakhs).

30. Financial instruments

 Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management

A.  Accounting classification and fair values

 The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their 
levels. It does not include the fair value information for current financial assets and current financial liabilities not measured 
at fair value if their carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

 As at 31st March 2021                       (INR in Lakhs)
Note 
No.

Carrying amount Fair value
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized 

Cost
Total Quoted prices 

in active 
markets  
(Level 1)

Significant 
observable 

inputs 
(Level 2)

Significant 
unobserv-
able inputs 
 (Level 3)

Total

Financial assets 
Non-current investments 7 9.84 - - 9.84 - - 9.84 9.84
Loans – Non Current *** 4 - - 0.95 0.95 - 0.95 - 0.95
Trade receivables: Non-current *** 3 - - 330.46 330.46 - 330.46 - 330.46
Trade receivables : Current *** 3 - - 883.09 883.09 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents*** 9 - - 256.06 256.06 - - - -
Other bank balances*** 10 - - 111.97 111.97 - - - -
Loans – Current*** 4 - - 18.09 18.09 - - - -
Other financial assets – Current*** 11 - - 0.10 0.10 - - - -

Total 9.84 - 1,600.72 1,610.47 - 331.41 9.84 341.25

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings : Current *** 14 - - 1,146.64 1,146.64 - - - -
Trade payables*** 17 - - 1,026.57 1,026.57 - - - -
Other Current financial liabilities – 
Current***

18 - - 237.48 237.48 - - - -

Lease liabilities : Current– *** 15 - - 24.81 24.81 - - - -
Total - - 2,435.50 2,435.50 - - - -
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30.  Financial instruments (contd…)

 As at 31st March 2020                       (INR in Lakhs)
Note 
No.

Carrying amount Fair value
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized 

Cost
Total Quoted prices 

in active 
markets  
(Level 1)

Significant 
observable 

inputs 
(Level 2)

Significant 
unobserv-
able inputs 
 (Level 3)

Total

Financial assets 
Non-current investments 7 9.85 - - 9.85 - - 9.85 9.85
Loans – Non Current *** 4 - - 0.95 0.95 - 0.95 - 0.95
Trade receivables: Non-current *** 3 - - 330.46 330.46 - 330.46 - 330.46
Trade receivables : Current *** 3 - - 1,527.97 1,527.97 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents*** 9 - - 135.23 135.23 - - - -
Other bank balances*** 10 - - 111.39 111.39 - - - -
Loans – Current*** 4 - - 30.73 30.73 - - - -
Other financial assets – Current*** 11 - - 0.11 0.11 - - - -

Total 9.85 - 2,136.84 2,146.69 - 331.41 9.85 341.26

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings : Current *** 14 - - 1,141.92 1,141.92 - - - -
Trade payables*** 17 - - 2,083.48 2,083.48 - - - -
Other Current financial liabilities – 
Current***

18 - - 233.80 233.80 - - - -

Lease liabilities : Non-Current *** 15 - - 24.81 24.81 - - - -
Lease liabilities : Current– *** 15 - - 69.00 69.00 - - - -

Total - - 3,553.01 3,553.01 - - - -

*** The Company has not disclosed the fair value of current financial instruments such as trade receivables, cash and 
cash equivalent, bank balances - others, loans, others, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities 
because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

B. Measurement of fair values

 Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

 The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the 
significant unobservable inputs used.

 Financial instruments measured at fair value

Type Valuation technique
Non-current financial assets measured at 
amortised cost

Discounted cash flow technique: The valuation model considers 
present value of expected payments discounted using an appropriate 
discounting rate.

 The cost of unquoted investments included in level 3 of fair value hierarchy approximate their fair value because there is 
a wide range of possible fair value measurements and the cost represents estimate of fair value within that range.   
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30.  Financial instruments (contd…)

C. Financial risk management

 The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

▪  Credit risk;

▪  Liquidity risk; and

▪ Market risk

(i) Risk management framework

 The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk 
management framework. The board of directors has established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible 
for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the board of 
directors on its activities

 The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Company, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems 
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its 
training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment 
in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

 The Board of Directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the company’s risk management policies 
and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the 
Company.  The Board of Directors are assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular 
and adhoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

(ii) Credit risk

 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 
its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and investment securities. 

 Trade receivables

 Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness 
of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. In respect of trade receivables, 
the company is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counter party or any group of counterparties 
having similar characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers in various geographical areas. 
The company assesses the credit quality of the trade receivables based on market intelligence, customers’ payment 
history and defaults.

 Cash and cash equivalents

 The Company held cash and cash equivalents of INR 256.06 Lakhs as at 31st March 2021 (as at 31st March 2020: INR 
135.23 Lakhs). The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and financial institution counterparties with good credit 
ratings.

 Other bank balances

 The Company held other bank balances equivalents of INR 111.97 Lakhs as at 31st March 2021 (as at 31st March 2020: 
INR 111.39 Lakhs).  The other bank balances are mainly surplus fund invested in bank fixed deposits and margin money 
against bank guarantees issued by bank on our behalf. 

 Other financial assets

 Other financial assets mainly comprises of tender deposits and security deposits which are given to customers or other 
governmental agencies in relation to contracts executed and are assessed by the Company for credit risk on a continuous 
basis.

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021 (contd...)  
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30.  Financial instruments (contd…)

(iii) Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to 
ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal 
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

 The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from holding company and various banks. The 
Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit.

 Exposure to liquidity risk

 The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross 
and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

 Investments

 The Company does not invest in liquid securities. Hence does not envisage any credit risk for the same.

 As at 31st March 2021                 (INR in Lakhs)
Contractual cash flows

Carrying 
amount

Total Up to 
1 year

1-3  
years

3-5  
years

More than  
5 years

Current Financial liabilities

(i)  Borrowings : Current 1,146.64 1,146.64 1,146.64* - - -

(ii)  Trade payables 1,026.57 1,026.57 1,026.57 - - -

(iii) Other financial liabilities 237.48 237.48 237.48 - - -

(iv) Lease liabilities : Current 24.81 24.81 24.81 - - -

Total 2435.50 2435.50 2435.50 - - -

 As at 31st March 2020                (INR in Lakhs)
Contractual cash flows

Carrying 
amount

Total Up to 
1 year

1-3  
years

3-5  
years

More than  
5 years

Non- derivative financial liabilities  

(i) Lease liabilities : Non-Current 24.81 24.81 24.81 - - -

Total (a) 24.81 24.81 24.81 - - -

Current Financial liabilities

(i)  Borrowings : Current 1,141.92 1,141.92 1,141.92* - - -

(ii)  Trade payables 2,083.48 2,083.48 2,083.48 - - -

(iii) Other financial liabilities 233.80 233.80 233.80 - - -

(iv) Lease liabilities : Current 69.00 69.00 69.00 - - -

Total (b) 3,528.20 3,528.20 3,528.20 - - -

Total (a)+(b) 3,553.01 3,553.01 3,553.01 - - -

 *It’s exclusive of interest. Refer Note. 14

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021 (contd...)  
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30. Financial instruments (contd…)

 Interest rate risk

 Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the 
risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates, in cases 
where the borrowings are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future 
cash flows of floating interest bearing investments will fluctuate because of fluctuations in the interest rates.

 Exposure to interest rate risk

 Company’s interest rate risk arises primarily from holding company.  The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-
bearing financial instruments is as follows.

(INR in Lakhs)
 As at

31st March 21
INR in Lakhs

As at
31st March 20
INR in Lakhs

Fixed rate loan
Financial liabilities - measured at amortized cost
Short term borrowings 1,146.64 1,141.92

 Total (a) 1,146.64 1,141.92

 Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments:

 The company does not account for any fixed-rate borrowings at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in 
interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

(iv) Market risk

 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices – such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices – will 
affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.  Market risk is attributable to all market 
risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and long term debt. The objective 
of market risk management is to avoid excessive exposure in our foreign currency revenues and costs.

31. Disclosure as per IND AS 115

a) The Company undertakes Engineering, Procurement and Construction business. The type of work in the contracts 
with the customers involve construction, engineering, designing, supply of materials, development of system, 
installation, project management, operations and maintenance etc. The effect of initially applying Ind AS 115 on the 
Company’s revenue from contracts with customers is described in Note 1.8H.

b) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers - Refer Note 20.

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021 (contd...)  
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31.   Disclosure as per IND AS 115 (contd…)

c) Contract balances

 The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts 
with customers:

 (INR in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Receivables which are included in Trade and other receivables
Contract assets
- Amount due from customers on construction contract - -
- Accrued value of work done net off provision - -
Contract liabilities
- Amount due to customers under construction contracts                            -                             -   
- Advance from clients 30.99            27.59

 As on 31st March 2021, revenue recognised in the current year from performance obligations satisfied/ partially 
satisfied in the previous year is INR 3,606.12 Lakhs.

d) Performance obligation

 The Company undertakes Engineering, Procurement and Construction business. The type of work in the contracts 
with the customers involve selling of construction, engineering, designing, supply of materials, development of 
system, installation, project management, operations and maintenance etc.

 The Company evaluates whether each contract consists of a single performance obligation or multiple performance 
obligations. Contracts where the Company provides a significant integration service to the customer by combining 
all the goods and services are concluded to have a single performance obligation. Contracts with no significant 
integration service, and where the customer can benefit from each unit on its own, are concluded to have multiple 
performance obligations. In such cases consideration is allocated to each performance obligation, based on 
standalone selling prices. Where the Company enters into multiple contracts with the same customer, the Company 
evaluates whether the contract is to be combined or not by evaluating factors such as commercial objective of the 
contract, consideration negotiated with the customer and whether the individual contracts have single performance 
obligations or not.

 The Company recognises contract revenue over time as the performance creates or enhances an asset controlled 
by the customer. For such arrangements revenue is recognised using cost based input methods. Revenue is 
recognised with respect to the stage of completion, which is assessed with reference to the proportion of contract 
costs incurred for the work performed at the balance sheet date relative to the estimated total contract costs.

 Any costs incurred that do not contribute to satisfying performance obligations are excluded from the Company’s 
input methods of revenue recognition as the amounts are not reflective of our transferring control of the system to 
the customer. Significant judgment is required to evaluate assumptions related to the amount of net contract 
revenues, including the impact of any performance incentives, liquidated damages, and other forms of variable 
consideration. 

 If estimated incremental costs on any contract, are greater than the net contract revenues, the Company recognises 
the entire estimated loss in the period the loss becomes known.

  Variations in contract work, claims, incentive payments are included in contract revenue to the extent that may have 
been agreed with the customer and are capable of being reliably measured. 

 Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

 Revenue from sale of goods is recognizes at the point in time when control of the assets is transferred to the 
customer, generally on delivery of the goods. 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021  (contd...) 
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31.   Disclosure as per IND AS 115 (contd…)

d) Performance obligation (contd...)

 Revenue related to fixed price maintenance and support services contracts where the company is standing ready to 
provide services is recognised based on time elapsed mode and revenue is straight lined over the period of 
performance.

 The Company applies practical expedient in paragraph 121 of Ind AS 115 and does not disclose information about 
remaining performance obligations that have original expected duration of one year or less.

e) Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

 The following table discloses the reconciliation of amount of revenue recognised as at 31st March 2021:

(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st  March 2021 31st March 2020
Contract price of the revenue recognised 3,606.12 2,860.01
Add: Performance bonus - -
Add: Incentives - -
Less: Liquidated damages - -
Revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 3,606.12 2,860.01

32. Segment Information:

 The Company’s only business being engineering of water treatment plants, disclosure of segment-wise information is not 
applicable under Ind AS-108 - ‘Operating Segments’. There is no geographical segment to be reported since all the 
operations are undertaken in India.

Particulars 31st  March 2021 31st March 2020
Revenue more than 10% - ION Exchange (India) Ltd. 3,503.65 2,794.22

33. Related party disclosures (As identified by the management):

Where Control Exists

a)   Holding Company Ion Exchange (India) Limited

 Others:

b)  Fellow subsidiaries Global Composites And Structurals Limited
Ion Exchange Enviro Farms Limited
Ion Exchange Environment Management Ltd.
(Formerly Known as Ion Exchange Waterleau Limited)

c)  Key management personnel Mr. Rajesh Sharma – Director
Mr. Mahabir Patni– Chairman

d)  Relatives of key management Personnel Mr. Ankur Patni – Son of Mr. Mahabir Patni
Mr. Dinesh Sharma -  Brother of Mr. Rajesh Sharma

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021 (contd...)  
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33.  Related party disclosures (As identified by the management) (contd…):

 Transactions during the year with related parties except entity having significant influence with outstanding balances as at 
year-end: 

  (INR in Lakhs)
Nature of transactions
 

Party referred to in 
(a)

Party referred to 
in (b)

Party referred to in  
(c) & (d)

Total

2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20

Project management, DE 
and other support services 
rendered

Ion Exchange (India) Limited 3503.83 2,794.22 - - - - 3503.83 2,794.22

TOTAL 3503.83 2,794.22 - - - - 3503.83 2,794.22

Purchase of goods and 
services

Ion Exchange (India) Limited 20.35 0.14 - - - - 20.35 0.14

TOTAL 20.35 0.14 - - - - 20.35 0.14

Service charges

Ion Exchange (India) Limited 11.18 61.47 - - - - 11.18 61.47

TOTAL 11.18 61.47 - - - - 11.18 61.47

Interest on loan

Ion Exchange (India) Limited 152.76 374.40 - - - - 152.76 374.40

TOTAL 152.76 374.40 - - - - 152.76 374.40

Other expenses

Rental expenses

Ion Exchange (India) Limited 76.18 73.97 - - - - 76.18 73.97

TOTAL 76.18 73.97 - - - - 76.18 73.97

Guarantee Commission

Ion Exchange (India) Limited 15.16 27.84 - - - - 15.16 27.84

TOTAL 15.16 27.84 - - - - 15.16 27.84

Remuneration

Mr. Mahabir Prasad Patni - - - - 93.83 95.58 93.83 95.58

TOTAL - - - - 93.83 95.58 93.83 95.58

Director sitting fees

Mr. Rajesh Sharma - - - - 1.35 1.25 1.35 1.25

Mr. Ankur Patni - - - - 1.25 1.00 1.25 1.00

Mr. Dinesh Sharma - - - - 1.25 1.00 1.25 1.00

Mr. T. M. M. Nambiar - - - - 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35

Dr. V N Gupchup - - - - 1.55 1.45 1.55 1.45

Mr. Abhiram Seth - - - - 1.30 1.45 1.30 1.45

Mr. Ramendra Gupta - - - - 1.45 1.45 1.45 1.45

TOTAL - - - - 9.50 8.95 9.50 8.95

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021 (contd...)  
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33.  Related party disclosures (As identified by the management (contd…):

(INR in Lakhs)

Nature of transactions
 

Party referred to in 
(a)

Party referred to in 
(b) 

Party referred to in 
(c)  & (d) 

Total

2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20

Loans received
Ion Exchange (India) 
Limited 4,316.30 4,164.75 - - - - 4,316.30 4,164.75

TOTAL 4,316.30 4,164.75 - - - - 4,316.30 4,164.75
Loans repaid
Ion Exchange (India) 
Limited 4,322.76 4,699.98 - - - - 4,322.76 4,699.98

TOTAL 4,322.76 4,699.98 - - - - 4,322.76 4,699.98
Outstanding Receivable 
(net of Payable)
ION EXCHANGE 
ENVIRONMENT 
MANAGEMENT LTD.

- - 25.95 25.95 - - 25.95 25.95

TOTAL - - 25.95 25.95 - - 25.95 25.95
Outstanding payables 
(net of receivables)
Ion Exchange (India) 
Limited 164.49 1,175.08 - - - - 164.49 1,175.08

Global Composites and 
Structurals Limited

- - 60.14 60.14 - - 60.14 60.14

ION EXCHANGE 
ENVIRONMENT 
MANAGEMENT LTD.

- - 3.34 3.34 - - 3.34 3.34

TOTAL 164.49 1,175.08 63.48 63.48 - - 227.97 1,238.56
Outstanding loans and 
advances payable
Ion Exchange (India) 
Limited 1,146.64 1,141.92 - - - - 1,146.64 1,141.92

TOTAL 1,146.64 1,141.92 - - - - 1,146.64 1,141.92
Investments sale during 
the year
Ion Exchange 
Environment Management 
Ltd. (Formerly Known as 
Ion Exchange Waterleau 
Limited) to Ion Exchange 
(India) Limited

0.01 - - - - - 0.01 -

TOTAL 0.01 - - - - - 0.01 -
Corporate Guarantee 
Taken
Ion Exchange (India) 
Limited 1,093.00 2,784.00 - - - - 1,093.00 2,784.00

TOTAL 1,093.00 2,784.00 - - - - 1,093.00 2,784.00

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021 (contd...)  
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34. Right-of-use assets 

 Effective 1st April 2019 the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied to lease contracts existing on 1st April 
2019 by electing “modified retrospective approach”.  Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended 31st March 2019 have 
not been retrospectively adjusted and the Company has taken the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings on the date 
of initial application. On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of Right-of-use assets of INR 
150.86 Lakhs and a lease liability of INR. 154.68 Lakhs. The cumulative effective of applying the standard resulted in 
adjusting the retained earnings as at 1st April 2019 with INR 3.82 Lakhs. Further WDV of Leasehold Lands of INR 150.86 
Lakhs has been reclassified from Property, plant and equipment to Right-to-use Assets.

 In the Statement of Profit and Loss for the current year, the nature of expenses in respect of operating leases has changed 
from lease rent to depreciation on right of use assets and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability using the 
effective interest method.

 The break-up of Cash outflow on leases during the year ended 31st March 2021 is as follows
 (INR in Lakhs)

Particulars Amount
Repayment of lease liabilities 76.18
Interest on lease liabilities 7.17
Short-term lease expense -
Low value lease expense -
Total cash outflow on leases 83.35

 The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at 31st March 2021 is as follows
 (INR in Lakhs)

Particulars Amount
Current lease liabilities 24.81
Total 24.81

 The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31st March 2021
 (INR in Lakhs)

Particulars Amount
Balance at the beginning 93.81
Additions
Finance cost accrued during the period 7.17
Payment of lease liabilities -76.18
Balance at the end 24.81

 The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31st March 2021 on an undiscounted basis are as 
follows

 (INR in Lakhs)
Particulars Amount
Less than one year 24.81
One to five year -
More than five year -
Total 24.81

35. Capital and other commitments

 Estimated amount of contracts (net of advances) remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for is  INR 2.78 
Lakhs (2019-2020 : INR 0.45).

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021 (contd...)  



ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

58

36. Contingent liabilities

(INR in Lakhs)
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Demand Raised by West Bengal sales tax authorities in respect of 2013-2014 
against which the company has filed an appeal

-
6.21

Demand Raised by West Bengal sales tax authorities in respect of 2014-2015 
against which the company has filed an appeal

0.10 0.10

Demand Raised by West Bengal sales tax authorities in respect of 2015-2016 
against which the company has filed an appeal

27.66 9.54

Demand Raised by Jharkhand sales tax authorities in respect of 2011-2012 
against which the company has filed an appeal

45.70 45.70

Demand Raised by Jharkhand sales tax authorities in respect of 2012-2013 
against which the company has filed an appeal

26.82 26.82

 Note : 

1)  The proposed Social Security Code, 2019, when promulgated, would subsume labour laws including Employees’ 
Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act and amend the definition of wages on which the organisation 
and its employees are to contribute towards Provident Fund. The Company believes that there will be no significant 
impact on its contributions to Provident Fund due to the proposed amendments. Additionally, there is uncertainty 
and ambiguity in interpreting and giving effect to the guidelines of Hon. Supreme Court vide its ruling in February 
2019, in relation to the scope of compensation on which the organisation and its employees are to contribute 
towards Provident Fund. The Company will evaluate its position and act, as clarity emerges.

37. The proposed Social Security Code, 2019, when promulgated, would subsume labour laws including Employees’ Provident 
Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act and amend the definition of wages on which the organisation and its employees 
are to contribute towards provident fund. The company believes that there will be no significant impact on its contributions 
to provident fund due to the proposed amendments.

38. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 (on the basis of the 
information and records available with Management)

(INR in Lakhs)
 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any 
supplier as at the end of each accounting year
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises - 6.05
Interest due on above - 0.12

- 6.17
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED 
Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier 
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

- -

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006.

- -

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 
accounting year.

1.69 1.69

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a 
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.

- -

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021  (contd...)
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39. Going concern basis

 The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern.  
The management believes that it is appropriate to prepare these financial statements on going concern basis, for following 
reasons:

(a)  The Company has confirmed sales/services orders in hand as at 31st March 2021 which will result in the profit from 
operations in the subsequent financial years.

(b) The Holding company has confirmed to provide and maintain sufficient financial support and assistance as may be 
needed to enable the business activities of the Company to continue to be conducted as going concern. It has been 
decided that Ion Exchange (India) Limited will take orders for Effluent treatment plant and sewage treatment plant 
and the orders will be executed by the Company on project management charges (PMC).

40. Tax expense :

(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Current tax 37.04 -
Deferred tax - -

37.04 -
Reconciliation of Tax Expense
Profit before tax 348.58 -
Applicable tax rate 16.692% -
Computed tax expense                                                                             (A) 58.18 -

Adjustments for:
Unabsorbed depreciation (21.14) -
Net adjustments                                                                                        (B) (21.14) -

Tax expense                                                                                           (A+B) 37.04 -

 Tax Disclosures: 

 The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) presented in the balance sheet: 

(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Deferred tax assets - -
Deferred tax liability - -
Net deferred tax liability - -

 Note:

a. The Company has restricted the recognition of deferred tax asset to the extent of deferred tax liability and not 
recorded deferred tax asset of INR Nil on carry forward losses in the absence of convincing evidence of taxable 
profits in the foreseeable years.

b. The company has not shown tax reconciliations as they have no tax profits due to carried forward losses on account 
of specified business and unabsorbed depreciation 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021  (contd...) 
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40.   Tax expense (contd…)

c. Unrecognized deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credit

(INR in Lakhs)

 Particular 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits 
for which no deferred tax assets have been recognized are attributable to the 
followings

- Tax losses 
Unabsorbed depreciation and Business loss under Income-tax Act, 1961 1,055.60 1,017.46

- Deductible temporary differences 
Employee benefits 76.58 8.76
Difference between books depreciation and depreciation as Income -tax 
Act, 1961

10.04 9.90

Expenses allowed under section 35DD of Income-tax Act, 1961 - 0.33

Deferred tax Assets 1,142.22 1,036.45

41. Subsequent events

 No significant adjusting event occurred between the balance sheet date and date of the approval of these financial 
statements by the Board of Directors of the Company requiring adjustment or disclosure.

42. The company has assessed the potential impact of Covid-19 on its capital and financial resources, profitability, liquidity 
position, ability to service debt and other financing arrangements. The company’s liquidity position is adequate to meet its 
commitments and it expects to recover the carrying value of its assets.43

 The company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions arising from ongoing 
second wave and update its assessment as necessary

43. Other matters 

 Information with regard to other matters specified in Schedule III to Companies Act, 2013, is either nil or not applicable to 
the Company for the year.

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021  (contd...) 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Your directors present their Eleventh Annual Report and Audited Accounts for the period ended 31st March, 2022.

FINANCIAL RESULTS   
 Year ended 
March 2022

INR in Lakhs

Year ended 
March 2021

INR in Lakhs
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (13.89) 348.58
Less : Provision for Taxation - 37.04
Profit/(Loss) after Taxation (13.89) 311.54
Add: Other Comprehensive income (11.22) 6.58
Total Comprehensive Income (25.11) 318.12

OPERATIONS & FUTURE OUTLOOK
The Company achieved a turnover of Rs. 2,462.43 lakhs for the year under review as against Rs. 3,606.12 lakhs in the previous 
year. 

Engineering and project management capabilities of the company will be utilized to execute larger orders of parent company and 
we are confident of overall improvement of performance in the coming years.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in form MGT 9 is annexed herewith as “Annexure A”.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS & OUTGO
As manufacturing activity is not undertaken by the Company, the information under the Section 134 (3) (m) of Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption is 
not applicable.

DIRECTORS 
Mr. Rajesh Sharma, Director, retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) 
of the Companies Act, 2013.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
The Company has following persons as Key Managerial Personnel (KMP).

Sr. No. Name of the Person Designation
Mr. M.P. Patni Whole Time Director
Mr. Hemant Jog Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Nikisha Solanki Deputy Company Secretary 

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
The Company held five Board Meetings on 07.06.2021, 09.08.2021, 27.10.2021, 24.01.2022 and 15.03.2022.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
Composition of Audit Committee

Mr. Ramendra Gupta Chairman 

Mr. M. P. Patni Member

Mr. Abhiram Seth Member

Dr. V.N. Gupchup Member

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

1. Dr V. N. Gupchup Chairman
2. Mr. Abhiram Seth Member
3. Mr. Rajesh Sharma Member

REMUNERATION POLICY
The Board gas on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection and appointment 
of Director. The salient features of the policy are as under:

(I)  Criteria for Determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes & Independence of Independent Director:

1.  Qualifications of Independent Director:

 An Independent director shall possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more fields of finance, 
law, management, sales, marketing, administration, research, corporate governance, operations or other disciplines 
related to the company’s business. 

2.  Positive attributes of Independent Directors:

 An independent director shall be a person of integrity, who possesses relevant expertise and experience and who 
shall uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity; act objectively and constructively; exercise his responsibilities 
in a bona-fide manner in the interest of the company; devote sufficient time and attention to his professional 
obligations for informed and balanced decision making; and assist the company in implementing the best corporate 
governance practices.

3.  Independence of Independent Directors:

 An Independent director should meet the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 concerning independence of 
directors. 

(II)  Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees

A.  NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (NEDs)

 NEDs shall be paid a sitting fee of Rs. 25,000/- for every meeting of the board, Rs. 10,000 for other committees 
thereof attended by them as member.

 NEDs may be paid commission upto an aggregate amount not exceeding 1% of the net profits of the company for 
the year subject to availability of profits. The payment of commission shall be based on their attendance at the board 
and the committee meetings as member. 

 Additional commission, apart from commission referred to above, may be paid to non-executive directors as may be 
decided by the board of directors of the company from time to time, depending on the extra time and effort as may 
be devoted and contribution as may be made by the non-executive directors.
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 The company has no stock options plans and no payment by way of bonus, pension, incentives etc. shall be paid.

 B.  MANAGING DIRECTOR (MD) & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL & OTHER EMPLOYEES 

 The objective of the policy is directed towards having a compensation philosophy and structure that will reward and 
retain talent. 

 The Remuneration to Managing Director shall take into account the Company’s overall performance, MD’s 
contribution for the same & trends in the industry in general, in a manner which will ensure and support a high 
performance culture. 

 The Remuneration to others will be such as to ensure that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear 
and meets appropriate performance benchmarks.

 Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management will involve a balance between fixed 
and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company 
and its goals.

 The above criteria and policy are subject to review by the Nomination & Remuneration committee & the Board of 
Directors of the Company.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY AND VIGIL MECHANISM FOR DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES 
Pursuant to section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 a Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanism have been established for 
directors and employees of the Company to report their genuine concerns. The vigil mechanism provides adequate safeguards 
against victimization of persons who use such mechanism and have direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in 
appropriate and exceptional case.

LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186
The details of loans, guarantees or investment covered under section 186 of Companies Act 2013 are given in the notes to 
financial statement.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES
The details of contracts or arrangement with related parties are given in the notes to financial statement.

All transactions entered with related parties for the year under review were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of 
business and that the provisions of section 188 of the companies Act 2013 are not attracted.

Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) your Company 
does not have any subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures. Accordingly, AOC-1 does not form part of the report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule, 5 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company, will be provided upon request. In terms of Section 
136 of the Act, the Report and Accounts are being sent to the Members and others entitled thereto, excluding the information on 
employees’ particulars which is available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during business 
hours on working days of the Company up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any Member is interested in 
obtaining a copy thereof, such Member may write to the Company in this regard.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS.
There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the going concern status of the 
Company and its future operations.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to Directors’ Responsibility 
Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2022, the applicable accounting standards have 
been followed along with proper explanation given relating to material departures;

(ii) appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates were made that 
were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the 
financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

(iii)  proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities have been taken to the best of their knowledge;

(iv)  the annual accounts have been prepared for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 on a going concern basis.

(v)  proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and were operating effectively.

(vi)  systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were adequate and operating 
effectively.

RISKS, THREATS, CONCERNS AND RISK MITIGATION
Risk mitigation has been a priority of the management’s agenda. A structured method of evaluating risk, its impact, evolving a 
mitigation plan and continuous monitoring of performance against the plan is operational. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
Your Board conveys its deep appreciation of the co-operation extended by customers, suppliers, banks, financial institutions, 
contribution made by employees for the company’s growth and shareholders.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

M. P. Patni 
Chairman

Place: Mumbai  
Dated: 27th May, 2022
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Annexure I
Form No.MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
As on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 

[Pursuant to section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12 (1) of the Companies  
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I  REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i.  CIN : U74200MH2011PLC216024
ii.  Registration Date : 11th April, 2011
iii.  Name of the Company : Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
iv.  Category/ Sub-Category of the Company : Public Company / Company Limited by Shares
v.   Addressof the Registered office  and contact 

details
: Ion House, Dr. E. Moses Road,

Mahalaxmi, Mumbai - 400 011
Tel: 022 – 30472042
Fax: 022 – 24938737
Email: ieil@ionexchange.co.in

vi.  Whether listed company : No
vii.   Name, Address and Contact Details of Registrar 

and Transfer Agent, if any
: TSR Darashaw Consltants Pvt Ltd.

C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park
Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg Vikhroli (West), 
Mumbai – 400 083.

II PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sr. 
No.

Name and Description of main products/
services

NIC Code of the Product/service % to total turnover of the com-
pany

1  Project Management Services 99546990 84%

2  Project Management Services 99542699 14%

III PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES-

Sr. 
No.

Name and Address of the 
Company

CIN/GLN Holding/ Subsidiary 
/ Associate

% of shares 
held

Applicable 
Section

1
 
 
 

Ion Exchange (India) Limited 
Ion House
Dr. E. Moses Road,
Mahalaxmi, 
Mumbai 400 011

L74999MH1964PLC014258 
 

Holding 91.81 2(46)
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IV SHAREHOLDINGPATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding
Category of Share-

holders
No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year 

(01.04.2021)
No. of Shares held at the end of the year 

(31.03.2022)
% 

Change 
during 

the 
year 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares
A. Promoters (including Promoter Group)
(1) Indian         
a) Individual/HUF 59,784 6 59,790 0.39 59,784 6 59,790 0.39
b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) State Govt (s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Bodies Corp. 13,968,634 0 13,968,634 91.81 13,968,634 0 13,968,634 91.81 0
e) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Any Other…. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total(A)(1):- 14,028,418 6 14,028,424 92.20 14,028,418 6 14,028,424 92.20 0
(2)Foreign
a) NRIs-Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Other– Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Any Other…. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total(A)(2):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total share holding 
of Promoter (A) = 
(A) (1) + (A) (2)

14,028,418 6 14,028,424 92.20 14,028,418 6 14,028,424 92.20 0

B. Public 
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Venture Capital 
Funds

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f) Insurance Com-
panies

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

g) FIIs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
h) Foreign Venture 
Capital Funds

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total(B)(1):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2.Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp. 828,199 63,600 891,799 5.86 828,199 63,600 891,799 5.86 0
b) Individuals 263,177 31,800 294,977 1.94 294,977 0 294,977 1.94 0
c)Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total(B)(2):- 1,091,376 95,400 1,186,776 7.80 1,123,176 63,600 1,186,776 7.80 0
Total Public Share 
holding (B) = (B) (1) 
+ (B) (2)

1,091,376 95,400 1,186,776 7.80 1,123,176 63,600 1,186,776 7.80 0

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs 
& ADRs

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Grand Total 
(A+B+C)

15,119,794 95,406 15,215,200 100.00 15,151,594 63,606 15,215,200 100.00 0
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ii) Shareholding of Promoters (including Promoter Group)

Sr. 
No. 

Shareholder’s Name 
 

Shareholding at the beginning of the year 
(01.04.2021)

Shareholding at the end of the year 
(31.03.2022)

% change in 
shareholding 

during the 
yearNo. of Shares % of total 

Shares of 
the company

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of 
the com-

pany

% of Shares 
Pledged/ en-

cumbered  
to total  
shares

1 Rajesh Sharma 29,893 0.20 0 29,893 0.20 0 0

2 Dinesh Sharma 29,893 0.19 0 29,893 0.19 0 0

3 Milind Puranik 1 0.00 0 1 0.00 0 0

4 L V Keshav 1 0.00 0 1 0.00 0 0

5 Ajay Popat 1 0.00 0 1 0.00 0 0

6 N M Ranadive 1 0.00 0 1 0.00 0 0

7 Ion Exchange (India) Ltd. 13,968,634 91.81 0 13,968,634 91.81 0 0

 Total 14,028,424 92.20 0 14,028,424 92.20 0 0

iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding : Nil

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):  

Sr. 
No

Name No of shares 
as on 

31.03.2021

No of shares  
as on  

31.03.2022

Net Changes % to Capital

1 M/S. Rockmen Merchants Limited 828,199 828,199 - -

2 M/S. Neer Infrastructure Projects Pvt. Ltd. 63,600 63,600 - -

3 Mrs. Ahalya Ranganathan 29,892 29,892 - -

4 Ms. Devi Menon & Ms. Radha Menon 29,892 29,892 - -

5 Mr. P.Sampathkumar Mrs. Rama Sampathkumar 29,892 29,892 - -

6 Mrs. Rajkumari Nambiar 17,935 17,935 - -

7 Ms. Anita Agarwal 15,900 15,900 - -

8 Mr. Ajay Agarwal 15,900 15,900 - -

9 Mrs. Poonam Sharma 11,957 11,957 - -

10 Mrs. Aruna Sharma 11,957 11,957 - -
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v) Share holding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. 
No.

For Each of the Directors and KMP Share holding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding dur-
ing the year

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 

company
 1 Rajesh Sharma 29,893 0.20 29,893 0.20

 2 Mahabir Prasad Patni 29,893 0.20 29,893 0.20

 3 Dinesh Sharma 29,893 0.19 29,893 0.19

 4 Aankur Patni 29,892 0.20 29,892 0.20

 5 Thekkekara Meloth Mohan Nambiar 11,957 0.08 11,957 0.08

 6 Vijay Narhar Gupchup 29,892 0.20 29,892 0.20

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/ accrued but not due for payment

Amount in Rupees

Secured Loans 
excluding de-

posits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total Indebt-
edness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i)  Principal Amount - 11,46,64,000 - 11,46,64,000

ii)  Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii)  Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) - 11,46,64,000 - 11,46,64,000

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

- Addition - 22,08,10,000 - 22,08,10,000

- Reduction - 17,50,90,000 - 17,50,90,000

Net Change - 4,57,20,000 - 4,57,20,000

Indebtedness at the End of the financial year

i)  Principal Amount - 16,03,84,000 - 16,03,84,000

ii)  Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii)  Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) - 16,03,84,000 - 16,03,84,000
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Amount in Rupees

Sr. 
no.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/
WTD/Manager

Total Amount
(Rs.)

M. P. PATNI

1. Gross salary

(a)   Salary as per provisions contained in section 17 (1) of the Income -tax-
Act,1961

93,14,653 93,14,653

(b)  Value of perquisites u/s17(2) Income-taxAct,1961 68,400 68,400

(c)  Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-taxAct,1961 - -

Total 93,83,053 93,83,053

2. Stock Option - -

3. Sweat Equity - -

4. Commission
- As % of profit - -
- others, specify… - -

5. Others, please specify Retirals - -

Total 93,83,053 93,83,053

B. Remuneration to other directors:

1. Independent Directors

Amount in Rupees

Particulars of Remunera-
tion

Name of Directors Total Amount
Dr. V. N. Gup-

chup
T M M Nambiar Abhiram Seth Ramendra 

Gupta
(Rs.)

-   Fee for attending board/ 
committee meetings

155,000 135,000 130,000 145,000 565,000

-  Commission - - - - -
-  Others, please specify - - - - -

Total (1) 155,000 135,000 130,000 145,000 565,000
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2. Other Non-Executive Directors

Amount in Rupees

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
Rajesh Sharma Dinesh Sharma Aankur Patni (Rs.)

-   Fee for attending board/ 
committee meetings

135,000 125,000 125,000 385,000

-  Commission - - - -
-  Others, please specify - - - -

Total (2) 135,000 125,000 125,000 385,000
Total(B)=(1+2) 950,000

Total Managerial Remuneration 950,000

A. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD / MANAGER / WTD

Amount in Rupees

Sr. 
no.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total  (RS.)
Deputy Company 

Secretary
CFO

Ms. Nikisha Solanki Mr. Hemant Jog
1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17 
(1) of the Income -taxAct,1961

441,108 25,96,360 30,37,468

(b) Value of perquisites u/s17(2) Income-taxAct,1961 58,899 32,400 91,299
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 
Income-taxAct,1961
Total

2. Stock Option - - -
3. Sweat Equity - - -
4. Commission

- As % of profit - - -
- others, specify… - - -

5. Others, please specify Retirals - 2,20,062 2,20,062
Total 500,007 28,48,822 33,48,829

VII PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: Not Applicable

On behalf of Board of Directors

M P Patni 
Chairman

Mumbai 
Date: 27th May, 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of 
Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited (the “Company”), which comprise 
the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement 
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements 
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, 
and its loss and other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.  

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Company’s Directors report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements 
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal  financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:

l Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

l Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

l Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

l Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting 
in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

l Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in 

terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books 
c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of 

changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books 
of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the 
Act. 

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 taken on record 

by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as 
a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. 

(B)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us:
a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31-March-2022 on its financial position in 

its financial statements - Refer Note 36 to the financial statements.
b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 

material foreseeable losses
c) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company.
d) (i)   The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been 

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or 
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 
shall:
l directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or 
l provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(ii)  The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been 
received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall: 
l directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or 
l provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(iii)  Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material misstatement.

e) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
(C)  With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act: 
 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its 

directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to 
any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not 
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Suhas Pai
Partner

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 26 May 2022.

Membership No. 119057 
UDIN: 22119057AJRVHM5491

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited



ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

18

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report – 31st March 2022
(Referred to in our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of Use Assets.

  (B) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company does not hold any intangible assets and as such clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the order 
is not applicable to the Company

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment and 
Right of Use Assets by which all Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of Use Assets are verified in a phased 
manner over a period of 3 years.  In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment and 
Right of Use Assets were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable 
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.  No discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and 
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or 
intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property 
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such 
verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate.  No 
discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 
10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory.  

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees in 
aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time of the 
year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances 
in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during 
the year. Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of the Company, 
the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the 
relevant provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) are not applicable to the Company. 
Accordingly, clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public. Accordingly, 
clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of 
cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the products manufactured by it (and/or services provided by it). Accordingly, 
clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise and Value added tax during the year 
since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into GST.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report – 31st March 2022 (continued)

 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory 
dues including Goods and Services Tax (‘GST’), Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Duty of Customs, 
Cess and other statutory dues. 

 - have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, though there have been slight delays in 
a few cases of Provident fund and Income tax.

 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax (‘GST’), Provident fund, Employees’ 
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-
Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are 
as follows:

Name of the statute Nature of the dues Amount 
(Rs.)

Period to which the 
amount relates

Forum where 
dispute is pending

Central Sales Tax Act, 
1956, West Bengal

Central Sales Tax 
and Interest/Penalty

27.66 Lakhs 2015-16 Deputy Commissioner 
of Commercial Tax

Central Sales Tax Act, 
1956, Jharkhand

Central Sales Tax 
and Interest/Penalty

45.70 Lakhs 2011-12 Deputy Commissioner 
of Commercial Tax

Central Sales Tax Act, 
1956, Jharkhand

Central Sales Tax 
and Interest/Penalty

26.82 Lakhs 2012-13 Deputy Commissioner 
of Commercial Tax

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 7.23 Lakhs 2015-16 and 2017-18 Deputy Commissioner 
of Sales Tax

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books 
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. 

(ix) (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon 
to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government 
or government authority. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management,  the company has not obtained any 
term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix) (c) of the order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the 
Company, we report that the Company has not used funds raised on short-term basis for long-term purposes except 
in the case of funds raised from related parties amounting to Rs. 1,603.84 lacs which is repayable on demand from 
the date of their acceptance. The Company has invested the money for working capital requirements for its 
operations.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial statements 
of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to 
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as defined under the Act.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the 
Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or 
associate companies (as defined under the Act).
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report – 31st March 2022 (continued)

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the 
audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act 
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) Based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not have a vigil mechanism and is not 
required to have a vigil mechanism as per the Act or SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) 
of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with related parties are in 
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have 
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not have an 
Internal Audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per Section 138 of the Act.

(b) In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not have an 
Internal Audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per Section 138 of the Act. Accordingly, 
clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act 
are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, 
clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, 
clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of 
India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 2016 as amended).  Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not applicable

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not 
applicable.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report – 31st March 2022 (continued)

(xix) We draw attention to Note 1.6 to the financial statements which explains that the Company has incurred losses in current 
year and previous year and has accumulated losses as at 31 March 2022. Further, the Company’s current liabilities exceed 
its current assets as at 31 March 2022 by Rs. 1,568.79 lakhs. 

 The overall going concern evaluation indicates negative indicators, i.e. losses during the year, negative net worth and 
working capital deficiencies. Above factors of business has resulted in a condition casting significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as going concern for next twelve months.

 On the basis of the above and according to the information and explanations given to us,  on the basis of the financial 
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our 
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its 
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our 
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that 
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and 
when they fall due.

(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, clauses 
3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Suhas Pai
Partner

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 26 May 2022.

Membership No. 119057 
UDIN: 22119057AJRVHM5491
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the standalone financial statements of 
Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022.
Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial statements under Clause (i) 
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of 
even date)

Opinion
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering 
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
were established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements
A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the standalone financial statements of 
Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements (continued)
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Suhas Pai
Partner

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 26 May 2022.

Membership No. 119057 
UDIN: 22119057AJRVHM5491
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Balance sheet as at 31st March 2022
Notes  As at  As at 

 31st Mar 2022  31st Mar 2021
 INR in lakhs  INR in lakhs 

ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2  47.77  41.79 
(b) Right of use assets 2A  171.51  21.58 
(c) Financial assets

(i) Investments 7  9.84  9.84 
(ii) Trade receivables 3  330.46  330.46 
(iii) Others financial assets 11  0.95  0.95 

(d) Other non-current assets 5  28.29  28.29 
(e) Non-current tax assets 6  111.55  80.61 
Total non-current assets  700.37  513.52 
Current assets
(a) Inventories 8  7.12  4.85 
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 3  548.55  883.08 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 9  208.28  256.06 
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 10  271.39  111.97 
(iv) Loans 4  24.37  17.05 
(v) Others financial assets 11  10.46  1.14 

(c) Other current assets 5  101.93  142.64 
Total current assets  1,172.10  1,416.79 
Total assets  1,872.47  1,930.31 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 
(a) Equity share capital 12  1,521.52  1,521.52 
(b) Other equity 13  (2,631.21)  (2,606.10)
Total equity  (1,109.69)  (1,084.58)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Lease liabilities 15  103.18  -   
(b) Provisions 16  138.09  133.46 
Total non-current liabilities  241.27  133.46 
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 14  1,603.84  1,146.64 
(ii) Lease liabilities 15  67.78  24.81 
(iii) Trade payables 17

- Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises  2.27  -   
- Total outstanding dues to creditors other than small enterprises and micro enterprises  617.80  1,026.57 

(iv) Other financial liabilities 18  238.55  237.48 
(b) Other current liabilities 19  142.78  404.52 
(c) Provisions 16  67.87  41.41 
Total current liabilities  2,740.89  2,881.43 
Total liabilities  2,982.16  3,014.89 
Total equity and liabilities  1,872.47  1,930.31 
Significant accounting policies 1   
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For B S R & Co. LLP  
Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

For and on behalf of the board of directors of 
Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited 
CIN No. : U74200MH2011PLC216024

Suhas Pai  
Partner          
Membership No.: 119057  

Hemant Jog 
Chief Financial Officer

 Nikisha Solanki 
Company Secretary

Rajesh Sharma 
Director 
DIN : 00515486

M. P. Patni 
Whole Time Director 
DIN : 00515553

Mumbai 
26 May 2022

Mumbai 
26 May 2022

Mumbai 
26 May 2022

Mumbai 
26 May 2022

Mumbai 
26 May 2022
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As per our report of even date

For B S R & Co. LLP  
Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

For and on behalf of the board of directors of 
Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited 
CIN No. : U74200MH2011PLC216024

Suhas Pai  
Partner          
Membership No.: 119057  

Hemant Jog 
Chief Financial Officer

 Nikisha Solanki 
Company Secretary

Rajesh Sharma 
Director 
DIN : 00515486

M. P. Patni 
Whole Time Director 
DIN : 00515553

Mumbai 
26 May 2022

Mumbai 
26 May 2022

Mumbai 
26 May 2022

Mumbai 
26 May 2022

Mumbai 
26 May 2022

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March 2022

Notes Year ended 
31st Mar 2022 
INR in lakhs

Year ended 
31st Mar 2021 
INR in lakhs

(a) Income
Revenue from operations 20  2,462.43  3,606.12 
Other income 21  378.54  23.57 
Total income (I)  2,840.97  3,629.69 

(b) Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 22  72.76  807.53 
Employee benefits expense 23  2,082.12  1,882.42 
Finance costs 24  208.42  163.28 
Depreciation and amortization expenses 25  83.98  80.77 
Other expenses 26  407.58  347.11 
Total expenses (II)  2,854.86  3,281.11 

(Loss) / profit  before tax (III) ( a - b )  (13.89)  348.58 

(c) Tax expense - current Tax 43  -    37.04 
Total tax expenses  -    37.04 

(Loss) / profit after tax  (13.89)  311.54 

(d) Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans 27  (11.22)  6.58 
(ii)  Income tax expense on remeasurement benefit of defined  -    -   
Total other comprehensive income (IV)  (11.22)  6.58 

Total Comprehensive Income (III-IV)  (25.11)  318.12 

Earnings per equity share: [Nominal value of shares INR. 10  
(previous year : INR. 10)] (basic and diluted)

28  (0.09)  2.05 

Significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Statement of changes in Equity as on 31st March 2022
A. Equity share capital

31st Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021 

Number of 
shares

INR in Lakhs Number of 
shares

INR in Lakhs

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity 
shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

 15,215,200  1,521.52  15,215,200  1,521.52 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity 
shares outstanding at the end of the year

 15,215,200  1,521.52  15,215,200  1,521.52 

B. Other equity

Reserve and Surplus Total other equity

Capital
reserve

General 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs

Balance as at 1st April 2020  133.06  88.48  (3,160.92)  (2,939.38)

Profit for the year (a)  -    -    311.54  311.54 

Corporate guarantee commission  15.16  -    -    15.16 

Other comprehensive income (b)  -    -    6.58  6.58 

Total comprehensive income for the year (a+b)  15.16  -    318.12  333.28 

Balance as at 31st Mar 2021  148.22  88.48  (2,842.80)  (2,606.10)

Loss for the year (c)  -    -    (13.89)  (13.89)

Other comprehensive income (d)  -    -    (11.22)  (11.22)

Total comprehensive income for the year (c+d)  -    -    (25.11)  (25.11)

Balance as at 31st Mar 2022  148.22  88.48  (2,867.91)  (2,631.21)

As per our report of even date

For B S R & Co. LLP  
Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

For and on behalf of the board of directors of 
Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited 
CIN No. : U74200MH2011PLC216024

Suhas Pai  
Partner          
Membership No.: 119057  

Hemant Jog 
Chief Financial Officer

 Nikisha Solanki 
Company Secretary

Rajesh Sharma 
Director 
DIN : 00515486

M. P. Patni 
Whole Time Director 
DIN : 00515553

Mumbai 
26 May 2022

Mumbai 
26 May 2022

Mumbai 
26 May 2022

Mumbai 
26 May 2022

Mumbai 
26 May 2022



27

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2022

Year ended 
31st Mar 2022 
INR in Lakhs

Year ended 
31st Mar 2021 
INR in Lakhs

A. Cash flow from operating activities:
Net (loss) /profit  before tax as per statement of profit and loss  (13.89)  348.58 
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation and amortization expense  83.98  80.77 
Corporate guarantee charges  -    15.16 
Finance cost  208.42  163.28 
Interest income  (36.23)  (23.57)

Operating profit before working capital changes  242.28  584.22 
Movements in working capital:

Decrease in trade receivables  317.64  633.03 
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories  (2.27)  6.56 
Decrease in loans and advances  33.39  0.71 
(Decrease) in trade payables  (406.50)  (1,056.91)
(Decrease) /Increase in other liabilities  (260.67)  133.02 
Increase in provisions  19.87  33.72 

Cash generated from operations  (56.26)  334.35 
Taxes (paid) / used in  (30.94)  (9.11)

Net cash (used) in / generated from operating activities                (A)  (87.20)  325.24 

B. Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (25.76)  (11.71)
Proceeds from investments sold in fellow subsidiary  -    0.01 
Bank deposit made during the year (with maturity more than three months)  (570.10)  (0.58)
Bank deposit matured during the year (with maturity more than three months)  410.68  -   
Interest received  43.80  35.44 

Net cash (used) in / generated  investing activities                        (B)  (141.38)  23.16 

C. Cash flow from financing activities:
Loan from holding company / (repayment of loan to holding company)  457.20  4.72 
Payment towards lease liability  (81.26)  (76.18)
Finance cost paid  (195.14)  (156.11)
Net cash generated / (used) in financing activities                           (C)  180.80  (227.57)

Net (Decrease) / Increase in cash and cash equivalents          (A)+(B)+(C)  (47.78)  120.83 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year  256.06  135.23 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  208.28  256.06 
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Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd...)
Notes:     

1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting 
Standard (Ind AS-7) - Statement of Cash Flow prescribed under the Companies Act (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 
2015 under the Companies Act, 2013.     

2 Purchase of property, plant and equipment represents additions to property, plant and equipment, and other intangible 
assets adjusted for movement of capital-work-in-progress for property, plant and equipment.    

3 Cash and cash equivalents excludes the following balances with bank:     

(a)  On margin money account Rs. 271.39 Lakhs (previous year : Rs. 111.97 Lakhs)    

 Year ended  
31st Mar 2022 
INR in Lakhs

 Year ended  
31st Mar 2021 
INR in Lakhs

Cash and cash equivalents disclosed under non-current assets [note 9]  208.28  256.06 

Other bank balances disclosed under current assets [note 10]  271.39  111.97 

Total cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet  479.67  368.03 

Less: Other bank balances disclosed under current assets

         On margin money account  271.39  111.97 

Total cash and cash equivalents as per Statement of Cash Flows  208.28  256.06 

2021-2022
As at 

31st Mar 2021
Net cash inflow 

/ (outflow)
Others* As at 

31st Mar 2022
INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs

Borrowings (Non current and current)    1,146.64  457.20         -         1,603.84 
1,146.64     457.20                   -         1,603.84 

2020-2021
As at 

31st Mar 2020
Net cash inflow 

/ (outflow)
Others* As at 

31st Mar 2022
INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs

Borrowings (Non current and current)  1,141.92  4.72  -    1,146.64 
 1,141.92  4.72  -    1,146.64 

 * Lease finance availed during the year forming part of lease liabilities.   

As per our report of even date
For B S R & Co. LLP  
Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

For and on behalf of the board of directors of 
Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited 
CIN No. : U74200MH2011PLC216024

Suhas Pai  
Partner          
Membership No.: 119057  

Hemant Jog 
Chief Financial Officer

 Nikisha Solanki 
Company Secretary

Rajesh Sharma 
Director 
DIN : 00515486

M. P. Patni 
Whole Time Director 
DIN : 00515553

Mumbai 
26 May 2022

Mumbai 
26 May 2022

Mumbai 
26 May 2022

Mumbai 
26 May 2022

Mumbai 
26 May 2022
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022     

Overview of the Company
Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited is a closely held public company, registered under the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company is into business of execution of large EPC projects related to water treatments and provide design, supply, erection 
and commissioning of projects in industries related to power, steel, petrochemical and other sectors.

1. Significant accounting policies
1.1 Statement of compliance

 These financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, the relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’’).

1.2 Basis of preparation

 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis 
of accounting except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each 
reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been applied consistently 
over all the periods presented in these financial statements.

 These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 26 May 2022.

 The operating cycle is determined for each project separately based on the expected execution period of the contract. 

1.3 Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts 
have been rounded off to two decimal places to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

1.4 Basis of measurement

 The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following:

• certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value; and

• net defined benefit (asset)/ liability that are measured at fair value of plan assets less present value of defined 
benefit obligations.

1.5 Use of estimates 

 The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires use of judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses. The actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively. Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 
that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ended 31st March 2022 are as follows:

a) Evaluation of percentage completion

 Determination of revenues under the percentage of completion method necessarily involves making estimates, 
some of which are technical in nature, concerning, where relevant, the percentage of completion, costs to completion, 
expected revenues from the project or activity and the foreseeable losses to completion. Estimates of project 
income, as well as project costs, are reviewed periodically. The effect of changes, if any, to estimates is recognized 
in the financial statements for the period in which such changes are determined.
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1.5 Use of estimates (contd....)

b) Property, plant and equipment 

 Determination of the estimated useful lives of tangible assets and the assessment as to which components of the 
cost may be capitalised. Useful lives of tangible assets are based on the life prescribed in Schedule II of the Act. In 
cases, where the useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule II, they are based on technical advice, 
taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, 
past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and maintenance support.

c) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

 The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial 
assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation, actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount rate 
is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The period to 
maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations.

1.6 Measurement of fair values

 The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities.

 The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values, which includes 
overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values by the management. The management 
regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker 
quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence obtained from the 
third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair 
value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

 When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses observable market data as far 
as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the 
valuation techniques as follows.

-   Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

-  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

-  Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).”

 If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then 
the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level 
input that is significant to the entire measurement. The company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value 
hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred. 

1.7	 	Summary	of	significant	accounting	policies

a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

 Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes taxes, duties, freight and other 
incidental expenses directly related to acquisition/construction and installation of the assets.  Any trade discounts 
and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd....)
1. Significant accounting policies (contd....)
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a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (contd…)

 Depreciation is provided on straight line basis based on life assigned to each asset in accordance with Schedule II 
of the Act or as per life estimated by the Management, whichever is lower, as stated below.

Assets Useful lives
Plant and machinery 10 – 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 4 – 8 years
Office equipments 3 – 5 years

 Site equipments are depreciated over 3 years.

 Leasehold assets are depreciated over the period of lease.

 Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if 
appropriate.

 An item of property, plant and equipment is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further 
benefit is expected from its use and disposal. Gains / losses arising from disposal are recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss.

b) Intangible assets

 Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost and are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortization and impairment.

 Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The amortization 
period and the amortization method are reviewed at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset 
is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly.

 Computer software is amortized on a straight line basis over the period of 5 years.

 An intangible asset is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is expected 
from its use and disposal. Gains / losses arising from disposal are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

c) Impairment

 Impairment loss, if any, is provided to the extent the carrying amount of assets exceeds their recoverable amount. 
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use. Carrying amounts of assets are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date for any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. Value in 
use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and 
from its disposal at end of its useful life. In assessing value in use, the present value is discounted using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. Net 
selling price is the amount obtainable from sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, 
willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

d) Foreign currency transactions

 Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Exchange 
differences arising on the settlement of monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially 
recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in 
the year in which they arise. Foreign currency monetary items are reported at the year-end rates. Exchange 
differences arising on reinstatement of foreign currency monetary items are recognized as income or expense in the 
statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a 
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd....)
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e) Inventories

 Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

 Contract cost that has been incurred and relates to the future activity of the contract are recognized as contract work-
in-progress as it is probable that it will be recovered from the customer.

 Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

f) Financial instruments

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet when the company becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. The company determines the classification of its financial assets and 
financial liabilities at initial recognition based on its nature and characteristics.

A. Financial assets

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

 All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded 
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the 
financial asset.

 The financial assets include equity and debt securities, trade and other receivables, loans and 
advances, cash and bank balances and derivative financial instruments.

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

 For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in the following categories:

a. At amortised cost,

 A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms 
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

b. At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), and

 A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is 
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

c. At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

 A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL

(iii)  Impairment of financial assets

 All financial assets are reviewed for impairment at least at each reporting date to identify whether 
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

(iv)  De-recognition

 The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the asset expires or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset.

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd...)
1. Significant accounting policies (contd....)
1.7  Summary of significant accounting policies (contd…)



33

B. Financial liabilities

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

 All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities classified 
at amortised cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

 The financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
overdrafts, derivative financial instruments, etc.

(ii) Subsequent measurement

 For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

• Financial liabilities at amortised cost, and

• Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

-  Financial liabilities excluding financial instruments at amortised cost

 After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are de-
recognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

 Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance 
costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

-  Derivative financial instruments

 The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts. Such 
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a 
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value at each 
reporting period. Any changes therein are generally recognised in the profit and loss account.

(iii) De-recognition

 A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled 
or expires.

g) Retirement and other employee benefits

i) Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund managed by Government Authorities and Superannuation 
Fund are defined contribution scheme and the contribution is charged to the statement of profit and loss of 
the year when the contribution to the respective fund is due. There is no other obligation other than the 
contribution payable.

ii) Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on 
Projected Unit Credit method made at the end of each financial year. Re-measurements of the net defined 
benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and 
the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 
(OCI)

iii) Short term employee benefits are charged off at the undiscounted amount in the year in which the related 
service is rendered. 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd...)
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g) Retirement and other employee benefits (contd…)

iv) Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is 
done as per Projected Unit Credit method made at the end of each financial year. The company presents the 
leave liability as non-current in the balance sheet, to the extent it has an unconditional right to defer its 
settlement for a period beyond 12 months, and balance amount is presented as current. 

v) The Company’s approved provident fund scheme is a defined contribution plan. The contribution paid/ 
payable under the schemes is recognized as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss during the year 
in which the employee renders the related service. The Company makes specified monthly contributions 
towards employee provident fund. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the 
respective fund.

h) Revenue recognition

 Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the assets is transferred to the 
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

• Revenue related to fixed price maintenance and support services contracts where the company is standing 
ready to provide services is recognised based on time elapsed mode and revenue is straight lined over the 
period of performance.

• In respect of other fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised using percentage-of-completion method 
(‘POC method’) of accounting with contract costs incurred determining the degree of completion of the 
performance obligation. The contract costs used in computing the revenues include cost of fulfilling warranty 
obligations.

 Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume 
discounts and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer.

 Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

 Revenue from holding company is recognised based on transaction price which is at arm’s length.

 Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract 
assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional 
right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

 Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability”) is recognised when there are billings in excess of 
revenues.

 The billing schedules agreed with customers include periodic performance based payments and / or milestone 
based progress payments. Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period.

 In accordance with Ind AS 37, the company recognises an onerous contract provision when the unavoidable 
costs of meeting the obligations under a contract exceed the economic benefits to be received.

 Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and requirements. The 
company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract, basis which the transaction 
price could be allocated to a new performance obligation, or transaction price of an existing obligation could 
undergo a change. In the event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is 
accounted for.

 The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers into categories that depict the nature of 
services and geography.

 Use of significant judgments in revenue recognition

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd...)
1. Significant accounting policies (contd....)
1.7  Summary of significant accounting policies (contd…)



35

• The company’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple products and services to 
a customer. The company assesses the products / services promised in a contract and identify distinct 
performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgment to 
determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such deliverables.

• Judgment is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could be 
either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as volume 
discounts and incentives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if 
the contract includes a significant financing component. Any consideration payable to the customer is 
adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the customer. 
The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it 
is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur 
and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period. The company allocates the elements of variable 
considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract unless there is observable evidence that they 
pertain to one or more distinct performance obligations.

• The company uses judgment to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance 
obligation. The company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis of the 
relative standalone selling price of each distinct product or service promised in the contract. Where standalone 
selling price is not observable, the company uses the expected cost plus margin approach to allocate the 
transaction price to each distinct performance obligation.

• The company exercises judgment in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in 
time or over a period of time. The company considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits 
as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to 
payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and 
rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

• Revenue for fixed-price contract is recognised using percentage-of-completion method. The company uses 
judgment to estimate the future cost-to-completion of the contracts which is used to determine the degree of 
completion of the performance obligation.

 Dividend income is recorded when the right to receive payment is established. Interest income is recognised using 
the effective interest method.

i) Taxation

(i) Provision for current taxation has been made in accordance with the Indian Income tax laws prevailing for the 
relevant assessment years.

(ii) Deferred tax is recognized, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing differences being the difference 
between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in 
one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax is measured on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or 
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.  Deferred tax 
assets are recognized only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income 
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.  

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that 
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax 
asset to be utilised. Un-recognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are 
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax 
asset to be recovered.

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd...)
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i) Taxation (contd…)

  Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other 
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction 
either in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) or directly in equity. 

 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation.  
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will 
be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgment is required to determine the 
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable 
profits, future tax planning strategies. 

j) Provisions and contingent liabilities

 A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation 
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the 
discount is recognised as finance cost.

 A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but 
will probably not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation of a present obligation in 
respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision disclosure is made.

1.8 Earnings per share

 Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential equity shares.

1.9 Segment reporting policies

 Identification of segments

 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision 
maker (CODM). The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance 
of the operating segments, has been identified as the Managing Director who makes strategic decisions.

1.10 Cash and cash equivalents:

 Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with 
an original maturity of three months or less.

1.11 Leases:

 Leases are accounted as per Ind AS 116 which has become mandatory from April 1, 2019.

 Where the company is the lessor

 Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are 
classified as operating leases. Assets given on operating lease by the company are included in property, plant and 
equipment. Lease income is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs such as 
legal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd...)
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1.11 Leases: (contd…)

 Where the company is the lessee

 Assets taken on lease are accounted as right-of-use assets and the corresponding lease liability is accounted at the lease 
commencement date.

 Initially the right-of-use asset is measured at cost which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any 
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred.

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, discounted using the Company’s 
incremental borrowing rate. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an 
index or a rate, or a change in the estimate of the guaranteed residual value, or a change in the assessment of purchase, 
extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to 
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss if the carrying amount of 
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

 The right-of-use asset is measured by applying cost model i.e. right-of-use asset at cost less accumulated amortisation 
and cumulative impairment, if any. The right-of-use asset is amortised, using the straight-line method over the period of 
lease, from the commencement date to the end of the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset whichever is earlier. 
Carrying amount of lease liability is increased by interest on lease liability and reduced by lease payments made.

 Lease payments associated with following leases are recognised as expense on straight-line basis:

(i)  Low value leases; and

(ii)  Leases which are short-term.

1.12 Borrowing costs

 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset 
till such time that it is required to complete and prepare the assets to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing 
costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in 
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd...)
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022  (contd...) 

2. Property, plant and equipment 

INR in Lakhs
Plant and
machinery

Furniture 
and fixtures

Vehicles Office
equipments

Total

Gross block
As at 1st April 2021  30.07  22.91  5.42  70.04  128.44 
Addition during the year  -    -    -    25.76  25.76 
Disposal during the year  -    -    -    -    -   
As at 31st Mar 2022  30.07  22.91  5.42  95.80  154.20 

Depreciation 
As at 1st April 2021  15.06  20.52  2.00  49.07  86.65 
Depreciation during the year  2.44  0.84  1.19  15.31  19.78 
Deduction during the year  -    -    -    -    -   
As at 31st Mar 2022  17.50  21.36  3.19  64.38  106.43 

Net carrying value as at 31st Mar 2022  12.57  1.55  2.23  31.42  47.77 

Gross block
As at 1st April 2020  30.07  22.91  1.92  61.83  116.73 
Addition during the year  -    -    3.50  8.21  11.71 
Disposal during the year  -    -    -    -    -   
As at 31st Mar 2021  30.07  22.91  5.42  70.04  128.44 

Depreciation 
As at 1st April 2020  12.61  19.37  1.85  36.60  70.43 
Depreciation during the year  2.45  1.15  0.15  12.47  16.22 
Deduction during the year  -    -    -    -    -   
As at 31st Mar 2021  15.06  20.52  2.00  49.07  86.65 

Net carrying value as at 31st Mar 2021  15.01  2.39  3.42  20.97  41.79 
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022  (contd...) 

INR in Lakhs
Building

Gross block
As at 1st April 2021  150.86 
Addition during the year  214.13 
Disposal during the year  -   
As at 31st Mar 2022  364.99 

Amortisation
As at 1st April 2021  129.28 
Amortisation during the year  64.20 
Deduction during the year  -   
As at 31st Mar 2022  193.48 
Net carrying value as at 31st Mar 2022  171.51 

Gross block
As at 1st April 2020  -   
On account of transition provisions of Ind AS 116 (Refer note 34)  150.86 
Addition during the year  -   
Disposal during the year  -   
As at 31st March 2021  150.86 

Amortisation
As at 1st April 2020  64.73 
Amortisation during the year  64.55 
Deduction during the year  -   
As at 31st March 2021  129.28 
Net carrying value as at 31st March 2021  21.58 

2.A Right-of-use assets
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3. Trade receivables

Non-current Current
As at 

31st Mar 2022 
INR in Lakhs

As at 
31st Mar 2021 
INR in Lakhs

As at 
31st Mar 2022 
INR in Lakhs

As at 
31st Mar 2021 
INR in Lakhs

Trade receivables
(a)  Unsecured, considered good  409.85  744.56 
(b)  Unsecured, have significant increase in 

credit risk
 330.46  330.46  138.70  138.52 

(c)  Unsecured, credit impaired  330.46  330.46  548.55  883.08 
Less: Provision for credit impaired  - - - -

 330.46  330.46  548.55  883.08 

 Trade receivables (net off provision) ageing schedule     

 As at 31 March 2022

Curent 
but not 

due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of 
payment

Total

Less than 
6 Months

6 months 
- 1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

INR in 
Lacs

INR in 
Lacs

INR in 
Lacs

INR in 
Lacs

INR in 
Lacs

INR in 
Lacs

INR in 
Lacs

Undisputed trade receivables - 
considered good 114.36    14.12 37.42     13.05 9.45 221.45 409.85 
Undisputed Trade Receivables 
- which have significant 
increase in credit risk

- - - - - 138.70 138.70 

Disputed Trade receivables - 
considered good - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk 

- - - - - 330.46 330.46 

Total 114.36      14.12 37.42  13.05     9.45 690.61 879.01 

 Trade receivables (net off provision) ageing schedule    

 As at 31 March 2021
Curent but 

not due
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 
6 Months

6 months - 
1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 years More than 
3 years

INR in 
Lacs

INR in 
Lacs

INR in 
Lacs

INR in 
Lacs

INR in 
Lacs

INR in 
Lacs

INR in 
Lacs

Undisputed trade receivables - 
considered good  97.48  100.36  7.52  70.65  29.25  439.31  744.57 
Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    138.52  138.52 

Disputed Trade receivables - 
considered good  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Disputed Trade receivables - 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk 

 -    -    -    -    -    330.46  330.46 

Total  97.48  100.36  7.52  70.65  29.25  908.29  1,213.55 

 Note : Receivable includes M/s. Ion Exchange Environment Management Ltd. INR 25.95 Lakhs (last year INR 
25.95 Lakhs) (refer note 33)          

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022  (contd...) 
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022  (contd...) 

4. Loans

Current
As at 

31st Mar 2022 
INR in Lakhs

As at 
31st Mar 2021 
INR in Lakhs

Claims receivables  1.13  0.10 
Loans and advance to employees  23.24  16.95 

 24.37  17.05 

5. Other non current assets

Non-current Current
As at 

31st Mar 2022 
INR in Lakhs

As at 
31st Mar 2021 
INR in Lakhs

As at 
31st Mar 2022 
INR in Lakhs

As at 
31st Mar 2021 
INR in Lakhs

Balance with statutory authorities  28.29  28.29  90.16  125.61 
Advance to suppliers  -    -    -    2.70 
Prepaid expenses  -    -    11.77  14.33 

 28.29  28.29  101.93  142.64 

6.  Tax assets

As at 
31st Mar 2022 
INR in Lakhs

As at 
31st Mar 2021 
INR in Lakhs

Income tax paid (net)  111.55  80.61 
 111.55  80.61 

7. Non-current investments    

As at 31st Mar 2022 As at 31st Mar 2021
Units INR in Lakhs Units INR in Lakhs

Measured at fair value through profit and 
loss in equity shares of others
Unquoted, fully paid-up
Total Water Management Services (India) 
Limited of INR 10 each

11779  9.84 11779  9.84 

(A)  9.84  9.84 

Total non current investments                (A)  9.84  9.84 
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments  9.84  9.84 
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8. Inventories  
 (Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)  

As at 
 31st Mar 2022 
 INR in Lakhs 

 As at 
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

Raw materials  7.12  4.85 
 7.12  4.85 

9. Cash and cash equivalents  

 As at 
 31st Mar 2022 
 INR in Lakhs 

 As at 
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

Balances with banks
On current accounts  206.70  254.26 

Cash on hand  1.58  1.80 
 208.28  256.06 

10. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents  

  As at 
 31st Mar 2022 
 INR in Lakhs 

As at
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

On margin money account *  271.39  111.97 
 271.39  111.97 

 *Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of INR 271.39 Lakhs (previous year : INR 111.97 Lakhs) are subject to first 
charge to secure bank guarantees issued by a bank on behalf of the Company. 

11. Others financial assets  

Non-current Current
As at 

31st Mar 2022 
INR in Lakhs

As at 
31st Mar 2021 
INR in Lakhs

As at 
31st Mar 2022 
INR in Lakhs

As at 
31st Mar 2021 
INR in Lakhs

Tender, security and other deposits  0.95  0.95  2.12  1.04 
Interest accrued on margin money  8.34  0.10 

 0.95  0.95  10.46  1.14 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd...) 
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd...)
12. Equity share capital       

As at 31st Mar 2022 As at 31st Mar 2021
No of shares INR in Lakhs No of shares INR in Lakhs

Authorised capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each.  20,000,000  2,000.00  20,000,000  2,000.00 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each.  15,215,200  1,521.52  15,215,200  1,521.52 

 1,521.52  1,521.52 
 (a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at 31st Mar 2022 As at 31st Mar 2021
No of shares INR in Lakhs No of shares INR in Lakhs

At the end of the year  15,215,200  1,521.52  15,215,200  1,521.52 

 (b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares      

 The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share.  Each holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the 
Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 
company after distribution of preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held 
by the shareholders.          

 (c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company *      
As at 31st Mar 2022 As at 31st Mar 2021

No of shares % holding No of shares % holding
- Ion Exchange (India) Limited, the holding 

Company and its nominees
 13,968,640 91.81%  13,968,640 91.81%

 - Rockmen Merchants Limited  828,199 5.44%  828,199 5.44%
 * As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from 

shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of 
shares.         

 (d) Details of shares held by promoter and promoter group      
 As on 31st March 2022

Sr. No. Shareholder’s Name No. of Shares % of total Shares of 
the company

% change in shareholding 
during the year

1 Rajesh Sharma              29,893                  0.20                           -   
2 Dinesh Sharma              29,893                  0.19                           -   
3 Milind Puranik                        1                       -                             -   
4 L V Keshav                        1                       -                             -   
5 Ajay Popat                        1                       -                             -   
6 N M Ranadive                        1                       -                             -   
7 Ion Exchange (India) Ltd.     13,968,634                91.81                           -   

 Total     14,028,424                92.20                           -   
 As on 31st March 2021

Sr. No. Shareholder’s Name No. of Shares % of total Shares of 
the company

% change in shareholding 
during the year

1 Rajesh Sharma  29,893  0.20  -   
2 Dinesh Sharma  29,893  0.19  -   
3 Milind Puranik  1  -    -   
4 L V Keshav  1  -    -   
5 Ajay Popat  1  -    -   
6 N M Ranadive  1  -    -   
7 Ion Exchange (India) Ltd.  13,968,634  91.81  -   

 Total  14,028,424  92.20  -   
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13. Other equity   

As at
31st Mar 2022
INR in Lakhs

As at
31st Mar 2021
INR in Lakhs

General reserve
Balance as at beginning and at the end of the year  88.48  88.48 

 88.48  88.48 
Capital reserve
Balance as at beginning of the year  148.22  133.06 
Addition during the year  -    15.16 
Balance as at the end of the year  148.22  148.22 
Retained earnings
Balance as at April 1  (2,842.80)  (3,160.92)
(Loss) / profit for the year  (13.89)  311.54 
Other comprehensive Income  (11.22)  6.58 

 (2,867.91)  (2,842.80)
 (2,631.21)  (2,606.10)

 Notes    
 Description of nature and purpose of each reserve    
 General reserve: The balance represents general reserve of amalgamated company transferred on amalgamation.  
 Capital Reserve: Guarantee commission payable to holding Company.    

14. Borrowings    

As at
31st Mar 2022 
INR in Lakhs

As at
31st Mar 2021
INR in Lakhs

Loan from holding company (unsecured) [refer note below] & refer note 33)  1,603.84  1,146.64 
 1,603.84  1,146.64 

The above amount includes
Unsecured borrowings  1,603.84  1,146.64 

 1,603.84  1,146.64 
 Loan taken from Holding Company - Ion Exchange (India) Limited carries interest @ 10% p.a. is payable half yearly.  INR 

1,146.64 Lakhs and Rs. 457.20 Lakhs is payable on demand.    

15 Lease liabilities    

Non-current Current
As at

31st Mar 2022
INR in Lakhs

As at
31st Mar 2021
INR in Lakhs

As at
31st Mar 2022
INR in Lakhs

As at
31st Mar 2021
INR in Lakhs

Lease liabilities IND AS 116  103.18  -    67.78  24.81 
 103.18  -    67.78  24.81 

 

16. Provisions    

 Non-current Current
 As at 

31st Mar 2022
 INR in Lakhs 

 As at 
31st Mar 2021
 INR in Lakhs 

 As at 
31st Mar 2022
 INR in Lakhs 

 As at 
31st Mar 2021
 INR in Lakhs 

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 29)  138.09  133.46  67.87  41.41 
 138.09  133.46  67.87  41.41 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd...) 
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd...) 

17. Trade payables  

 As at 
31st Mar 2022
 INR in Lakhs 

 As at 
31st Mar 2021
 INR in Lakhs 

Trade payables (including acceptances)
- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (Refer note 38)  2.27  -   
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises  617.80  1,026.57 

 620.07  1,026.57 

 Trade payables ageing schedule

 As at 31 March 2022
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
INR in Lacs INR in Lacs INR in Lacs INR in Lacs INR in Lacs

Total outstanding dues of 
micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

 2.27  -    -    -    2.27 

Total outstanding dues of 
creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small 
enterprises

 3.30  0.10  1.64  290.88  295.92 

Disputed dues of micro 
enterprises and small 
enterprises

 -    -    -    -    -   

Disputed dues of creditors 
other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises

 -    -    -    24.02  24.02 

Unbilled trade payables  284.93  -    -    -    284.93 
Not due trade payables  12.93  -    -    -    12.93 

 303.43  0.10  1.64  314.90  620.07 

 As at 31 March 2021
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

INR in Lacs INR in Lacs INR in Lacs INR in Lacs INR in Lacs
Total outstanding dues of 
micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

 -    -    -    -    -   

Total outstanding dues of 
creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small 
enterprises

 22.78  0.48  14.30  653.79  691.35 

Disputed dues of micro 
enterprises and small 
enterprises

 -    -    -    -    -   

Disputed dues of creditors other 
than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

 -    -    0.46  3.17  3.63 

Unbilled trade payables  326.69  -    -    -    326.69 
Not due trade payables  4.90  -    -    -    4.90 

 354.37  0.48  14.76  656.96  1,026.57 
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd...) 

18. Other financial liabilities  

 As at 
31st Mar 2022
 INR in Lakhs 

 As at 
31st Mar 2021
 INR in Lakhs 

Employee benefits payable  238.55  237.48 
 238.55  237.48 

19. Other current liabilities

 As at 
31st Mar 2022
 INR in Lakhs 

 As at 
31st Mar 2021
 INR in Lakhs 

Advance from customers (contract liability) (refer note 31)  2.12  30.99 
Statutory dues (including GST, TDS etc.)  140.66  373.53 

 142.78  404.52 

20. Revenue from operations  

Year ended
 31st Mar 2022 
 INR in Lakhs 

Year ended
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

Revenue from operations (refer note 31)
Sale of products
Water treatment plants & accessories  3.25  87.30 

Sale of services
Erection and commissioning  44.25  14.98 
Design and engineering  -    490.00 

Others operating revenue
Project management fees  2,089.93  2,713.84 
Other support service  325.00  300.00 

Revenue from operations  2,462.43  3,606.12 

21. Other income  

Year ended
 31st Mar 2022 
 INR in Lakhs 

Year ended
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

Interest income on financial instruments measured at amortised cost
- From banks  17.54  5.35 
- From others  18.69  18.22 

Other non operating Income  342.31  -   
 378.54  23.57 
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22. Cost of raw material   

Year ended
 31st Mar 2022 
 INR in Lakhs 

Year ended
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

Inventory at the beginning of the year  4.85  11.41 
Add: Purchases*  75.03  800.97 
Less: Inventory at the end of the year  7.12  4.85 
Cost of raw material consumed **  72.76  807.53 

  * Includes direct expenses incurred on contracts INR 38.54 Lakhs,  (2020-2021 : INR 32.55 Lakhs)   

 ** The value of raw materials consumed have been arrived at on basis of opening stocks plus purchases less closing stock. 
The consumption therefore includes adjustments for materials sold, shortage/ excess and obsolescence.  

23. Employee benefits expense  

Year ended
 31st Mar 2022 
 INR in Lakhs 

Year ended
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

Salaries, wages and bonus  1,925.80  1,754.37 
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 29)  99.06  91.99 
Staff welfare expense  57.26  36.06 

 2,082.12  1,882.42 

24. Finance costs   

Year ended
 31st Mar 2022 
 INR in Lakhs 

Year ended
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

Interest on others  0.03  3.35 
Interest on loan from holding company (refer note 33)  195.11  152.76 
Interest on lease  13.28  7.17 

 208.42  163.28 

25. Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Year ended
 31st Mar 2022
 INR in Lakhs 

Year ended
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

Depreciation  of property, plant and equipment (refer note 2)  19.78  16.22 
Amortisation of right of use assets (refer note 2A)  64.20  64.55 

 83.98  80.77 
 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd...) 
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd...) 

26. Other expenses 

Year ended
 31st Mar 2022 
 INR in Lakhs 

Year ended
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

Power and fuel  1.68  0.63 
Repairs and maintenance  - others  4.02  2.59 
Rent  4.74  4.20 
Rates and taxes  0.05  0.82 
Travelling and conveyance  198.32  148.93 
Freight  0.35  0.65 
Advertisement and publicity  1.26  0.22 
Legal and professional charges  135.60  117.50 
Telephone and communication  9.44  8.64 
Auditors' remuneration (refer below note no. 26.1)  4.15  4.13 
Directors' fees (refer note 33)  9.45  9.50 
Bank charges  0.67  2.95 
Corporate guarantee charges  -    15.16 
Establishment and other miscellaneous expenses  37.85  31.19 

 407.58  347.11 

26.1 Auditors’ remuneration (excluding taxes)  

Year ended
 31st Mar 2022 
 INR in Lakhs 

Year ended
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

As auditor:
- Audit fees  4.15  4.13 

 4.15  4.13 

27. Other comprehensive income  

Year ended
 31st Mar 2022 
 INR in Lakhs 

Year ended
 31st Mar 2021 
 INR in Lakhs 

Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
Re-measurements of defined benefit plans (refer note 29)  11.22  (6.58)

 11.22  (6.58)
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd...)
28. Earnings per share (EPS)

Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
I Profit / (loss) computation for both basic and diluted earnings per share of 

INR 10 each
Net profit / (loss) as per the statement of profit and loss available for equity 
shareholders (INR in Lakhs)

(13.89) 311.54

II Weighted average number of equity shares for earnings per share 
computation
A) For basic earnings per share 15,215,200 15,215,200
B) For diluted earnings per share

No. of shares for basic EPS as per IIA 15,215,200 15,215,200
Add: Weighted average outstanding employee stock options deemed 
to be issued for no consideration

- -

No. of shares for diluted earnings per share 15,215,200 15,215,200
III Earnings per share in Rupees (Weighted average)

Basic (INR) and Diluted (INR) (0.09) 2.05

29. Employee benefits

A. The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets 
a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn basic salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is 
funded to a separate trust duly recognized by Income tax authorities.

 The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and 
the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the gratuity and provident fund plan.

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars 2021-2022
(Gratuity)

2020-2021
(Gratuity)

I Change in the present value of projected benefit obligation
present value of benefit obligation at the beginning of the period 159.20 143.89
Interest cost 9.65 9.17
Current service cost 16.16 16.24
Liability transferred in/ acquisitions - 0.82
(Liability transferred out/ divestments) - (1.05)
(Benefit paid from the fund) (1.62) (3.19)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations – Due to Change in Demographic 
Assumptions

0.03 -

Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations - due to change in financial 
assumptions

(2.87) 2.00

Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations - due to experience 12.97 (8.67)
Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the period 193.51 159.20

II Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period 158.32 144.94
Interest income 9.59 9.23
Contributions by the employer 27.72 7.43
(Benefits paid from the fund) (1.62) (3.19)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income (1.10) (0.08)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period 192.92 158.33



ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

50

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd...) 

29.     Employee benefits (contd...) 

(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars 2021-2022

(Gratuity)
2020-2021
(Gratuity)

III Amount recognized in the balance sheet
(Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the period)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period
Funded status (surplus/(deficit))
Net (liability)/asset recognized in the balance sheet

(193.51)
192.92
(0.59)
(0.59)

(159.20)
158.32
(0.88)
(0.88)

IV Net interest cost for current period
Present value of benefit obligation at the beginning of the period
(Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period)
Net liability/(asset) at the beginning
Interest cost
(Interest income)
Net interest cost for current period

159.20
(158.32)

0.87
9.65

(9.59)
0.05

143.89
(144.94)

(1.05)
9.17

(9.23)
(0.07)

V Expenses recognized in the  statement of profit or loss for current period
Current service cost
Net interest cost
Expenses recognized

16.16
0.05

16.21

16.24
(0.07)
16.17

VI Expenses recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI) for 
current period
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation for the period
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income
Net (income)/expense for the period recognized in OCI

10.12
1.10

11.22

(6.67)
0.08

(6.58)
VII Net interest cost for next year 

Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the period 193.51 159.20
(Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period) (192.92) (158.32)
Net liability/(asset) at the end of the period 0.59 0.88
Interest cost 12.42 9.65
(Interest income) (12.39) (9.60)
Net interest cost for next year 0.04 0.05

VIII Expenses recognized in the statement of profit or loss for next year 
Current service cost 17.48 16.16
Net interest cost 0.04 0.05
Expenses recognized 17.52 16.21

IX Maturity analysis of the benefit payments: from the fund 
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting
1st Following year 61.34 28.65
2nd Following year 22.70 38.67
3rd Following year 16.39 17.09
4th Following year 19.11 12.25
5th Following year 16.39 14.04
Sum of years 6 To 10 64.34 53.27
Sum of years 11 and above 63.21 52.20
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022  (contd...) 

29.     Employee benefits (contd...)

(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars 2021-2022

(Gratuity)
2020-2021
(Gratuity)

X Sensitivity analysis
Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions 193.51 159.20
Delta effect of +0.5% change in rate of discounting (3.61) (3.20)
Delta effect of -0.5% change in rate of discounting 3.80 3.36
Delta effect of +0.5% change in rate of salary increase 3.73 3.28
Delta effect of -0.5% change in rate of salary increase (3.58) (3.15)
Delta effect of +0.5% change in rate of employee turnover (0.52) (0.53)
Delta effect of -0.5% change in rate of employee turnover 0.54 0.55

XI Actuarial assumptions:
1. Discount rate 6.44% 6.06%
2. Expected rate of salary increase [Refer note (b) below] 8.00% 8.00%
3. Mortality IALM (2012-14) IALM (2006-08)
4. Attrition rate 14.00% 14.00%
5. Rate of return on plan assets 6.44% 6.06%

 The Company expects to contribute INR 0.59 Lakhs (2020-2021: INR 0.88 Lakhs) to gratuity in 2021-2022.

 The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Sr. 
No. Categories of assets

% of holding
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

1 HDFC Standard Life Insurance Company Limited 100% 100%

 The expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the 
period over which the obligation is to be settled.

 Details of Defined Benefit Obligation Planned Assets and Experience Adjustments:

           (INR in Lakhs)

Gratuity 21-22 20-21 19-20 18-19 17-18 16-17 15-16
Defined benefit obligation 193.51 159.20 143.89 128.56 111.37 107.78 101.41
Plan assets 192.92 158.33 144.94 132.98 126.10 115.51 112.64
Surplus / (deficit) (0.59) (0.88) 1.05 4.42 14.73 7.72 11.23
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 12.97 (8.67) 6.51 (0.06) 9.25 (6.03) (0.24)
Experience adjustments on plan assets (1.10) (0.08) 0.34 1.13 2.61 0.06 1.15

 Notes: 

a) Amounts recognized as an expense and included in note 23:

 Gratuity in “Contribution to provident and other funds” INR 16.21 Lakhs (2021-2022: INR 16.17 Lakhs ).

b) The estimates of future salary increases considered in the actuarial valuation take account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd...) 

29.     Employee benefits (contd...)

B. Defined contribution plan:

 Amount recognized as an expense and included in the note 23 – “Contribution to provident and other funds” of the 
statement of profit and loss INR 63.12 Lakhs (2020-21 : INR 59.44 Lakhs). 

C. Other employee benefits:

 Amounts recognized as an expense and included in note 23:

 Leave encashment in “Salaries, wages and bonus” INR 40.34 Lakhs (2020-21: INR 34.46 Lakhs)

D. The net provision for leave encashment liability up to 31st March 2022 is INR 205.37 Lakhs (31st March 2021 : INR 173.99 
Lakhs).

30. Financial instruments

 Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management

A.  Accounting classification and fair values

 The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their 
levels. It does not include the fair value information for current financial assets and current financial liabilities not measured 
at fair value if their carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

 As at 31st March 2022                                               (INR in Lakhs)

Note 
No.

Carrying amount Fair value
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized 

Cost
Total Quoted 

prices 
in active 
markets  
(Level 1)

Significant 
observable 

inputs 
(Level 2)

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs 
 (Level 3)

Total

Financial assets 
Non-current investments 7 9.84 - - 9.84 - - 9.84 9.84
Loans – Non Current *** 11 - - 0.95 0.95 - - -
Trade receivables: Non-current *** 3 - - 330.46 330.46 - - -
Trade receivables : Current *** 3 - - 548.55 548.56 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents*** 9 - - 208.28 208.28 - - - -
Other bank balances*** 10 - - 271.39 271.39 - - - -
Loans – Current*** 4 - - 24.37 24.37 - - - -
Other financial assets – Current*** 11 - - 10.46 10.46 - - - -

Total 9.84 - 1,394.46 1,404.30 - - 9.84 9.84
Financial liabilities 
Borrowings : Current *** 14 - - 1,603.84 1,603.84 - - - -
Trade payables*** 17 - - 620.07 620.07 - - - -
Other Current financial liabilities – 
Current***

18 - - 238.55 238.55 - - - -

Lease liabilities : Non-Current *** 15 - - 103.18 103.18 - - - -
Lease liabilities : Current– *** 15 - - 67.78 67.78 - - - -

Total - - 2,633.42 2,633.42 - - - -
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30. Financial instruments (contd...)

 As at 31st March 2021                                                                                (INR in Lakhs)

Note 
No.

Carrying amount Fair value
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized 

Cost
Total Quoted 

prices 
in active 
markets  
(Level 1)

Significant 
observable 

inputs 
(Level 2)

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs 
 (Level 3)

Total

Financial assets 
Non-current investments 7 9.84 - - 9.84 - - 9.84 9.84
Loans – Non Current *** 11 - - 0.95 0.95 - - - -
Trade receivables: Non-current 
***

3 - - 330.46 330.46 - - - -

Trade receivables : Current *** 3 - - 883.08 883.08 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents*** 9 - - 256.06 256.06 - - - -
Other bank balances*** 10 - - 111.97 111.97 - - - -
Loans – Current*** 4 - - 17.05 17.05 - - - -
Other financial assets – 
Current***

11 - - 1.14 1.14 - - - -

Total 9.84 - 1,600.71 1,610.55 - - 9.84 9.84

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings : Current *** 14 - - 1,146.64 1,146.64 - - - -
Trade payables*** 17 - - 1,026.57 1,026.57 - - - -
Other Current financial liabilities 
– Current***

18 - - 237.48 237.48 - - - -

Lease liabilities : Current– *** 15 - - 24.81 24.81 - - - -
Total - - 2,435.50 2,435.50 - - - -

 ***The Company has not disclosed the fair value of current financial instruments such as trade receivables, cash and cash 
equivalent, bank balances - others, loans, others, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities because their 
carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

B. Measurement of fair values

 Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

 The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the 
significant unobservable inputs used.

 Financial instruments measured at fair value

Type Valuation technique
Non-current financial assets measured at am-
ortised cost

Discounted cash flow technique: The valuation model considers 
present value of expected payments discounted using an appropriate 
discounting rate.

 The cost of unquoted investments included in level 3 of fair value hierarchy approximate their fair value because there is 
a wide range of possible fair value measurements and the cost represents estimate of fair value within that range.   

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd...)  
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30. Financial instruments (contd...)

C. Financial risk management

 The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

 ▪ Credit risk;

 ▪ Liquidity risk; and

 ▪ Market risk

(i) Risk management framework

 The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk 
management framework. The board of directors has established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible 
for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the board of 
directors on its activities

 The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Company, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems 
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its 
training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment 
in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

 The Board of Directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the company’s risk management policies 
and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the 
Company.  The Board of Directors are assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular 
and adhoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

(ii) Credit risk

 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 
its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and investment securities. 

 Trade receivables

 Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness 
of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. In respect of trade receivables, 
the company is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counter party or any group of counterparties 
having similar characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers in various geographical areas. 
The company assesses the credit quality of the trade receivables based on market intelligence, customers’ payment 
history and defaults.

 Cash and cash equivalents

 The Company held cash and cash equivalents of INR 208.28 Lakhs as at 31st March 2022 (as at 31st March 2021: INR 
256.06 Lakhs). The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and financial institution counterparties with good credit 
ratings.

 Other bank balances

 The Company held other bank balances equivalents of INR 271.39 Lakhs as at 31st March 2022 (as at 31st March 2021: 
INR 111.97 Lakhs).  The other bank balances are mainly surplus fund invested in bank fixed deposits and margin money 
against bank guarantees issued by bank on our behalf. 

 Other financial assets

 Other financial assets mainly comprises of tender deposits and security deposits which are given to customers or other 
governmental agencies in relation to contracts executed and are assessed by the Company for credit risk on a continuous 
basis.

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd...)  
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30. Financial instruments (contd...)

(iii) Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to 
ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal 
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

 The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from holding company and various banks. The 
Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit.

 Exposure to liquidity risk

 The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross 
and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

 Investments

 The Company does not invest in liquid securities. Hence does not envisage any credit risk for the same.

 As at 31st March 2022                (INR in Lakhs)

Contractual cash flows
Carrying 
amount

Total Up to 
1 year

1-3  
years

3-5  
years

More than  
5 years

Non- derivative financial liabilities  

(i) Lease liabilities : Non-Current 103.18 103.18 75.90 27.28 - -

Total (a) 103.18 103.18 75.90 27.28 - -
Current Financial liabilities
(i)  Borrowings : Current 1,603.84 1,603.84 1,603.84* - - -

(ii)  Trade payables 620.07 620.07 620.07 - - -

(iii) Other financial liabilities 238.55 238.55 238.55 - - -

(iv) Lease liabilities : Current 67.78 67.78 67.78 - - -

Total (b) 2,530.24 2,530.24 2,530.24 - - -
Total (a)+(b) 2,633.42 2,633.42 2,606.14 27.28 - -

 As at 31st March 2021                (INR in Lakhs)

Contractual cash flows
Carrying 
amount

Total Up to 
1 year

1-3  
years

3-5  
years

More than  
5 years

Current Financial liabilities

(i)  Borrowings : Current 1,146.64 1,146.64 1,146.64* - - -

(ii)  Trade payables 1,026.57 1,026.57 1,026.57 - - -

(iii) Other financial liabilities 237.48 237.48 237.48 - - -

(iv) Lease liabilities : Current 24.81 24.81 24.81 - - -

Total 2435.50 2435.50 2435.50 - - -

 *It’s exclusive of interest. Refer Note. 14
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30. Financial instruments (contd...)

 Interest rate risk

 Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the 
risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates, in cases 
where the borrowings are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future 
cash flows of floating interest bearing investments will fluctuate because of fluctuations in the interest rates.

 Exposure to interest rate risk

 Company’s interest rate risk arises primarily from holding company.  The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-
bearing financial instruments is as follows.

(INR in Lakhs)

 As at
31st March 22
INR in Lakhs

As at
31st March 21
INR in Lakhs

Fixed rate loan
Financial liabilities - measured at amortized cost
Short term borrowings 1,603.84 1,146.64

 Total (a) 1,603.84 1,146.64

 Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments:

 The company does not account for any fixed-rate borrowings at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in 
interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

(iv) Market risk

 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices – such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices – will 
affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.  Market risk is attributable to all market 
risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and long term debt. The objective 
of market risk management is to avoid excessive exposure in our foreign currency revenues and costs.

31. Disclosure as per IND AS 115

a) The Company undertakes Engineering, Procurement and Construction business. The type of work in the contracts with the 
customers involve construction, engineering, designing, supply of materials, development of system, installation, project 
management, operations and maintenance etc. The effect of initially applying Ind AS 115 on the Company’s revenue from 
contracts with customers is described in Note 1.8H.

b) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers - Refer Note 20.
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c) Contract balances

 The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with 
customers:

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Receivables which are included in Trade and other receivables
Contract assets
- Amount due from customers on construction contract - -
- Accrued value of work done net off provision - -
Contract liabilities
- Amount due to customers under construction contracts  -    -   
- Advance from clients 2.12 30.99

 As on 31st March 2022, revenue recognised in the current year from performance obligations satisfied/ partially satisfied in 
the previous year is INR 2,462.43 Lakhs.

d) Performance obligation

 The Company undertakes Engineering, Procurement and Construction business. The type of work in the contracts with the 
customers involve selling of construction, engineering, designing, supply of materials, development of system, installation, 
project management, operations and maintenance etc.

 The Company evaluates whether each contract consists of a single performance obligation or multiple performance 
obligations. Contracts where the Company provides a significant integration service to the customer by combining all the 
goods and services are concluded to have a single performance obligation. Contracts with no significant integration 
service, and where the customer can benefit from each unit on its own, are concluded to have multiple performance 
obligations. In such cases consideration is allocated to each performance obligation, based on standalone selling prices. 
Where the Company enters into multiple contracts with the same customer, the Company evaluates whether the contract 
is to be combined or not by evaluating factors such as commercial objective of the contract, consideration negotiated with 
the customer and whether the individual contracts have single performance obligations or not.

 The Company recognises contract revenue over time as the performance creates or enhances an asset controlled by the 
customer. For such arrangements revenue is recognised using cost based input methods. Revenue is recognised with 
respect to the stage of completion, which is assessed with reference to the proportion of contract costs incurred for the 
work performed at the balance sheet date relative to the estimated total contract costs.

 Any costs incurred that do not contribute to satisfying performance obligations are excluded from the Company’s input 
methods of revenue recognition as the amounts are not reflective of our transferring control of the system to the customer. 
Significant judgment is required to evaluate assumptions related to the amount of net contract revenues, including the 
impact of any performance incentives, liquidated damages, and other forms of variable consideration. 

 If estimated incremental costs on any contract, are greater than the net contract revenues, the Company recognises the entire 
estimated loss in the period the loss becomes known. Variations in contract work, claims, incentive payments are included in 
contract revenue to the extent that may have been agreed with the customer and are capable of being reliably measured. 

 Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

 Revenue from sale of goods is recognizes at the point in time when control of the assets is transferred to the customer, 
generally on delivery of the goods. 

 Revenue related to fixed price maintenance and support services contracts where the company is standing ready to 
provide services is recognised based on time elapsed mode and revenue is straight lined over the period of performance.

 The Company applies practical expedient in paragraph 121 of Ind AS 115 and does not disclose information about 
remaining performance obligations that have original expected duration of one year or less.
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31. Disclosure as per IND AS 115 (contd...)

e) Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

 The following table discloses the reconciliation of amount of revenue recognised as at 31st March 2022:

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st  March 2022 31st March 2021
Contract price of the revenue recognised 2,462.43 3,606.12
Add: Performance bonus - -
Add: Incentives - -
Less: Liquidated damages - -
Revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 2,462.43 3,606.12

32. Segment Information:

 The Company’s only business being engineering of water treatment plants, disclosure of segment-wise information is not 
applicable under Ind AS-108 - ‘Operating Segments’. There is no geographical segment to be reported since all the 
operations are undertaken in India.

Particulars 31st  March 2022 31st March 2021
Revenue more than 10% - ION Exchange (India) Ltd. 2,414.34 3,503.84

33. Related party disclosures (As identified by the management):

Where Control Exists
a) Holding Company 1. Ion Exchange (India) Limited
Others:
b) Enterprise owned or significantly influenced 

by key managerial personnel or their rela-
tives

1. Global Composites And Structurals Limited
2. Ion Exchange Enviro Farms Limited
3. Ion Exchange Environment Management Ltd.
4. Ultrafresh Modular Solutions Limited
5. Ion Foundation

c) Key managerial personnel 1. Mr. Mahabir Patni– Chairman
d) Relatives of key management Personnel 1. Mr. Ankur Patni – Son of Mr. Mahabir Patni

2. Mrs. Nirmala Patni – Wife of Mr. Mahabir Patni
3. Mr. Bimal Jain – Brother of Mr. Mahabir Patni

e) Non-executive directors 1. Dr. V. N. Gupchup
2. Mr. T. M. M. Nambiar
3. Mr. Ramendra Gupta
4. Mr. Abhiram Seth
5. Mr. Rajesh Sharma
6. Mr. Ankur Patni
7. Mr. Dinesh Sharma
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33.  Related party disclosures (As identified by the management (contd…):

 Transactions during the year with related parties except entity having significant influence with outstanding balances as at 
year-end: 

  (INR in Lakhs)

Nature of transactions
 

Party referred to in
 (a)

Party referred to 
in (b)

Party referred to in 
(c) (d) & (e)

Total

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

Project management, DE 
and other support services 
rendered
Ion Exchange (India) Limited 2,414.94 3,503.84 - - - - 2,414.94 3,503.84
TOTAL 2,414.94 3,503.84 - - - - 2,414.94 3,503.84
Purchase of goods and 
services
Ion Exchange (India) Limited 0.11 20.35 - - - - 0.11 20.35
TOTAL 0.11 20.35 - - - - 0.11 20.35
Service charges
Ion Exchange (India) Limited 34.75 11.18 - - - - 34.75 11.18
TOTAL 34.75 11.18 - - - - 34.75 11.18
Interest on loan
Ion Exchange (India) Limited 195.11 152.76 - - - - 195.11 152.76
TOTAL 195.11 152.76 - - - - 195.11 152.76
Other expenses
Rental expenses
Ion Exchange (India) Limited 81.25 76.18 - - - - 81.25 76.18
TOTAL 81.25 76.18 - - - - 81.25 76.18
Guarantee Commission
Ion Exchange (India) Limited - 15.16 - - - - - 15.16
TOTAL - 15.16 - - - - - 15.16
Remuneration
Mr. Mahabir Prasad Patni - - - - 99.71 93.83 99.71 93.83
TOTAL - - - - 99.71 93.83 99.71 93.83
Director sitting fees
Mr. Rajesh Sharma - - - - 1.25 1.35 1.25 1.35
Mr. Ankur Patni - - - - 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25
Mr. Dinesh Sharma - - - - 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25
Mr. T. M. M. Nambiar - - - - 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35
Dr. V N Gupchup - - - - 1.45 1.55 1.45 1.55
Mr. Abhiram Seth - - - - 1.45 1.30 1.45 1.30
Mr. Ramendra Gupta - - - - 1.45 1.45 1.45 1.45
TOTAL - - - - 9.45 9.50 9.45 9.50
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33.  Related party disclosures (As identified by the management (contd…):

(INR in Lakhs)

Nature of transactions
 

Party referred to in 
(a)

Party referred to in 
(b)

Party referred to in 
(c) (d) & (e)

Total

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

Loans received
Ion Exchange (India) Limited 2,073.94 4,316.30 - - - - 2,073.94 4,316.30
TOTAL 2,073.94 4,316.30 - - - - 2,073.94 4,316.30
Loans repaid
Ion Exchange (India) Limited 1,750.90 4,322.76 - - - - 1,750.90 4,322.76
TOTAL 1,750.90 4,322.76 - - - - 1,750.90 4,322.76
Outstanding Receivable 
(net of Payable)
ION EXCHANGE 
ENVIRONMENT 
MANAGEMENT LTD.

- - 25.95 25.95 - - 25.95 25.95

TOTAL - - 25.95 25.95 - - 25.95 25.95
Outstanding payables (net 
of receivables)
Ion Exchange (India) Limited 164.49 - - - - 164.49
Global Composites and 
Structurals Limited

- - 58.01 60.14 - - 58.01 60.14

ION EXCHANGE 
ENVIRONMENT 
MANAGEMENT LTD.

- - 3.62 3.34 - - 3.62 3.34

TOTAL - 164.49 61.63 63.48 - - 61.63 227.97
Outstanding loans and 
advances payable
Ion Exchange (India) Limited 1,603.84 1,146.64 - - - - 1,603.84 1,146.64
TOTAL 1,603.84 1,146.64 - - - - 1,603.84 1,146.64
Investments sale during 
the year
Ion Exchange Environment 
Management Ltd. (Formerly 
Known as Ion Exchange 
Waterleau Limited) to Ion 
Exchange (India) Limited

- 0.01 - - - - - 0.01

TOTAL - 0.01 - - - - - 0.01
Corporate Guarantee 
Taken
Ion Exchange (India) Limited - 1,093.00 - - - - - 1,093.00
TOTAL - 1,093.00 - - - - - 1,093.00
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34. Right-of-use assets 

 Effective 1st April 2019 the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied to lease contracts existing on 1st April 
2019 by electing “modified retrospective approach”.  Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended 31st March 2019 have 
not been retrospectively adjusted and the Company has taken the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings on the date 
of initial application. On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of Right-of-use assets of INR 
364.99 Lakhs and a lease liability of INR. 368.81 Lakhs. The cumulative effective of applying the standard resulted in 
adjusting the retained earnings as at 1st April 2019 with INR 3.82 Lakhs. Further WDV of Leasehold Lands of INR 364.99 
Lakhs has been reclassified from Property, plant and equipment to Right-to-use Assets.

 In the Statement of Profit and Loss for the current year, the nature of expenses in respect of operating leases has changed 
from lease rent to depreciation on right of use assets and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability using the 
effective interest method.

 The break-up of Cash outflow on leases during the year ended 31st March 2022 is as follows
(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Repayment of lease liabilities 81.25 76.18
Interest on lease liabilities 13.28 7.17
Short-term lease expense - -
Low value lease expense - -
Total cash outflow on leases 94.53 83.35

 The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at 31st March 2022 is as follows
(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Current lease liabilities 67.78 24.81
Non-current lease liabilities 103.18 -
Total 170.96 24.81

 The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31st March 2022
(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Balance at the beginning 24.81 93.81
Additions 214.13
Finance cost accrued during the period 13.28 7.17
Payment of lease liabilities -81.26 -76.18
Balance at the end 170.96 24.81

 The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31st March 2022 on an undiscounted basis are as follows

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Less than one year 67.78 24.81
One to five year 103.18 -
More than five year - -
Total 170.96 24.81

35. Capital and other commitments

 Estimated amount of contracts (net of advances) remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for is  
INR 9.27 Lakhs (2020-2021 : INR 2.78).
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36. Contingent liabilities

(INR in Lakhs)

31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Demand Raised by West Bengal sales tax authorities in respect of 2013-2014 
against which the company has filed an appeal

- -

Demand Raised by West Bengal sales tax authorities in respect of 2014-2015 
against which the company has filed an appeal - 0.10
Demand Raised by West Bengal sales tax authorities in respect of 2015-2016 
against which the company has filed an appeal 27.66 27.66

Demand Raised by Jharkhand sales tax authorities in respect of 2011-2012 against 
which the company has filed an appeal 45.70 45.70
Demand Raised by Jharkhand sales tax authorities in respect of 2012-2013 against 
which the company has filed an appeal 26.82 26.82
Contingent liability under income tax act FY 2015-16 & 2017-18 7.23 -

 Note : 

1)  The proposed Social Security Code, 2019, when promulgated, would subsume labour laws including Employees’ 
Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act and amend the definition of wages on which the organisation 
and its employees are to contribute towards Provident Fund. The Company believes that there will be no significant 
impact on its contributions to Provident Fund due to the proposed amendments. Additionally, there is uncertainty 
and ambiguity in interpreting and giving effect to the guidelines of Hon. Supreme Court vide its ruling in February 
2019, in relation to the scope of compensation on which the organisation and its employees are to contribute 
towards Provident Fund. The Company will evaluate its position and act, as clarity emerges.

37. The proposed Social Security Code, 2019, when promulgated, would subsume labour laws including Employees’ Provident 
Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act and amend the definition of wages on which the organisation and its employees 
are to contribute towards provident fund. The company believes that there will be no significant impact on its contributions 
to provident fund due to the proposed amendments.

38. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 (on the basis of the information and 
records available with Management)

 (INR in Lakhs)
 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier 
as at the end of each accounting year
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 2.27 -
Interest due on above - -

2.27 -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED 
Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day during each accounting year

- -

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006.

- -

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting 
year.

1.69 1.69

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the 
small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under 
section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.

- -
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39. Ratio Analysis and its elements

Ratio Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 % 
change

Reason for 
variance

Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities       0.43               0.49       -0.06 No major 
change

Debt- Equity 
Ratio

Total Debt Shareholder’s 
Equity

          (2.69)            (2.78)          0.09 No major 
change

Debt Service 
Coverage ratio

Earnings for debt 
service = Net profit 
after taxes + Non-
cash operating 
expenses

Debt service 
= Interest & 
Lease Payments 
+ Principal 
Repayments

  0.33               2.34       -2.01 In current year 
loss

Return on Equity 
ratio

Net Profits after 
taxes – Preference 
Dividend

Average 
Shareholder’s 
Equity

   0.01  (0.28) 0.30 In current year 
loss

Inventory 
Turnover ratio

Cost of goods sold Average 
Inventory

12.16             99.38     -87.21 reduce in 
purchase in 
current FY

Trade Receivable 
Turnover Ratio

Net credit sales = 
Gross credit sales - 
sales return

Average Trade 
Receivable

 2.35               2.35          0.01 No major 
change

Trade Payable 
Turnover Ratio

Net credit purchases 
= Gross credit pur-
chases - purchase 
return

Average Trade 
Payables

    0.09               0.52        -0.42 reduce in 
purchase in 
current FY

Net Capital 
Turnover Ratio

Net sales = Total 
sales - sales return

Working capital = 
Current assets – 
Current liabilities

 (1.57)  (2.46) 0.89 Decrease in 
turnover in 
current FY

Net Profit ratio Net Profit Net sales = Total 
sales - sales 
return

          (0.01)               0.09       -0.09 reduce in 
turnover 

Return on Capital 
Employed

Earnings before 
interest and taxes

Capital Employed 
= Tangible Net 
Worth + Total 
Debt + Deferred 
Tax Liability

 (0.22)  (0.54) 0.31 No major 
change

Return on 
Investment

Interest (Finance 
Income)

Investment         -                     -                  -   No income on 
investment

40. Other Statutory Information 

(i) The company do not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the 
group for holding any benami property.

(ii) The company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(iii) The company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory 
period.

(iv) The company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) The company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022  (contd...) 

40. Other Statutory Information (contd....)

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(vi) The company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) 
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the group shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(vii) The company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered 
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or 
survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

41. Going concern basis

 Total equity of the Company as at 31 March 2022 is negative Rs. 1,109.69 lakhs (31 March 2021: Rs. 1,084.58 lakhs 
negative). The Company has incurred loss after tax of Rs. 13.89 Lakhs during the current year, incurred losses during 
earlier years and has resultant accumulated losses of Rs. 2,867.91 Lakhs as at 31 March 2022. Also, the Company’s 
current liabilities have exceeded its current assets by INR 1,568.79 Lakhs as at 31 March 2022. These conditions cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

 However, management has assessed that the Company will be able to continue operations on a going concern basis and 
meet all its liabilities as they fall due for payment in the foreseeable future. In making such assessment, the management 
has considered the confirmed sales orders received by Holding Company from which revenue will be earned by the 
Company in FY 2022-23 as project management charges. The Company has also received commitment of financial 
support from the Holding Company.

 Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and do not include any adjustments 
relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded assets, or to amounts and classification of liabilities that may be 
necessary if the Company is unable to continue as a going concern.

42. Tax expense :

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Current tax NIL 37.04
Deferred tax NIL -

NIL 37.04
Reconciliation of Tax Expense
Profit before tax Nil 348.58
Applicable tax rate 25.17% 16.692%
Computed tax expense                                                                             (A) NIL 58.18

Adjustments for:
Unabsorbed depreciation NIL (21.14)
Net adjustments                                                                                        (B) NIL (21.14)

Tax expense                                                                                           (A+B) NIL 37.04
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42. Tax expense (contd...)

 Tax Disclosures: 

 The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) presented in the balance sheet: 

(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Deferred tax assets - -
Deferred tax liability - -
Net deferred tax liability - -

 Note:
a. The Company has restricted the recognition of deferred tax asset to the extent of deferred tax liability and not 

recorded deferred tax asset of INR Nil on carry forward losses in the absence of convincing evidence of taxable 
profits in the foreseeable years.

b. The company has not shown tax reconciliations as they have no tax profits due to carried forward losses on account 
of specified business and unabsorbed depreciation 

c. Unrecognized deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credit

(INR in Lakhs)
 Particular 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits 
for which no deferred tax assets have been recognized are attributable to 
the followings
- Tax losses 

Unabsorbed depreciation and Business loss under Income-tax Act, 
1961

693.75 1,055.60

- Deductible temporary differences 
Employee benefits 27.06 76.58
Difference between books depreciation and depreciation as Income -tax 
Act, 1961

7.46 10.04

Expenses allowed under section 35DD of Income-tax Act, 1961 - -
Deferred tax Assets 728.27 1,142.22

 Tax Losses carried forward

 Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items as they are not reasonably certain of 
realization.

(INR in Lakhs)
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Gross amount Expiry FY Gross amount Expiry FY
Unabsorbed business loss 790.69 2022-23 790.69 2022-23
Unabsorbed business loss 827.72 2023-24 827.72 2023-24
Unabsorbed business loss 653.55 2024-25 653.55 2024-25
Unabsorbed business loss 159.73 2025-26 159.73 2025-26
Unabsorbed business loss - 2026-27 - 2026-27
Unabsorbed business loss 139.50 2027-28 139.50 2027-28
Unabsorbed business loss - 2028-29 - 2028-29
Unabsorbed business loss - 2029-30 - 2029-30
Unabsorbed depreciation 185.09 N.A. 185.09 N.A.

2756.28 2756.28
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022  (contd...) 

43. Subsequent events

 No significant adjusting event occurred between the balance sheet date and date of the approval of these financial 
statements by the Board of Directors of the Company requiring adjustment or disclosure.

44. The company has assessed the potential impact of Covid-19 on its capital and financial resources, profitability, liquidity 
position, ability to service debt and other financing arrangements. The company’s liquidity position is adequate to meet its 
commitments and it expects to recover the carrying value of its assets.43

 The company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions arising from ongoing 
second wave and update its assessment as necessary

45. Other matters 

 Information with regard to other matters specified in Schedule III to Companies Act, 2013, is either nil or not applicable to 
the Company for the year.

46. Previous period figures have been re-grouped / re-classified wherever necessary to conform to current period’s classification 
and in order to comply with the requirements of the amended schedule III to the Companies Act 2013 effect 1 April 2021.
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Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st Dec 2022         
. 

Overview of the Company 

Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited is a closely held public company, registered under the Companies Act, 1956. 

The Company is into business of execution of large EPC projects related to water treatments and provide design, supply, 
erection and commissioning of projects in industries related to power, steel, petrochemical and other sectors. 

1. Significant accounting policies

1.1 Statement of compliance 

These financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, the relevant 
provisions of the C  

1.2 Basis of preparation 

These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual 
basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the 
end of each reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

The operating cycle is determined for each project separately based on the expected execution period of the contract. 

1.3 Functional and presentation currency 

amounts have been rounded off to two decimal places to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated. 

1.4 Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following: 
certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value; and
net defined benefit (asset)/ liability that are measured at fair value of plan assets less present value of defined
benefit obligations.

1.5 Use of estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires use of judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income 
and expenses. The actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively. Assumptions and estimation 
uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the period ended 31st December 2022 
are as follows: 



Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited 
Notes to financial statement for the period ended 31st Dec 2022 . 

1. Significant accounting p

1.5   

a) Evaluation of percentage completion
Determination of revenues under the percentage of completion method necessarily involves making estimates,
some of which are technical in nature, concerning, where relevant, the percentage of completion, costs to
completion, expected revenues from the project or activity and the foreseeable losses to completion. Estimates
of project income, as well as project costs, are reviewed periodically. The effect of changes, if any, to estimates is
recognized in the financial statements for the period in which such changes are determined.

b) Property, plant and equipment
Determination of the estimated useful lives of tangible assets and the assessment as to which components of the
cost may be capitalised. Useful lives of tangible assets are based on the life prescribed in Schedule II of the Act. In
cases, where the useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule II, they are based on technical advice,
taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the
asset, past history of replacement, anticipated 
maintenance support.

c) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations
The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial
assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation, actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount
rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The
period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit
obligations.

1.6 Measurement of fair values 

non-financial assets and liabilities. 

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values, which 
includes overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values by the management. The 
management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party 
information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the management 
assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the 
requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified. 

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses observable market 
data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs 
used in the valuation techniques as follows. 

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)."

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value 
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy 
as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The company recognises transfers between 
levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.  
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1.7  Summary of significant accounting policies 

a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes taxes, duties, freight and other 
incidental expenses directly related to acquisition/construction and installation of the assets.  Any trade discounts 
and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. 

Depreciation is provided on straight line basis based on life assigned to each asset in accordance with Schedule II of 
the Act or as per life estimated by the Management, whichever is lower, as stated below. 

Assets Useful lives 
Plant and machinery 10  15 years 
Furniture and fixtures 10 years 
Vehicles 4  8 years 
Office equipments 3  5 years 

Site equipments are depreciated over 3 years. 

Leasehold assets are depreciated over the period of lease. 

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if 
appropriate. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further 
benefit is expected from its use and disposal. Gains / losses arising from disposal are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

b) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost and are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortization and impairment. 

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The amortization 
period and the amortization method are reviewed at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset 
is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly. 

Computer software is amortized on a straight line basis over the period of 5 years. 

An intangible asset is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is expected 
from its use and disposal. Gains / losses arising from disposal are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

c) Impairment

Impairment loss, if any, is provided to the extent the carrying amount of assets exceeds their recoverable amount. 
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's net selling price and its value in use. Carrying amounts of assets are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date for any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. Value in use 
is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its 
disposal at end of its useful life. In assessing value in use, the present value is discounted using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. Net selling price 
is the amount obtainable from sale of an asset in an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, 
less the costs of disposal. 
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d) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Exchange 
differences arising on the settlement of monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially 
recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in 
the year in which they arise. Foreign currency monetary items are reported at the year-end rates. Exchange 
differences arising on reinstatement of foreign currency monetary items are recognized as income or expense in the 
statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a 
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 

e) Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. 

Contract cost that has been incurred and relates to the future activity of the contract are recognized as contract work-
in-progress as it is probable that it will be recovered from the customer. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion 
and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

f) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet when the company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The company determines the classification of its financial assets
and financial liabilities at initial recognition based on its nature and characteristics.

A. Financial assets

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

The financial assets include equity and debt securities, trade and other receivables, loans and advances, cash and
bank balances and derivative financial instruments.

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in the following categories:

a. At amortised cost,

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the 
asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding 

b. At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), and
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1.7 

f) Financial instruments 

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

c. At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL 

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

All financial assets are reviewed for impairment at least at each reporting date to identify whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

(iv) De-recognition

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expires or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

B. Financial liabilities

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities classified at
amortised cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts,
derivative financial instruments, etc.

(ii) Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost, and
Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

- Financial liabilities excluding financial instruments at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. 
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as well as through the EIR 
amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 
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1. Significant 

1.7 

f) Financial instruments 

- Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts. Such derivative financial 
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are 
subsequently re-measured at fair value at each reporting period. Any changes therein are generally recognised in 
the profit and loss account. 

(iii) De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

g) Retirement and other employee benefits

i) Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund managed by Government Authorities and Superannuation
Fund are defined contribution scheme and the contribution is charged to the statement of profit and loss of
the year when the contribution to the respective fund is due. There is no other obligation other than the
contribution payable.

ii) Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on
Projected Unit Credit method made at the end of each financial year. Re-measurements of the net defined
benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and
the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

iii) Short term employee benefits are charged off at the undiscounted amount in the year in which the related
service is rendered.

iv) Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is
done as per Projected Unit Credit method made at the end of each financial year. The company presents the
leave liability as non-current in the balance sheet, to the extent it has an unconditional right to defer its
settlement for a period beyond 12 months, and balance amount is presented as current.

v)
payable under the schemes is recognized as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss during the year in
which the employee renders the related service. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards
employee provident fund. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective
fund.

h) Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the assets is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Revenue related to fixed price maintenance and support services contracts where the company is
standing ready to provide services is recognised based on time elapsed mode and revenue is straight
lined over the period of performance.
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1.7   

h)

In respect of other fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised using percentage-of-
ting with contract costs incurred determining the degree of completion of the performance

obligation. The contract costs used in computing the revenues include cost of fulfilling warranty obligations.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer.

Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Revenue from holding company is recognised based on transaction price which 

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract
assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right
to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

revenues.

The billing schedules agreed with customers include periodic performance based payments and / or milestone
based progress payments. Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period.

In accordance with Ind AS 37, the company recognises an onerous contract provision when the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under a contract exceed the economic benefits to be received.

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and requirements. The
company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract, basis which the
transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation, or transaction price of an existing
obligation could undergo a change. In the event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a cumulative
adjustment is accounted for.

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers into categories that depict the nature of
services and geography.

Use of significant judgments in revenue recognition

a customer. The company assesses the products / services promised in a contract and identify distinct
performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgment
to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such deliverables.
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1.7   

h)

Judgment is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could be
either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as volume
discounts and incentives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if
the contract includes a significant financing component. Any consideration payable to the customer is adjusted
to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the customer. The
estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and
is reassessed at the end of each reporting period. The company allocates the elements of variable
considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract unless there is observable evidence that they
pertain to one or more distinct performance obligations.

The company uses judgment to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance
obligation. The company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis of the
relative standalone selling price of each distinct product or service promised in the contract. Where standalone
selling price is not observable, the company uses the expected cost plus margin approach to allocate the
transaction price to each distinct performance obligation.

The company exercises judgment in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in
time or over a period of time. The company considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as
services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to
payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and
rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

Revenue for fixed-price contract is recognised using percentage-of-completion method. The company uses
judgment to estimate the future cost-to-completion of the contracts which is used to determine the degree
of completion of the performance obligation.

Dividend income is recorded when the right to receive payment is established. Interest income is recognised using 
the effective interest method. 

i) Taxation

(i) Provision for current taxation has been made in accordance with the Indian Income tax laws prevailing for the
relevant assessment years.

(ii) Deferred tax is recognized, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing differences being the
difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of
reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax is measured on the tax rates and the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.  Deferred
tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Un-recognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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i) Taxation 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgment is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future
taxable profits, future tax planning strategies.

j) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may,
but will probably not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation of a present obligation
in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision disclosure is made.

1.8 Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the 
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

1.9 Segment reporting policies 

Identification of segments 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 
operating decision maker (CODM). The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources 
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Managing Director who makes 
strategic decisions. 

1.10 Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term 
investments with an original maturity of three months or less. 
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1.11 Leases: 

Leases are accounted as per Ind AS 116 which has become mandatory from April 1, 2019. 

Where the company is the lessor 
Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are 
classified as operating leases. Assets given on operating lease by the company are included in property, plant and 
equipment. Lease income is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs such 
as legal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss. 

Where the company is the lessee 

Assets taken on lease are accounted as right-of-use assets and the corresponding lease liability is accounted at the 
lease commencement date. 

Initially the right-of-use asset is measured at cost which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for 
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, 
incremental borrowing rate. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change 
in an index or a rate, or a change in the estimate of the guaranteed residual value, or a change in the assessment of 
purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding 
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

The right-of-use asset is measured by applying cost model i.e. right-of-use asset at cost less accumulated amortisation 
and cumulative impairment, if any. The right-of-use asset is amortised, using the straight-line method over the period 
of lease, from the commencement date to the end of the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset whichever 
is earlier. Carrying amount of lease liability is increased by interest on lease liability and reduced by lease payments 
made. 

Lease payments associated with following leases are recognised as expense on straight-line basis: 

(i) Low value leases; and

(ii) Leases which are short-term.

1.12 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes 
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective 
asset till such time that it is required to complete and prepare the assets to get ready for its intended use. All other 
borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an 
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 






















